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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

	 2007	 2006	 2005

	 (in millions)	 per share*	 (in millions)	 per share*	 (in millions)	 per share*

Income from Continuing Operations, As Adjusted**	  $   786.2	 $  2.21	 $   603.3	 $  1.80	 $   513.1	 $  1.64

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)	 (43.2)	 (0.12)	 1.5	 0.01	 (4.3)	 (0.02)

Regulatory Reassessment Charges	 (34.5)	 (0.10)	  (267.4)	 (0.79)	 (51.6)	 (0.16)

Special Tax Items and Debt Extinguishment Costs	 (36.1)	 (0.10)	 78.9	 0.23	 42.8	 0.14

Broker Compensation Settlements	 —	 —	 (12.7)	 (0.04)	 —	 —

Gain on Disposition	 —	 —	 —	 —	 4.0	  0.01

Income from Continuing Operations	 672.4	 1.89	 403.6	 1.21	 504.0	 1.61

Income from Discontinued Operations	 6.9	 0.02	 7.4	 0.02	 9.6	 0.03

Net Income	 $   679.3	 $  1.91	 $   411.0	 $  1.23	 $   513.6 	 $  1.64

Total Stockholders’ Equity (Book Value)	 $8,039.9	 $22.28	 $7,718.8	 $22.53	 $7,363.9	 $24.66

Net Unrealized Gain on Securities	 356.1	 0.99	 534.8	 1.56	 1,040.7	 3.49

Net Gain on Cash Flow Hedges	 182.5	 0.50	 194.2	 0.57	 273.3	 0.91

Total Stockholders’ Equity, As Adjusted**	 $7,501.3	 $20.79	 $6,989.8	 $20.40	 $6,049.9	 $20.26

 * Per Share Amounts for Operating Statement Data Assume Dilution.

** �We analyze our performance using non-GAAP financial measures which exclude certain items and the related tax thereon from net income. We believe “Income from Continuing 
Operations, As Adjusted,” which is a non-GAAP financial measure and excludes realized investment gains and losses, which are recurring, and certain other items as specified, 
is a better performance measure and a better indicator of the profitability and underlying trends in our business. Realized investment gains 	and losses are primarily dependent 
on market conditions and general economic events and are not necessarily related to decisions regarding our underlying business. 	The exclusion of certain other items specified 
above also enhances the understanding and comparability of our performance and the underlying fundamentals in our operations, but this exclusion is not an indication that 
similar items may not recur. We also believe that book value per common share excluding unrealized gains and losses on securities and the net gain or loss on cash flow hedges, 
which also tend to fluctuate depending on market conditions and general economic trends, is an important measure.
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The future of benefits is a world that 

demands new ideas and new  
answers – a world where benefits are 
as much about helping businesses 
become more productive as they 
are about protecting people 
and their livelihoods.

Unum is future ready 
with forward-thinking benefit solutions that enable 

businesses to attract and keep the best employees, 

manage a diverse workforce and ease the pressure of 

rising costs, while helping employees and their families 

prepare for the road ahead. 

1
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The makeup of the 
workforce is changing

Unum Is Ready With

Creating the need for benefits  
solutions to meet a diverse population.

2

Employees
choices and
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Unum Is Ready With

Continuing to put more pressure 
on employers’ benefits budgets.

As the cost and responsibility for  
benefits is being shifted to individuals.

3

Healthcare costs are
rising rapidly

Employees are faced with more
choices and decisions

Solutions
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In every respect, 2007 was a year of significant accomplishment for Unum.

Through the efforts of our 10,000 talented and dedicated employees in the United States and United Kingdom, 
we made solid progress in just about every area of the company and, in the process, continued to build on the 
momentum that we have established over the past few years.  As a result, Unum is a stronger company today 
than at any other point in its history.  

To Our Stockholders, Customers and Colleagues

Tom Watjen
President and Chief Executive Officer
Unum Group

A Year of Progress
We met or exceeded our objectives in most of the areas 
of the company in 2007; and I would specifically like 
to highlight the following:

•	 All of our businesses performed well as we 
delivered strong financial results throughout the year

•	 We further strengthened our balance sheet, 
including closing the year with $1 billion in holding 
company liquidity

•	 Our investment portfolio quality is excellent 
and yielded solid returns despite challenging 
financial markets

•	 We formalized a capital management strategy that 
balances the needs of our company, stockholders 
and other stakeholders

•	 We re-branded Unum to better describe the 
company we are today

	 While all of our businesses performed well during the 
year, I am particularly encouraged by the improvement 
in profitability we achieved in Unum US. Pretax operating 
earnings for this unit increased significantly over the 
previous year, driven largely by improvements in 
claims management within our group long-term 
disability business.  
	 In addition, both Unum UK and Colonial Life again 
generated record earnings in 2007. Unum UK is a leading 
employee benefits provider in the United Kingdom and 
continues to capitalize on an underpenetrated income 
protection market. Colonial Life is one of the nation’s 
leading providers of voluntary benefits with broad 
expertise in one-to-one benefits communication. 
	 The contributions of these three businesses resulted 
in pretax operating income for our ongoing businesses 
of more than $1 billion in 2007, a first for Unum.  
	 Our investment results for the year were solid as well. 
Overall, our portfolio is in excellent shape, with historically 
low levels of high-yield bonds, no exposure to subprime 
mortgages and virtually no exposure to the asset classes 
troubling financial institutions today. In spite of this, we 
recognize the need to continuously monitor our position 
in what will likely remain a challenging environment 
throughout 2008.
	 I am also pleased that for the first time in several 
years we began to generate excess capital. We ended 
2007 with liquidity in excess of $1 billion, well above 
what we need to cover fixed costs and provide a cushion 
for business and economic volatility. Although our 

4

All in all, 2007 was an outstanding year for 

Unum as we strengthened both our operations 

and financial position. In doing so, we enter 

2008 better prepared for an uncertain  

economic environment.
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first priority is to maintain a strong overall financial 
position, our financial flexibility allowed us to begin to 
undertake our previously announced $700 million share 
repurchase, an action that we believe will benefit all 
of our stakeholders.
	 Finally, we “reintroduced” Unum to the marketplace in 
2007 through a brand redesign that better describes 
how we benefit businesses and their employees and is, 
at the same time, a more accurate reflection of the 
company we are today. Feedback from the marketplace 
has been very positive as we create better brand 
awareness and a more positive image of the company.
	 All in all, 2007 was an outstanding year for Unum as 
we strengthened both our operations and financial position. 
In doing so, we are better prepared for an uncertain 
economic environment.

A Challenging and Rapidly  
Changing Environment
As we enter 2008, we do so with less risk to our business 
as a result of the actions we have taken to better position 
our company, including improving the quality of our 
investment portfolio, further diversifying our business, 
building a stronger operational platform and developing 
greater access to the capital markets. These actions, along 
with our solid business plans and a better awareness of 
the risks inherent in those plans, will serve us well in this 
environment. Moving forward, we will continue to refine 
our risk management principles and further embed them 
into our corporate culture.
	 Corporate America in general, and the financial services 
industry in particular, are under more scrutiny today than 
perhaps they have ever been. Regulators, political leaders 
and consumers are all demanding more of our industry. 
We’ve learned a lot over the past several years, and we 
believe our values, culture and business practices are 
well-aligned with today’s expectations. Above all, we 
recognize the importance of transparency and openness 
in everything we do.
	 At Unum, we have spent the last several years working 
closely with regulators to implement enhanced claim 
practices. We have also been a leader in establishing 
improved disclosure of sales compensation. We are 
working hard to ensure our products, services and 
practices anticipate market changes and, as a result, 
exceed expectations. We plan to be an industry leader 
in this regard.
	 We believe there is an opportunity to work more closely 
with our political leaders – not with narrow special interests 
in mind – but rather in a partnership to address some of 
society’s broader issues. We understand that our 
various stakeholders expect more, and we are prepared 
to take an active and visible role in bringing together 
public/private solutions.

	 While the current environment features great demands 
and challenges, it also creates unique opportunities – 
opportunities that closely parallel Unum’s strategic focus 
and vision.
	 To begin with, healthcare costs have skyrocketed in 
recent years and continue to rise. In response, employers 
are increasingly cost-sharing with their employees. With 
higher costs and deductibles, employees need more 
help and education to understand the choices they face.

	 Additionally, Americans are spending more than they 
earn. Savings rates have dropped to levels not seen since 
the Great Depression. People have less of a personal 
safety net in the event of illness or injury, making the 
need for our solutions more important than ever.
	 At the same time, workforce demographics are rapidly 
changing. The population is aging, and employees are 
retiring later. In fact, for the first time there are four distinct 
generations in the workforce. This presents a number 
of challenges for employers, including how to attract 
and retain quality employees and how to maximize the 
productivity of a diverse workforce. Clearly, a one-size-fits-all 
model for benefits will no longer work.
	 I know of no other benefits provider as uniquely 
positioned to capitalize on these opportunities as Unum. 
We have a strong base from which to build and a number 
of initiatives under way to meet these evolving needs.

Positioned for the Future
The theme of this year’s annual report is “future ready,” 
which, as we mark our 160th year in business, appropri-
ately expresses how we feel about the opportunities 
that lie ahead and our readiness to capitalize on them. 
As we look to the future, it’s important to recognize that 
Unum is a different company today from what it was 
five short years ago:

•	 We have more diversified earnings with greater 
sources of growth

•	 Our business is more disciplined and highly 
focused on specific market segments

•	 We have a stronger and more flexible financial 
platform

While the current environment features 

great demands and challenges, it  

also creates unique opportunities –  

opportunities that closely parallel  

Unum’s strategic focus and vision.
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	 Going forward, our focus will be on continuing to invest 
in our business to further leverage our leadership positions 
into sustainable, profitable growth, particularly through 
an emphasis on voluntary benefits as well as product and 
service innovation. We are already making significant 
progress in both of these areas.
	 In Unum US, we celebrated the pilot launch last year 
of Simply Unum, an integrated platform of products 
and online services that we believe will transform the 
marketplace. In Unum UK, where employers and 
employees face similar challenges to those in the U.S., 
we are expanding our product portfolio to include 
voluntary benefits. And in Colonial Life, we believe the 
investment we are making in a new brand, coupled with 
the recent introduction of new life and health products 
and new enrollment capabilities, will lead to accelerated 
long-term growth.
	 But by far the most important thing we can do to 
capitalize on the opportunities that lie ahead is to 
consistently do the right thing to serve our customers. I 
am pleased that brokers and customers continue to 
praise our service quality and portfolio of products. Our 
claimants also give us high marks for our claims service 
and support. As with everything in our business, however, 
we know there are opportunities to do things better, 
and we will always strive for continuous improvement.

Focus on People
We are proud of what we do as a company and the role 
our products and services play in supporting broader 
social needs. In fact, we paid over $6 billion last year 
alone to individuals and families at a time when they 
were impacted by illness, injury or even death. We help 
people – and every one of our 10,000 employees make 
that happen every day.
	 We are also proud of our people and recognize the 
role a positive work environment plays in attracting and 
retaining the best talent. Last year, we increased our 
emphasis on professional and leadership development 
for our employees, launching a number of initiatives that 
will allow them to further develop their skills. On that note, 
we are pleased with what our employees think about 
the company – they tell us they are not only proud to work 
for Unum, but also they clearly understand and are fully 
aligned with our vision and business strategy.
	 We recognize it is important to take an active role in our 
communities through both financial support and volunteer-
ism. In 2007, Unum donated more than $6 million to 
well-deserving charitable organizations throughout 
the U.S. and the U.K. Although we support a broad array 
of organizations, we are particularly focused on public  

education initiatives because we know that creating 
well-rounded, civic-minded students today helps build 
the strong leaders of tomorrow.

Looking Ahead
In spite of the uncertain environment, there are many 
reasons to be optimistic about the future, and chief among 
them is the very strong position Unum is in today.  
	 Going forward, our actions will follow four broad themes:

•	 We will strive to consistently execute our  
operating plans

•	 We will remain focused on disciplined,  
profitable growth

•	 We will work diligently to better leverage our  
leadership positions

•	 We will remain committed to developing our people

	 By focusing on these themes, we believe we can 
continue to instill even greater confidence in the company 
among our constituents. Over the past few years, we 
have worked hard to produce consistent results, create a 
culture of openness and transparency, and demonstrate 
a willingness to listen and share. All of these have served 
us well, and we believe can be a model to follow – 
especially in this environment.
	 In closing, I am thankful for the opportunity to lead 
Unum, particularly at this exciting time in our evolution. 
Our performance last year is a testament to the hard work 
and determination of our employees, as well as to the 
many stakeholders who share in our success. I am confident 
that, by continuing to execute on our business plan, 
we will add to this success and, in the process, further 
solidify our leadership position in employee benefits and 
continue to create value for our stockholders.
	 On behalf of our board of directors and all of us at Unum, 
thank you for your continued support of our company.

Sincerely,

By far the most important thing we can 

do to capitalize on the opportunities that 

lie ahead is to consistently do the right 

thing to serve our customers.
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Bob Greving,
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Actuary

“�Not only are we a stronger company that is better positioned 

to capitalize on the opportunities in front of us, but also we have 

reduced our overall exposure to a downturn in the economy.” 

Financial Strength for the Future
A Conversation with Chief Financial Officer Bob Greving

Q: Unum’s results exceeded Wall Street estimates in 2007, and 
the company is stronger than perhaps at any other time in its 
history. How does this financial strength translate to prepared-
ness for the future? 
A: I believe Unum is well-positioned financially in two very significant 
ways. First, we spent the last five years improving our balance sheet 
and financial flexibility through a number of initiatives, the most 
recent of which was a successful securitization of our closed block 
of individual disability business. As a result of these actions, we 
have a lower credit risk profile, well-managed investments, stronger 
capital and liquidity positions, and a more comprehensive risk 
management platform. 
	 At the same time, we restructured our operations to better position 
our businesses through all stages of the economic cycle. We focused 
on our areas of strength, exercised more discipline in pricing and 
underwriting, improved our claims management performance and 
enhanced our operating effectiveness throughout the organization. 
Today, we have a more diversified earnings base, more sources of 
premium growth and more predictable results.
	 Not only are we a stronger company that is better positioned to 
capitalize on the opportunities in front of us, but also we have 
reduced our overall exposure to a downturn in the economy. 

Q: Unum’s investments have performed well, even in an uncertain 
economy. What is the company’s general investment strategy?

A: Over the past few years, we have taken a conservative approach 
to managing our investment portfolio, and this approach has served 
us well. Our results have been very solid, particularly given the 
uncertain economic environment. In fact, we have no subprime 
mortgages in our portfolio and very limited exposure to the asset 
classes that are troubling many financial institutions today.
	 Our goal is to minimize risk for our policyholders who count on 
our financial security, as well as for our investors. Each investment 
undergoes a fundamental analysis, and, in particular, we focus on 
quantifying and limiting interest rate risk. Going forward, we will 

continue to take this same approach toward delivering consistent, 
quality investment income in a capital-efficient manner. While I expect 
financial market conditions to remain volatile for the foreseeable 
future, our investment portfolio is well-positioned for that kind 
of environment.

Q: What steps has Unum taken to integrate risk management 
into its business?

A: Naturally, our awareness of the need for risk management has 
been heightened in recent months, though it has been an important 
area of focus for us for quite some time. If there is one thing that 
is clear from the subprime mortgage crisis, it’s that all companies 
should not only embed risk management practices into their busi-
nesses, but they should ensure that these practices are followed. 
	 At Unum, we have a governance structure for risk management 
that allows for oversight at both the enterprise and business unit 
levels and is embedded in our planning process down to the func-
tional level. The areas we are most focused on include credit and 
interest rate risk, business diversification and financial flexibility, 
and we have taken a number of steps in these areas to better 
position Unum’s risk profile.

Q: For the first time in several years, Unum is generating excess 
capital. What is the company’s strategy for managing this capital?

A. In 2007, we formalized a capital management strategy that 
has three threshold targets: maintain a risk-based capital ratio of 
300 percent; keep our leverage ratio below 25 percent; and ensure 
that there is enough cash at the holding company to cover one year 
of fixed costs. For 2008, we expect to maintain flexibility within 
these metrics, given the difficult economic environment. 
	 We also developed a strategy for how best to use excess capital 
going forward. As part of this plan, we recently initiated the repurchase 
of up to $700 million of our common stock, a sign of confidence in 
our future. We will continue to look for additional opportunities to 
leverage excess capital in ways that add value to our company and 
our stockholders.
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Future ready
 with 10,000 professionals  
dedicated to helping people 
when they need it the most.

Dedicated To Serving Our Customers
As one of the world’s leading benefits providers, Unum helps protect 
more than 25 million people when illness or injury occurs. It does so 
not only through a broad portfolio of benefits products and solutions, 
but also through the caring service its benefits specialists provide to 
customers during some of the most difficult times in their lives. According 
to independent research, Unum’s customer satisfaction remained at 
record levels last year, an indication that those who know Unum best – 
brokers, employers and claimants – like doing business with the company. 

We are proud of the work we do and are 

firmly committed to living our vision in 

ways that serve our customers, stockholders, 

employees and communities.
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Making A Difference In Our Communities
At Unum, we recognize the role we play in not only assisting individuals 
in their time of need, but also in improving the quality of life in 
our communities. In 2007, we contributed more than $6 million to 
organizations that support public education, disabilities, health and 
wellness, and the arts throughout the U.S. and U.K. In addition, our 
employees volunteered countless hours to the causes they are most 
passionate about.

Investing In Our Employees
Unum is committed to attracting and retaining quality people – the key 
to its unparalleled customer service. In 2007, the company increased 
its emphasis on both professional and leadership development, including 
launching a number of initiatives aimed at fortifying its bench strength. 
Employee satisfaction remains at all-time highs, too, as Unum was 
once again named one of the best places to work in its home states 
of Maine, South Carolina and Tennessee. 
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future ready 
With Benefits That Build 
Meaningful Connections

Unum US
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Who We Are
Unum US is one of the leading providers 
of employee benefits in the United States, 
protecting millions of people and their 
families in the event of illness or injury. It 
is the market leader in both group and 
individual disability insurance and group 
long-term care, as well as one of the largest 
providers of group life and voluntary 
workplace benefits – products that are 
uniquely suited to meet the demands of 
today’s diverse workplace.
	 But Unum’s value goes well beyond 
the products it offers. Its goal is to provide 
“better benefits at work,” and its mission 
is to be the absolute best at building 
meaningful and lasting connections 
among employers, their employees and 
the benefits they provide. Unum delivers 
on that commitment through a full array 
of benefits solutions – including education, 
enrollment services and industry-leading 
claims support – that meet the evolving 
needs of both the employer and employee. 

The Benefits We Offer
Companies want benefits that can help 
them attract and retain quality employees 
and solve human resources challenges, 
such as managing an increasingly diverse 
workforce and easing the pressure from 
rising healthcare costs. At the same time, 
consumers are looking for simplicity in 
their benefits and help with understanding 
the choices available to them.
	 Unum offers a full spectrum of benefits 
solutions that address these very real 
challenges. Because a diverse workforce 
has diverse needs, Unum offers targeted 
plan designs that offer flexibility of funding, 
while still being easy to administer. The 
launch of Simply Unum, an integrated 
platform of products and online administra-
tive, enrollment and claims services, is but 
one way Unum is transforming the benefits 
marketplace through innovative solutions.
	 Most importantly, Unum is there when it’s 
needed the most. Year after year, Unum 
continues to set new highs in customer 
satisfaction for its personal service and 
claims support. 

What’s Ahead
Going forward, Unum is continuing to develop 
targeted solutions to help businesses better 
manage the challenges that are driving change 
in the global workplace. Its broad product 
portfolio, unparalleled customer service and 
flexible plan designs enable employers to 
manage their budgets and meet the needs of 
an increasingly diverse workforce.
	 Through transformational initiatives like Simply 
Unum and the development of additional 
products and services in 2008, Unum is “future 
ready” with cost-efficient, high-quality ways to 
help companies manage, and get the most from, 
their employee benefits programs – while also 
helping employees better understand the 
benefits choices available to them and, most 
importantly, protecting them in the event of 
illness or injury.

“�With our broad product portfolio and customer service capabilities,  
I believe we’re better positioned than any other company to be a true 
leader in employee benefits. Key to this is our unique understanding 
of the changes taking place in the workplace – nobody is better able 
to help employers deal with these changes.”  

Kevin McCarthy, President and Chief Executive Officer, Unum US

11
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future ready 
With Benefit Solutions That 
Fit The New Workplace

Unum UK
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Who We Are
For 35 years, Unum has been a leading 
employee benefits provider in the United 
Kingdom, helping companies protect their 
business by protecting their workforces 
from the impact of illness and injury.
	 In today’s increasingly competitive global 
markets, organizations want to protect their 
greatest asset – their people. In providing 
financial and rehabilitation support, Unum UK 
helps keep companies working – in spite 
of whatever life may bring.

The Benefits We Offer
Unum UK brings the benefits of its  
cutting-edge expertise to its customers.  
It helps businesses make the most of their 
benefits programs, and Unum’s vocational 
rehabilitation services help ease the disrup-
tion to both businesses and the people who 
work in them – enabling them to return 
to full capacity as soon as they are able. 
	 Unum’s leadership is evidenced, not 
just in market share, but also in the 
practical and customer-focused approaches 
it brings to the market. Its unrivaled 
benefits expertise helps businesses make 
the most out of their benefits programs, 
while the company’s knowledge and insight 
lead to innovative solutions on behalf of 
its customers. In 2007, Unum introduced 
a new approach to the traditional model 
of insurance risk – one that focuses on 
the underlying attitudes that contribute 
to absences from work, enabling those 
with previously “uninsurable” health 
issues to receive coverage.

What’s Ahead
Looking to the future, Unum UK’s strategic 
focus is on growing the market for wellness 
and protection solutions – primarily in and 
through the workplace. Changing demo-
graphics, coupled with the pressures of global 
markets and a move towards greater corporate 
social responsibility, mean that organizations 
are looking to revise and enhance the 
effectiveness of their benefits packages while 
minimizing costs. The company is developing  
a voluntary benefits package for launch  
to a market that has traditionally relied on 
government-funded programs to manage  
the financial impact of disability and critical 
illness. In the process, Unum is working to help 
individuals understand that they need to take 
personal responsibility to provide for what may 
happen in the future.
	 Unum is “future ready” with benefits solutions 
that are leading the evolution of the benefits 
market in the U.K.

“�We are poised at the start of a new chapter in the evolution of benefits 
solutions in the U.K. As market leader, we are looking to write that 
chapter, helping guide organizations and their employees through 
the challenges of life and work today.” 

Susan Ring, President and Chief Executive Officer, Unum UK

13
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future ready 
With A Personal Approach 
To Employee Benefits

Colonial Life
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Who We Are
Colonial Life is one of the nation’s leading 
providers of voluntary worksite benefits – 
benefits for employees and their families 
that are sold through the workplace. 
	 Voluntary benefits complement an 
employer’s core benefits program and 
enable employees to choose the coverage 
that best meets their individual and family 
needs. At the same time, voluntary benefits 
allow employers to offer an expanded 
benefits package to their employees with 
little or no impact on the employers’ 
bottom line.
	 Since 1939, Colonial Life’s market 
leadership has been built on providing 
benefits solutions to meet individual 
needs. Today, the company offers many  
solutions in one neat package: excellence  
in benefits communication, enrollment, 
service, and personal insurance products 
that “make benefits count” for employers 
and their employees alike. 

The Benefits We Offer
A broad portfolio of personal insurance 
products is the price of entry into the 
employee benefits market, and Colonial 
Life’s are among the most competitive, 
including disability, accident, life, cancer, 
critical illness, hospital confinement and 
limited benefit medical coverage. 
	 But what makes the company unique 
are the benefits communication and 
enrollment capabilities provided to 
customers through a strong national 
distribution system. Colonial Life believes 
working Americans deserve to understand 
and appreciate the benefits they have 
available to them through the workplace. 
The company’s foundation is built on 
establishing one-to-one relationships that 
educate employers and their employees 
about the benefits they have as well as 
any possible gaps that may exist in their 
coverage. 
	 State-of-the-art enrollment systems and 
best-in-class service after the sale are also 
key components of Colonial Life’s value in 
the marketplace. In 2007, for instance, the 
company introduced a new enrollment 
system that offers flexible, daily enrollment 
reporting at no direct cost to business owners.

What’s Ahead
Rising health insurance costs, an aging workforce 
and shifting workplace demographics are creating 
a need for diverse benefits – and a growing 
demand for voluntary products. At the same 
time, there’s an emerging need for benefits 
education as employers and employees struggle 
to understand the choices available to them 
and select the options that best meet their 
individual needs. 
	 Colonial Life will continue to expand its 
communication and enrollment options to 
offer businesses and their workers the 
flexibility they need. Continually enhancing 
customer service and refreshing the company’s 
product portfolio to meet changing market 
needs will also ensure that Colonial Life is 
“future ready” and well-positioned to capitalize 
on these opportunities. 

“�The rapidly evolving benefits environment is creating opportunities 
for providers who can offer a wider range of solutions for employers 
and their employees. Benefits are becoming increasingly complex, 
and customers need help understanding their options. Our benefits 
education and enrollment capabilities, coupled with our broad portfolio 
of voluntary coverage, put Colonial Life in a strong position to capitalize 
on these opportunities.” 

Randy Horn, President and Chief Executive Officer, Colonial Life

15
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				    At or for the Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars, except share data)	 2007	 2006	 2005	 2004	 2003

Statement of Operations Data

Revenue

Premium Income	 $	 7,901.1	 $	 7,948.2	 $	 7,815.6	 $	 7,839.6	 $	 7,615.7 

Net Investment Income	 	 2,409.9		  2,320.6		  2,188.3		  2,158.7		  2,158.4 

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)	 	 (65.2)	 	 2.2		  (6.7)		  29.2		  (173.8)

Other Income	 	 274.1		  264.3		  262.1		  260.3		  218.3 

Total			   	10,519.9		 10,535.3		 10,259.3		 10,287.8		  9,818.6 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits (1)	 	 6,988.2		  7,577.2		  7,083.2		  7,248.4		  7,868.1 

Commissions	 	 841.1		  819.0		  804.7		  842.3		  844.1 

Interest and Debt Expense and Cost Related  

	 to Early Retirement of Debt (2)	 	 241.9		  217.6		  208.0		  207.1		  187.2 

Other Expenses (3)	 	 1,451.5		  1,456.1		  1,469.5		  2,265.7		  1,371.6 

Total			   	 9,522.7		 10,069.9		  9,565.4		 10,563.5		 10,271.0 

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations  

	 Before Income Tax and Cumulative Effect  

	 of Accounting Principle Change	 	 997.2		  465.4		  693.9		  (275.7)		  (452.4)

Income Tax (Benefit) (4)	 	 324.8		  61.8		  189.9		  (74.3)		  (177.9)

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Before  

	 Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle Change	 	 672.4		  403.6		  504.0		  (201.4)		  (274.5)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (5)	 	 6.9		  7.4		  9.6		  (51.6)		  (151.8)

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle Change,  

	 Net of Income Tax (6)		  —		  —		  —		  —		  39.9 

Net Income (Loss)	 $	 679.3	 $	 411.0	 $	 513.6	 $	 (253.0)	 $	 (386.4)

Balance Sheet Data

Assets			  $	52,432.7	 $	52,823.3	 $	51,866.8	 $	50,832.3	 $	49,718.3 

Long-term Debt	 $	 2,515.2	 $	 2,659.6	 $	 3,261.6	 $	 2,862.0	 $	 2,789.0 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income	 $	 463.5	 $	 612.8	 $	 1,163.5	 $	 1,481.1	 $	 1,171.2 

Other Stockholders’ Equity	 	 7,576.4		  7,106.0		  6,200.4		  5,743.0		  6,099.8 

Total Stockholders’ Equity	 $	 8,039.9	 $	 7,718.8	 $	 7,363.9	 $	 7,224.1	 $	 7,271.0 
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				    At or for the Year Ended December 31

			   2007	 2006	 2005	 2004	 2003

Per Share Data

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations (7)

	 Basic		  $	 1.90	 $	 1.25	 $	 1.71	 $	(0.68)	 $	(0.99)

	 Assuming Dilution	 $	 1.89	 $	 1.21	 $	 1.61	 $	(0.68)	 $	(0.99)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

	 Basic		  $	 0.02	 $	 0.02	 $	 0.03	 $	(0.18)	 $	(0.55)

	 Assuming Dilution	 $	 0.02	 $	 0.02	 $	 0.03	 $	(0.18)	 $	(0.55)

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle Change

	 Basic										          $	 0.14

	 Assuming Dilution									         $	 0.14 

Net Income (Loss)										        

	 Basic		  $	 1.92	 $	 1.27	 $	 1.74	 $	(0.86)	 $	(1.40)

	 Assuming Dilution	 $	 1.91	 $	 1.23	 $	 1.64	 $	(0.86)	 $	(1.40)

Stockholders’ Equity	 $	22.28	 $	22.53	 $	24.66	 $	24.36	 $	24.55 

Cash Dividends	 $	 0.30	 $	 0.30	 $	 0.30	 $	 0.30	 $	 0.37 

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding										        

	 Basic (000s)	 	352,969.1		 324,654.9		 295,776.4		 295,224.3		 276,132.2 

	 Assuming Dilution (000s)	 	355,776.5		 334,361.7		 312,512.6		 295,224.3		 276,132.2 
										        

(1)	� Included are regulatory claim reassessment charges of $65.8 million, $396.4 million, $52.7 million, and $84.5 million in 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively; reserve 
strengthening of $110.6 million in 2004 related to the restructuring of the individual disability — closed block; and reserve strengthening of $894.0 million in 2003 for 
Unum US group disability.

(2)	� Included are costs related to early retirement of debt of $58.8 million and $25.8 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively.

(3)	� Includes the net increase in deferred acquisition costs, compensation expense, and other expenses.  Included in these expenses are regulatory claim reassessment charges 
(credits) and broker compensation settlement expenses of $(12.8) million, $33.5 million, $22.3 million, and $42.5 million in 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, 
and, in 2004, charges related to the impairment of the individual disability — closed block deferred acquisition costs, value of business acquired, and goodwill balances  
of $282.2 million, $367.1 million, and $207.1 million, respectively.

(4)	� Amounts reported for 2006 and 2005 include income tax benefits of $91.9 million primarily as the result of group relief benefits obtained from the use of net operating 
losses in a foreign jurisdiction in which our businesses operate and $42.8 million related to the reduction of income tax liabilities, respectively.  

(5)	� Amounts reported for 2004 and 2003 include after-tax losses of $71.3 million and $196.9 million, respectively, from the Canadian branch sale and write-downs.  

(6)	� Adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 Implementation Issue B36, Embedded Derivatives: Modified Coinsurance Arrangements and Debt 
Instruments That Incorporate Credit Risk Exposure That Are Unrelated or Only Partially Related to the Creditworthiness of the Obligor Under Those Instruments, in 2003.

(7)	 Excludes cumulative effect of accounting principle change.
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The discussion and analysis presented in this section should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Executive Summary
	 We believe that the actions we have taken during the past several years have improved the effectiveness of the basic functions of 

our businesses, reduced our business volatility, and led to a greater consistency in the execution of our business plan. Our goal is to build 

further momentum by focusing on our strengths and serving our customers well.

	 Our four primary objectives for 2007 were as follows:

	 • Continue to improve the profitability of our Unum US group disability line of business; 

	 • Ensure that all of our other product lines and businesses that are performing well continue to do so; 

	 • Continue to execute our capital management strategy; and

	 • Successful completion of the claim reassessment process in preparation for the regulatory final examination. 

 

	 In commenting on our results for 2007, we will discuss three major topics: operating performance of our three major business 

segments, our capital management strategy, and our outstanding legal and regulatory issues. 

Operating Performance of our Major Business Segments
	 Our primary focus for Unum US during 2007 was continued improvement of our claims management performance in our group disability 

line of business, and we are pleased with the progress made during the year. We finished 2007 with a group disability benefit ratio of 

91.5 percent for the fourth quarter of 2007, consistent with the goals we established for improved claim operational effectiveness. Our 

2007 priorities also included improved profitability in certain of our supplemental products and the maintenance of current performance 

levels in our other lines, and our operating results generally reflect achievement of these priorities. Compared to the prior year, operating 

income during 2007 improved 22.0 percent in our group life and accidental death and dismemberment product lines and 11.2 percent in 

our supplemental and voluntary product lines. Positive trends for our Unum US group lines of business include favorable pricing trends, 

renewal profit improvement, and the management of case persistency. For all of our Unum US lines of business, we are aggressively 

managing our operating expenses and are continuing to make improvements in our operating effectiveness. Although sales for Unum US 

in 2007 were lower than in 2006, sales growth gained momentum during the second half of the year. Throughout the year we maintained 

our disciplined pricing, and our overall sales mix continues to be generally in line with our target mix. The number of new accounts in the 

group core market segment, which we define for Unum US as employee groups with less than 2,000 lives, increased over the prior year, 

which we believe is a clear indication of our strong focus in this segment. During the third quarter of 2007, Unum US introduced Simply 

Unum, a new product offering and administrative platform designed to better meet the needs of our group core market segment and our 

voluntary market. The new platform represents substantial changes in existing technologies and workflow processes, from quote and 

proposal to billing and administration and ultimately to the payment of claims. The initial market rollout was limited to four pilot sales 

offices, with the full rollout expected to occur during the first and second quarters of 2008. 

	 Our Unum UK segment continues to produce excellent operating results, with an increase in segment operating income of 21.4 percent 

for 2007, as measured in Unum UK’s local currency, compared to 2006. Sales in Unum UK were consistent with the overall level of 2006 

sales as well as sales in the core market segment, which we now define for Unum UK as employee groups with less than 500 lives. During 

2007, Unum UK continued to take advantage of the opportunities offered by age equality legislation, with £7.4 million of additional sales 

during 2007 compared to approximately £11.1 million of those types of sales in 2006. Excluding sales related to the change in age equality 

legislation, Unum UK achieved underlying sales growth of approximately 5 percent in 2007 as compared to 2006. We are focused on 

increasing market awareness and demand for disability products in the U.K. market. 

	 Our Colonial Life segment also had excellent operating results for 2007, with an increase in segment operating income of 23.7 percent 

compared to the prior year. Colonial Life’s sales increased 6.3 percent in 2007 over the prior year. Most notable were sales increases in the 

public sector market for educators and in the commercial market segment for employee groups with less than 100 lives. The number of 
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new accounts increased over the prior year, although the average new case size was smaller than expected. We are focused on maintaining 

profitable and sustainable sales growth for this segment. During the latter part of 2007, we introduced a new hospital confinement indemnity 

insurance plan that gives businesses the opportunity to offer their employees a solution to help fill coverage gaps in their major medical plan 

and help protect employees against increasing out-of-pocket expenses. We also introduced a group limited benefit plan that provides 

businesses a product offering for their employees who do not have major medical coverage. After completion of brand research and 

development in the fourth quarter of 2007, we introduced the new Colonial Life brand in January 2008. The new brand includes an updated 

logo and tag line and is supported by a national advertising campaign. 

Capital Management Strategy
	 In keeping with our capital planning objectives for 2007, and as a result of the build-up of excess capital from improved operating trends 

and in anticipation of our closed block of individual disability reserves securitization transaction, we formalized our capital management 

goals and objectives during the latter part of 2007. Our first priority is to maintain sufficient financial flexibility to support our operations 

over various economic cycles and to respond to opportunities in the marketplace while positioning our Company for improvements in  

its credit ratings. We have set in place several financial targets which will guide our capital management decisions including:

	 • �Maintain a risk based capital (RBC) ratio of 300 percent or greater for our traditional U.S. insurance subsidiaries. This is to be measured 

on a weighted average basis using the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) Company Action Level formula.

	 • �Maintain leverage at approximately 25 percent. Leverage will be measured as debt to total capital, which we define as debt plus 

stockholders’ equity, excluding the net unrealized gain or loss on securities and the net gain or loss on cash flow hedges. This target 

level excludes the non-recourse debt and associated capital of Tailwind Holdings, LLC (Tailwind Holdings) and Northwind Holdings, 

LLC (Northwind Holdings).

	 • �Maintain excess capital at our holding companies sufficient to cover one year of fixed charges (measured as interest expense plus 

common stock dividends) plus a capital fund which will vary with business and economic conditions. 

	 • Maintain a common stock dividend yield that is near the median of our peer companies.

	 We consider any capital above that needed to achieve and maintain these metrics to be excess capital available to fund share 

repurchases, business growth, or acquisitions. Our goal in allocating excess capital is to maximize risk-adjusted shareholder returns over  

a three to five year time period, with share repurchase used as the benchmark for evaluating uses for excess capital. 

	 Capital transactions during 2007 included the following:

	 • In February, we purchased and retired $150.0 million of our adjustable conversion-rate equity security units. 

	 • �On October 31, 2007, we announced the completion of a securitization of our closed block of individual disability reserves through 

the issuance of $800.0 million floating rate, insured, senior, secured notes by our wholly-owned subsidiary Northwind Holdings. The 

transaction also included the intercompany reinsurance of $11.1 billion of statutory reserves, representing approximately 95 percent 

of our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment, to Northwind Reinsurance Company (Northwind Re), a newly formed special 

purpose financial captive insurance company domiciled in Vermont and owned by Northwind Holdings. With the risk transfer to 

Northwind Re, our traditional U.S. insurance subsidiaries were able to release excess statutory capital previously supporting this 

reinsured closed block business. The excess capital was transferred to Unum Group from the ceding companies through extraordinary 

dividends. This capital structure allows us to continue to fully support the risk profile of this closed block of business while we 

redeploy excess capital to other uses. 

	 • �During December, we closed our October 31, 2007, announced tender offer and successfully retired $400.0 million of outstanding 

debt. We also called and retired all $150.0 million principal amount of our outstanding 7.25% notes scheduled to mature in 2032.

	 • �Also during 2007, we made principal payments of $17.5 million on our senior secured non-recourse variable rate notes issued by 

Tailwind Holdings and purchased and retired $52.0 million aggregate principal amount of other outstanding debt.

	 • �During December, we established a $400.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility to provide additional liquidity and financial 

flexibility for our Company. We intend to use any drawn borrowings from the facility for general corporate purposes. Any actions 

that we may institute will be consistent with our capital management strategy.
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	 At the end of 2007, all of our financial measurements for capital management compare favorably to our target levels. The combined 

RBC ratio for our traditional U.S. insurance subsidiaries was above our target level. Our leverage ratio, when calculated excluding the  

non-recourse debt and associated capital of Tailwind Holdings and Northwind Holdings and also allowing 50 percent equity credit for  

the adjustable conversion-rate equity security units that were still outstanding at the beginning of the year, was 21.4 percent at the end 

of 2007, compared to 26.2 percent at the beginning of 2007, subsequent to our cumulative effect adjustment to equity for the adoption  

of the new accounting policies related to deferred acquisition costs and income taxes. Our leverage ratio, when calculated using 

consolidated debt to total consolidated capital, was 26.4 percent at the end of 2007, compared to 28.8 percent at the beginning of 2007.  

In addition, liquidity at our holding companies is greater than one year of fixed charges. 

	 See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” contained herein for further detail.

Outstanding Legal and Regulatory Issues
	 During 2007, we continued to make progress in resolving our outstanding legal and regulatory issues, most notably the completion of the 

claim reassessment process required by the 2004 and 2005 regulatory settlement agreements. The lead regulators began the examinations 

of our claims handling practices and the reassessment process in June 2007 and on February 20, 2008, met with members of our board of 

directors and management to report the results and to advise that no fines will be assessed. The final report for the examinations under 

the regulatory settlement agreements is expected to be completed by mid-2008.

	 Other progress on legal and regulatory issues during 2007 includes the following:

	 • �We received two favorable rulings dismissing, with prejudice, both the antitrust and RICO causes of action in the case entitled  

In re Insurance Brokerage Antitrust Litigation. Additionally, in January 2008 the defendants’ motion for summary judgment on  

all ERISA claims was granted. Discovery in the case remains stayed while the court considers the proper procedure for handling  

of the remaining state law claims and plaintiffs pursue their appeal.

	 • �We executed a settlement agreement resolving the plan beneficiary class action, or 401(k) case, which is one of the multidistrict 

litigation matters discussed in our litigation footnote. The settlement agreement was finalized and approved by the court in the 

fourth quarter of 2007. The entire cost of the settlement was covered by insurance proceeds. In addition, we executed an agreement, 

subject to court approval, to settle all claims in the case entitled In re UnumProvident Corp. Securities Litigation. The amount of the 

settlement was $40.0 million, of which $28.4 million was covered by insurance proceeds. The net expense of $11.6 million was 

included in our second quarter of 2007 operating results.

	 • �We resolved the putative derivative action in Leonard v. UnumProvident Corporation, et al. which asserted claims against us and 

various members of our board of directors. The settlement, the terms of which were not material to us, was approved by the court 

and the case was dismissed with prejudice during the third quarter of 2007.

Focus for 2008
	 During 2008, we intend to continue our focus on a number of key areas. Objectives for 2008 include:

	 • �Consistent execution. We will continue our emphasis on disciplined, profitable growth and strive to better leverage our 

leadership position. 

	 • �Continued innovation throughout our businesses. Within Unum US, we plan to more broadly launch Simply Unum in the small  

to mid sized employer marketplace. We also plan to capitalize on the introduction of a number of health related products for 

Colonial, as well as the launch of a pilot voluntary benefits program in our Unum UK business. 

	 • �Capitalizing on our strong brands and marketplace reputation. We will seek to build on the momentum of 2007 with increased 

brand and product awareness. 

	 • �Execution of our strategic and capital initiatives. We formalized our capital management strategy during 2007 and established 

several financial targets which will guide our capital management decisions during 2008 and beyond.

	 • �Continued resolution of outstanding legal and regulatory issues. We completed our claim reassessment process during 2007,  

and we expect to resolve additional issues during 2008.

	 • �Professional development of our employees. We have an increased focus on training and development as well as talent 

management and building bench strength throughout our Company.
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	 While we are confident in our business outlook, recent market and economic trends indicate the potential for an economic slowdown. 

We believe the steps we have previously taken, such as product diversification across sectors and locations; the shift in our business  

mix; our disciplined underwriting, pricing, claims, and expense management; the positioning of our investment portfolio; and the 

implementation of a capital management strategy which we believe provides financial flexibility will somewhat mitigate the potential 

impact of an economic slowdown on our operating results. 

2007 Significant Transactions and Events 

Revised Claim Reassessment Reserve Estimate
	 As previously noted, we implemented a claim reassessment process as a result of the settlement agreements we entered into with various 

state insurance regulators in the fourth quarter of 2004 and the settlement agreement we entered into with the California Department of 

Insurance (DOI) in the third quarter of 2005. In the second quarter of 2007, we increased our provision for the estimated cost of this claim 

reassessment process $53.0 million before tax and $34.5 million after tax based on changes in our emerging experience for the number 

of decisions being overturned and the average cost per reassessed claim. 

	 The revised second quarter of 2007 estimate was based on the cost of approximately 99 percent of the potential inventory of claim 

reassessment information forms returned to us, with our claim reassessment on approximately 88 percent of the forms completed at that 

time. At the time of our second quarter of 2007 revision, we had not yet finalized our claim reassessment on the remaining forms but had 

performed a financial review and included that information in our analysis of emerging experience. Additional information regarding the 

second quarter revision to our estimate is as follows:

	 1. �For the second quarter of 2007, the overturn rate averaged 48 percent and was 45 percent for the first six months of 2007. 

	 2. �The average overturn rate was 40 percent at June 2007 from inception to date, compared to 37 percent at December 2006. 

	 3. �The average incurred cost per reassessed claim during the first six months of 2007 was above the assumption we used for  

our third quarter 2006 revision.

	 4. �Our assumption concerning the total number of claims projected to be reassessed remained at approximately 23,000, with slightly 

more claims for group long-term disability and fewer for individual disability.

	 5. �We increased our previous estimate for benefit costs for claims reopened for our Unum US group long-term disability product line 

$76.5 million. The revision related to the increase during the second quarter of 2007 in the overturn rate and the average cost,  

as well as a slightly higher number of claims.

	 6. �We decreased our previous estimate for benefit costs for claims reopened for our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment 

$10.7 million. Although the experience relative to our assumptions for the overturn rate was slightly higher, experience indicated 

that the total number of claims for this segment would be less than our previous assumptions. 

	 7. �We decreased our previous estimate for the additional incremental direct claim reassessment operating expenses $12.8 million 

due to our projections for an earlier completion of the reassessment process. We released $10.3 million for Unum US group long-

term disability and $2.5 million for our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment. 

	 8. �These second quarter of 2007 adjustments to our claim reassessment costs decreased 2007 before-tax operating earnings for  

our Unum US group disability line of business $66.2 million and increased 2007 before-tax operating earnings for our Individual 

Disability — Closed Block segment $13.2 million. 

	 We have now completed the claims reassessment process, with no further adjustments to our provision for the estimated claim 

reassessment costs. See “2006 Significant Transactions and Events” and “2005 Significant Transactions and Events” contained herein  

for further discussion of the claim reassessment process and the settlement agreements.
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Financing
	 The scheduled remarketing of the senior note element of our 2004 adjustable conversion-rate equity units (units) occurred in February 

2007, as stipulated by the terms of the original offering, and we reset the interest rate on $300.0 million of senior notes due May 15, 2009 

to 5.859%. We purchased $150.0 million of the senior notes in the remarketing which were subsequently retired. In May 2007, we settled 

the purchase contract element of the 2004 units by issuing 17.7 million shares of common stock. We received proceeds of approximately 

$300.0 million from the transaction. 

	 In June 2007, we purchased and retired $34.5 million of our 6.85% senior debentures due 2015. 

	 On October 31, 2007, Northwind Holdings, a newly formed Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of 

Unum Group, issued $800.0 million of floating rate, insured, senior, secured notes due 2037 in a private offering. The notes bear interest at 

a floating rate equal to the three month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 0.78%. Recourse for the payment of principal, interest, 

and other amounts due on the notes will be dependent principally on the receipt of dividends from Northwind Re, the sole subsidiary of 

Northwind Holdings. The ability of Northwind Re to pay dividends to Northwind Holdings will depend on its satisfaction of applicable 

regulatory requirements and on the performance of the business of Paul Revere Life, Provident, and Unum America (collectively, the ceding 

insurers) reinsured by Northwind Re. None of Unum Group, the ceding insurers, Northwind Re, or any other affiliate of Northwind Holdings 

is an obligor or guarantor on the notes. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” contained herein and Notes 9 and 16 of the “Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements” for additional information on Northwind Holdings and Northwind Re.

	 In November 2007, we purchased and retired $17.5 million of our outstanding 6.75% notes scheduled to mature in 2028. 

	 During December 2007, pursuant to a tender offer, we purchased and retired $23.5 million aggregate liquidation amount of the 7.405% 

junior subordinated debt securities due 2038; $99.9 million aggregate principal amount of the 7.625% notes due 2011; $210.5 million 

aggregate principal amount of the 7.375% notes due 2032; and $66.1 million aggregate principal amount of the 6.75% notes due 2028. 

We also called and retired all $150.0 million principal amount of our outstanding 7.25% notes scheduled to mature in 2032. 

	 Throughout 2007, we made principal payments of $17.5 million on our senior secured non-recourse notes issued by our wholly-owned 

subsidiary Tailwind Holdings.

	 The cost related to the early retirement of debt during 2007 decreased our 2007 operating results approximately $58.8 million before 

tax, or $38.3 million after tax.

	 In December 2007, we established a $400.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility.

	 During 2007 our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $700.0 million of Unum Group’s common stock. During January 

2008, we repurchased approximately 14.0 million shares for $350.0 million, using an accelerated share repurchase agreement. Under the 

terms of the repurchase agreement, we may receive, or be required to pay, a price adjustment based on the volume weighted average 

price of our common stock during the term of the agreement. Any price adjustment payable to us will be settled in shares of our common 

stock. Any price adjustment we are required to pay will be settled, at our option, in either cash or common stock. We expect the price 

adjustment to settle on or before the completion of the agreement in May 2008.

	 See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” contained herein and Note 9 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for 

additional information. 

Dispositions
	 During the first quarter of 2007, we completed the sale of our wholly-owned subsidiary, GENEX Services, Inc. (GENEX), a leading workers’ 

compensation and medical cost containment services provider. Our growth strategy is focused on the development of our primary markets, 

and GENEX’s specialty role in case management and medical cost containment related to the workers’ compensation market was no 

longer consistent with our overall strategic direction. We recognized an after-tax gain on the transaction of approximately $6.2 million. 

See Note 2 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additional information.
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Income Tax
	 The income tax rate in the U.K. will be reduced from 30 percent to 28 percent in April 2008. In accordance with U.S. generally accepted 

accounting principles (GAAP), we are required to adjust deferred tax assets and liabilities through income on the date of enactment of  

a rate change, which occurred during the third quarter of 2007. Therefore, we recorded a reduction of $1.7 million to our income tax 

expense in the third quarter of 2007 to reflect the impact of the rate change on our net deferred tax liability related to our U.K. operations. 

Other
	 During the first quarter of 2008, we established a new non-insurance company, Unum Ireland Limited, which is an indirect wholly-owned 

subsidiary of Unum Group. The purpose of Unum Ireland Limited is to expand our information technology resource options to ensure that 

our resource capacity keeps pace with the growing demand for information technology support. We anticipate that this subsidiary, which 

will be located in Carlow, Ireland, will have approximately 50 full-time employees by the end of 2008.

Accounting Pronouncements
	 Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Position 05-1 (SOP 05-1), Accounting by Insurance Enterprises for 

Deferred Acquisition Costs in Connection With Modifications or Exchanges of Insurance Contracts. SOP 05-1 provides guidance on accounting 

by insurance enterprises for deferred acquisition costs (DAC) on internal replacements of insurance and investment contracts other than 

those specifically described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 97, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises  

for Certain Long-Duration Contracts and for Realized Gains and Losses from the Sale of Investments. The cumulative effect of applying  

the provisions of SOP 05-1 decreased our 2007 opening balance of retained earnings $445.2 million. 

	 Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting 

for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 (SFAS 109). FIN 48 clarifies the 

accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109. Unlike SFAS 109, 

FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax 

position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and 

penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 increased 

our 2007 opening balance of retained earnings $22.7 million.

	 Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 155 (SFAS 155), Accounting 

for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, an amendment of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Nos. 133 (SFAS 133) and 140 

(SFAS 140). SFAS 155: (a) permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative  

that otherwise would require bifurcation; (b) clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements  

of SFAS 133; (c) establishes a requirement to evaluate beneficial interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that are 

freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation; (d) clarifies 

that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives; and, (e) eliminates restrictions on a qualifying 

special-purpose entity’s ability to hold passive derivative financial instruments that pertain to beneficial interests that are or contain a 

derivative financial instrument. The adoption of SFAS 155 did not have a material effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

	 Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (SFAS 157), Fair Value Measurements, was issued in September 2006. SFAS 157 

defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. We will 

adopt the provisions of SFAS 157 effective January 1, 2008. The adoption of SFAS 157 will not have a material effect on our financial 

position or results of operations. 
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2006 Significant Transactions and Events

Revised Claim Reassessment Reserve Estimate
	 In the first quarter of 2006, we completed an analysis of our assumptions related to the reserves we established for our claim reassessment 

process. Our analysis was based on preliminary data as of the end of the first quarter of 2006, when actual results to date were considered 

credible enough to enable us to update our initial expectations of costs related to the reassessment process. We concluded that a change 

in our initial assumptions, primarily related to the number of claimants for whom payments will continue because the claimant remains 

eligible for disability payments, was warranted. We based our conclusion and our revised estimate on the information that existed at  

that time, which was the actual cost related to approximately 20 percent of the projected ultimate total number of claims expected to be 

reassessed. The characteristics, profile, and cost of those initial 20 percent of claims were more statistically credible than the information 

on which we based the initial charges in 2004 and 2005. Based on our analysis, in the first quarter of 2006 we recorded a charge of 

$86.0 million before tax, or $55.9 million after tax, to reflect our then current estimate of future obligations for benefit costs for claims 

reopened in the reassessment. The first quarter charge decreased 2006 before-tax operating results for our Unum US group disability line  

of business $72.8 million and our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment $13.2 million.

	 In the third quarter of 2006, we increased our provision for the cost of the reassessment process $325.4 million before tax and 

$211.5 million after tax based on changes in our emerging experience for the number of decisions being overturned by the reassessment 

process and the average cost per reassessed claim. The revised third quarter estimate was based on the cost of approximately 55 percent 

of the projected ultimate total number of claims expected to be reassessed. The third quarter charge was comprised of $310.4 million to 

reflect our revised estimate of future obligations for benefit costs for claims reopened in the reassessment and $15.0 million for additional 

incremental direct claim reassessment operating expenses because of the additional time then estimated to complete the process. Our 

best estimate of $310.4 million for the reopened claims assumed that the nature and characteristics of the approximately 45 percent 

remaining claims estimated to be reassessed at that time would be similar to the average profile of the 55 percent already reviewed at 

that time. The third quarter charge decreased before-tax operating results for our Unum US group disability line of business $291.4 million 

and our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment $34.0 million.

Regulatory Investigations
	 Beginning in 2004, several of our insurance subsidiaries’ insurance regulators requested information relating to the subsidiaries’ policies 

and practices on one or more aspects of broker compensation, quoting insurance business, and related matters. Additionally, we responded 

to investigations about certain of these same matters by state attorneys general and the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL). Following highly 

publicized litigation involving the alleged practices of a major insurance broker, the NAIC has undertaken to provide a uniform Compensation 

Disclosure Amendment to the Producer Licensing Model Act that can be adopted by states in an effort to provide uniform guidance to 

insurers, brokers, and customers relating to disclosure of broker compensation. We expect there to be continued uncertainty surrounding 

this matter until clearer regulatory guidelines are established.

	 In June 2004, we received a subpoena from the NYAG requesting documents and information relating to compensation arrangements 

between insurance brokers or intermediaries and us and our subsidiaries. In November 2006 we entered into a settlement agreement  

on broker compensation with the NYAG in the form of an assurance of discontinuance that provided for a national restitution fund of 

$15.5 million and a fine of $1.9 million. We expect that the restitution fund will be fully distributed by December 2008. 

	 We support the full disclosure of compensation paid to both brokers and agents and have implemented policies to facilitate customers 

obtaining information regarding broker compensation from their brokers. Additionally, we provide appropriate notices to customers stating 

our policy surrounding disclosure and provide information on our Company website about our broker compensation programs. Under 

these policies, any customer who wants specific broker compensation related information can obtain this information by contacting our 

Broker Compensation Services at a toll-free number. Other changes implemented during 2006 included requiring customer approval of 

compensation paid by us to the broker when the customer is also paying a fee to the broker and strengthening certain policies and 

procedures associated with new business and quoting activities. 
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Financing
	 The scheduled remarketing of the senior note element of our 2003 units occurred in February 2006, as stipulated by the terms of the original 

offering, and we reset the interest rate on $575.0 million of senior notes due May 15, 2008 to 5.997%. We purchased $400.0 million of 

the senior notes in the remarketing which were subsequently retired. In May 2006, we settled the purchase contract element of the units 

by issuing 43.3 million shares of common stock. We received proceeds of approximately $575.0 million from the transaction. 

	 In the second quarter of 2006, we purchased and retired $50.0 million aggregate liquidation amount of our outstanding 7.405% 

junior subordinated debt securities due 2038 and $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of our outstanding 7.625% notes due 2011.  

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we purchased $32.0 million aggregate principal amount of our outstanding 6.850% notes due 2015. 

	 The cost related to the early retirement of debt decreased our 2006 annual income approximately $25.8 million before tax, or  

$16.9 million after tax.

	 In November 2006, Tailwind Holdings, a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Unum Group, issued 

$130.0 million of floating rate, insured, senior, secured notes in a private offering. The payment of principal, interest, and other amounts 

due on the notes will be dependent principally on the receipt of dividends from Tailwind Reinsurance Company (Tailwind Re), the sole 

subsidiary of Tailwind Holdings. The ability of Tailwind Re to pay dividends to Tailwind Holdings will depend on its satisfaction of applicable 

regulatory requirements and on the performance of the reinsured claims of Unum America reinsured by Tailwind Re. None of Unum Group, 

Unum America, Tailwind Re, or any other affiliate of Tailwind Holdings is an obligor or guarantor on the notes. See “Liquidity and Capital 

Resources” contained herein and Notes 9 and 16 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additional information on 

Tailwind Holdings and Tailwind Re.

Income Tax 
	 Included in 2006 operating results is income of $2.6 million before tax and approximately $3.9 million after tax attributable to the receipt 

of interest and tax refunds on prior year tax items in excess of what was previously provided.

	 Additionally, in 2006 we recognized an income tax benefit of approximately $91.9 million as the result of the reversal of tax liabilities 

related primarily to group relief benefits recognized from the use of net operating losses in a foreign jurisdiction in which our businesses 

operate. 

Accounting Pronouncements
	 Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) (SFAS 123(R)), Share-Based 

Payment, which is a revision to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (SFAS 123), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. 

SFAS 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee service in exchange for share-based 

payments. Under SFAS 123(R), share-based awards that do not require future service (i.e., vesting awards) are expensed immediately. 

Share-based employee awards that require future service are amortized over the relevant service period. We adopted SFAS 123(R) using 

the modified prospective transition method. Under this method, the provisions are generally applied only to share-based awards granted 

after adoption. The adoption of SFAS 123(R) did not have a material effect on our financial position or results of operations. Additional 

information concerning the adoption of SFAS 123(R) can be found in Notes 1 and 12 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

	 Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Staff Position No. FAS 115-1  

(FSP 115-1), The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments, which addresses the determination 

of when an investment is considered impaired, whether the impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of an impairment 

loss. FSP 115-1 also includes accounting considerations subsequent to the recognition of other-than-temporary impairment and requires 

certain disclosures about unrealized losses. The adoption of FSP 115-1 did not have a material effect on our financial position or results 

of operations.
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	 Effective December 31, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 (SFAS 158), Employers’ 

Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). 

SFAS 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit pension and other postretirement 

plans as an asset or liability in its balance sheet and to recognize changes in that funded status through comprehensive income. Also, 

under SFAS 158, defined benefit pension and other postretirement plan assets and obligations are to be measured as of the date of the 

employer’s fiscal year-end. The adoption of SFAS 158, which resulted in an $84.1 million decrease in accumulated other comprehensive 

income in stockholders’ equity, had no effect on our results of operations. 

2005 Significant Transactions and Events

California Settlement Agreement and Amendment of the Multistate Market Conduct 
Examination Settlement Agreements
	 In October 2005, certain of our insurance subsidiaries entered into a settlement agreement with the California DOI in connection with a 

market conduct examination and investigation of the subsidiaries’ disability claims handling practices. The California DOI had chosen not 

to join the fourth quarter of 2004 multistate settlement agreements our insurance subsidiaries entered into with state insurance regulators  

of 48 states upon conclusion of a multistate market conduct examination. The 2004 multistate examination resulted in a report and 

regulatory settlement agreements that became effective on December 21, 2004. 

	 As part of the settlement with the California DOI, we paid a civil penalty of $8.0 million and agreed to change certain practices  

and policy provisions related to our California business. The settlement also incorporated claims handling practices previously covered  

by the multistate settlement agreements and included certain additional claims handling changes. Under the terms of the settlement,  

we changed certain provisions specific to California disability policies. Additionally as part of the settlement, we received approval from 

the California DOI for the use of new individual and group disability policy forms, which became available for sale on November 1, 2005. 

	 The California settlement also incorporated the claim reassessment process contained in the 2004 multistate settlement agreements. 

California claimants were included in the 2004 multistate settlement agreements and could have chosen to participate in that claim 

reassessment process even though California did not join the multistate settlement agreements. Under the California agreement, reassessment 

notices were mailed to approximately 26,000 individuals whose claims were denied or terminated between January 1, 1997, and 

September 30, 2005. Many of these individuals had already received reassessment notices under the multistate settlement agreements. 

Additionally, as part of the California agreement, an individual whose claim denial or termination was upheld by our reassessment unit 

could request an independent review by a member of a panel established for that purpose. 

	 We amended the multistate settlement agreements to include mailing a notice of eligibility to participate in the claim reassessment 

process to approximately 29,500 individuals whose claims were denied or terminated between January 1, 1997, and December 31, 1999. 

Under the original multistate settlement agreements, claimants during this period could request participation in the reassessment process, 

but they were not sent a notice. Those claimants who were eligible to participate but did not receive notice pursuant to the amendment 

remained eligible to request participation until June 30, 2006. 

	 Separately, we offered to reassess private label, acquired, and reinsured block claims, as well as claims administered on behalf  

of certain employers from January 1, 1997, through January 18, 2005 (and through September 30, 2005 for California residents). These 

approximately 24,000 claims were not included in the 2004 multistate settlement agreements, but the offer to reassess generally followed 

the reassessment procedures contained in those agreements.

	 Based on the settlement agreement and related matters as they existed at that time period, in the third quarter of 2005 we recorded 

a charge of $75.0 million before tax, or $51.6 million after tax, comprised of four elements: $14.3 million of incremental direct operating 

expenses to conduct the reassessment process; $37.3 million for benefit costs and reserves from claims reopened from the reassessment; 

$15.4 million for additional benefit costs and reserves for claims already incurred and currently in inventory that were anticipated as a result  
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of the claim process changes being implemented; and the $8.0 million civil penalty. The charge decreased before-tax operating results  

for the Unum US segment group disability line of business and supplemental and voluntary lines of business $37.4 million and $3.3 million, 

respectively, and the Individual Disability — Closed Block segment $34.3 million. The ongoing costs of changes in the claims handling 

process and governance improvements have subsequently been included in our operating expenses as incurred. See preceding “2007 

Significant Transactions and Events” and “2006 Significant Transactions and Events” for a discussion of subsequent revisions to our initial 

claim reassessment cost estimates. 

Acquisitions and Dispositions
	 During 2005, GENEX acquired Independent Review Services, Inc., a provider of medical diagnostic networks and independent medical 

examinations, at a price of $3.5 million. 

	 During 2005, Unum UK completed the sale of its Netherlands branch. The gain on the sale was approximately $4.0 million after tax. 

	 During 2005, we disposed of our remaining 40 percent ownership position in our Argentinean operation and recognized an after  

tax gain of approximately $0.4 million.

Income Tax
	 Under the Life Insurance Company Tax Act of 1959, U.S. stock life insurance companies were required to maintain a policyholders’ surplus 

account containing the accumulated portion of income which had not been subjected to income tax in the year earned. The Deficit 

Reduction Act of 1984 required that no future amounts be added after 1983 to the policyholders’ surplus account and that any future 

distributions to shareholders from the account would become subject to federal income tax at the general corporate federal income tax 

rate then in effect. During 2004, the Homeland Investment Act of 2004 was enacted. The Homeland Investment Act of 2004 provided,  

in part, that distributions from policyholders’ surplus accounts during 2005 and 2006 would not be taxed.

	 The amount of the policyholders’ surplus accounts of our U.S. insurance subsidiaries at December 31, 2004, was approximately 

$228.8 million. Distributions made during 2005 by these life insurance subsidiaries, including dividend distributions, were deemed to 

occur first from the policyholders’ surplus accounts. As a result, our U.S. life insurance subsidiaries distributed as dividends the remaining 

balance of their policyholders’ surplus accounts to the holding company during 2005. This resulted in the elimination of a future potential 

tax of approximately $80.1 million, which had not previously been provided for in current or deferred taxes because management 

considered the conditions under which such a tax would be paid to be remote. This will also allow us to engage in transactions in the 

future without concern for triggering a tax liability related to distributions from the policyholders’ surplus accounts. 

	 In April 2005, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) completed its examination of tax years 1999 through 2001 and issued its revenue 

agent’s report (RAR). Income tax liabilities of approximately $32.0 million that related primarily to interest on the timing of expense 

deductions were released in the first quarter of 2005, all of which was reflected as a reduction to income tax expense. In the fourth 

quarter of 2005, we paid the IRS proposed adjustments for its 1999 through 2001 tax years and subsequently filed claims for refund on 

disputed issues. 

	 In the third quarter of 2005, we recognized an income tax benefit of approximately $10.8 million related to the finalization of income 

tax reviews of our U.K. subsidiaries. 

	 During the fourth quarter of 2005, we repatriated $454.8 million in unremitted foreign earnings from our U.K. subsidiaries under the 

Homeland Investment Act of 2004. In connection with the repatriation, we recorded current taxes payable on such previously unremitted 

foreign earnings of approximately $15.3 million and recorded a tax benefit of approximately $18.6 million as a result of the reversal of the 

deferred tax liability related to unremitted earnings of our foreign subsidiaries, both of which were included in the results reported for 2005.

Financing
	 During 2005, we repaid $227.0 million of maturing debt. In conjunction with the repatriation, in November 2005, we completed a long-term 

debt offering, issuing $400.0 million of 6.85% senior notes due November 15, 2015. 
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Closed Block Reinsurance Recapture from Centre Life Reinsurance Ltd.
	 During 2005, we recaptured a closed block of individual disability business that included approximately $1.6 billion in invested assets 

and $185.0 million of annual premium. The effective date of the recapture was August 8, 2005. 

	 Prior to recapture, the reinsurance contract had an embedded derivative that required the bifurcation of the derivative from the basic 

reinsurance contract. The fair value attributed to the embedded derivative was reported in fixed maturity securities, and the change in 

the fair value of this embedded derivative was reported as a realized investment gain or loss during the period of change. At the date  

of recapture, the embedded derivative was terminated, and the time value component of this derivative was recognized as a realized 

investment loss of $9.4 million before tax.

	 The underlying operating results of the reinsurance contract, prior to recapture, were reflected in other income. The recapture therefore 

did not have a material impact on operating income for the Individual Disability — Closed Block segment. 

	 On a statutory basis of reporting, the recapture increased statutory surplus $57.5 million in Unum America. The recapture did not 

have a material impact on our targeted RBC objectives for our U.S. insurance subsidiaries. 

Critical Accounting Estimates
	 We prepare our financial statements in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 

us to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in our financial statements and accompanying notes. The accounting 

estimates we deem to be most critical to our results of operations and balance sheets are those related to reserves for policy and contract 

benefits, deferred acquisition costs, investments, and income taxes. Estimates and assumptions could change in the future as more 

information becomes known, which could impact the amounts reported and disclosed in our financial statements.

	 For additional information, refer to our significant accounting policies in Note 1 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.” 

Reserves for Policy and Contract Benefits
	 Our largest liabilities are reserves for claims that we estimate we will eventually pay to our policyholders. The two primary categories 

of reserves are policy reserves for claims not yet incurred and claim reserves for claims that have been incurred or are estimated to have 

been incurred but not yet reported to us. These reserves equaled $36.9 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006, or approximately 80 percent 

of our total liabilities. Reserves ceded to reinsurers were $6.6 billion and $7.6 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and  

are reported as a reinsurance recoverable in our consolidated balance sheets. 

Policy Reserves

	 Policy reserves are established in the same period we issue a policy and equal the difference between projected future policy benefits 

and future premiums, allowing a margin for expenses and profit. These reserves relate primarily to our traditional non interest-sensitive 

products, including our individual disability, individual and group long-term care, and voluntary benefits products in our Unum US segment; 

individual disability products in our Unum UK segment; disability and cancer and critical illness policies in our Colonial Life segment; and, 

the Individual Disability — Closed Block segment products. The reserves are calculated based on assumptions that were appropriate at the 

date the policy was issued and are not subsequently modified unless the policy reserves become inadequate (i.e., loss recognition occurs). 

	 • Persistency assumptions are based on our actual historical experience adjusted for future expectations. 

	 • �Claim incidence and claim resolution rate assumptions related to mortality and morbidity are based on actual experience  

or industry standards adjusted as appropriate to reflect our actual experience and future expectations. 

	 • �Discount rate assumptions are based on our current and expected net investment returns. 

	 In establishing policy reserves, we use assumptions that reflect our best estimate while considering the potential for adverse variances 

in actual future experience, which results in a total policy reserve balance that has an embedded reserve for adverse deviation. We do 

not, however, establish an explicit and separate reserve as a provision for adverse deviation from our assumptions.

65977_FIN_Blueline.indd   14 3/27/08   2:24:16 PM



Management’s Discussion and Analysis of  
Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of  
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Unum 2007 Annual Report       31

	 We perform loss recognition tests on our policy reserves annually, or more frequently if appropriate, using best estimate assumptions 

as of the date of the test, without a provision for adverse deviation. We group the policy reserves for each major product line within a 

segment when we perform the loss recognition tests. If the policy reserves determined using these best estimate assumptions are higher 

than our existing policy reserves net of any deferred acquisition cost balance, the existing policy reserves are increased or deferred 

acquisition costs are reduced to immediately recognize the deficiency. Thereafter, the policy reserves for the product line are calculated 

using the same method we used for the loss recognition testing, referred to as the gross premium valuation method, wherein we use our 

best estimate as of the gross premium valuation (loss recognition) date rather than the initial policy issue date to determine the expected 

future claims, commissions, and expenses we will pay and the expected future gross premiums we will receive. 

	 We maintain policy reserves for a policy for as long as the policy remains in force, even after a separate claim reserve is established. 

	 Policy reserves for Unum US, Unum UK, and Colonial Life products, which at December 31, 2007 represented approximately 31.8 percent, 

0.2 percent, and 9.0 percent, respectively, of our total gross policy reserves, are determined using the net level premium method as 

prescribed by GAAP. In applying this method, we use, as applicable by product type, morbidity and mortality incidence rate assumptions, 

claim resolution rate assumptions, and policy persistency assumptions, among others, to determine our expected future claim payments 

and expected future premium income. We then apply an interest, or discount, rate to determine the present value of the expected future 

claims, commissions, and expenses we will pay and the expected future premiums we will receive, with a provision for profit allowed. 

	 Policy reserves for our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment, which at December 31, 2007, represented approximately  

13.6 percent of our total gross policy reserves, are determined using the gross premium valuation method based on assumptions established 

as of January 1, 2004, the date of loss recognition. Key assumptions are policy persistency, claim incidence, claim resolution rates, commission 

rates, and maintenance expense rates. We then apply an interest, or discount, rate to determine the present value of the expected future 

claims, commissions, and expenses we will pay as well as the expected future premiums we will receive. There is no provision for profit. 

The interest rate is based on our expected net investment returns on the investment portfolio supporting the reserves for this segment. 

Under the gross premium valuation method, we do not include an embedded provision for the risk of adverse deviation from these 

assumptions. Gross premium valuation assumptions do not change after the date of loss recognition unless reserves are again determined 

to be deficient. We perform loss recognition tests on the policy reserves for this block of business quarterly. 

	 The Other segment includes products no longer actively marketed, the majority of which have been reinsured. Policy reserves for this 

segment represent $5.5 billion on a gross basis, or approximately 45.4 percent, of our total policy reserves. We have ceded $3.9 billion of the 

related policy reserves to reinsurers. The ceded reserve balance is reported in our consolidated balance sheets as a reinsurance recoverable. 

We continue to service a block of group pension products, which we have not ceded, and the policy reserves for these products are based 

on expected mortality rates and retirement rates. Expected future payments are discounted at interest rates reflecting the anticipated 

investment returns for the assets supporting the liabilities. 

Claim Reserves

	 Claim reserves are established when a claim is incurred or is estimated to have been incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) to us and,  

as prescribed by GAAP, equals our long-term best estimate of the present value of the liability for future claim payments and claim 

adjustment expenses. A claim reserve is based on actual known facts regarding the claim, such as the benefits available under the 

applicable policy, the covered benefit period, and the age and occupation of the claimant, as well as assumptions derived from our actual 

historical experience and expected future changes in experience for factors such as the claim duration and discount rate. Reserves for 

IBNR claims, similar to incurred claim reserves, include our assumptions for claim duration and discount rates but because we do not yet 

know the facts regarding the specific claims, are also based on historical incidence rate assumptions, including claim reporting patterns, 

the average cost of claims, and the expected volumes of incurred claims. Our incurred claim reserves and IBNR claim reserves do not 

include any provision for the risk of adverse deviation from our assumptions.

	 Claim reserves, unlike policy reserves, are subject to revision as current claim experience and projections of future factors affecting 

claim experience change. Each quarter we review our emerging experience to ensure that our claim reserves are appropriate. If we believe, 

based on our actual experience and our view of future events, that our long-term assumptions need to be modified, we adjust our 

reserves accordingly with a charge or credit to our current period income.
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	 Multiple estimation methods exist to establish claim reserve liabilities, with each method having its own advantages and disadvantages. 

Available reserving methods utilized to calculate claim reserves include the tabular reserve method, the paid development method, the 

incurred loss development method, the count and severity method, and the expected claim cost method. No singular method is better 

than the others in all situations and for all product lines. The estimation methods we have chosen are those that we believe produce  

the most reliable reserves at that time.

	 Claim reserves supporting our Unum US group and individual disability and group and individual long-term care lines of business and 

our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment represent approximately 38.5 percent and 42.0 percent, respectively, of our total claim 

reserves at December 31, 2007. We use a tabular reserve methodology for group and individual long-term disability and group and 

individual long-term care claims that have been reported. Under the tabular reserve methodology, reserves for reported claims are based 

on certain characteristics of the actual reported claimants, such as age, length of time disabled, and medical diagnosis. We believe the 

tabular reserve method is the most accurate to calculate long-term liabilities and allows us to use the most available known facts about 

each claim. IBNR claim reserves for our long-term products are calculated using the count and severity method using historical patterns  

of the claims to be reported and the associated claim costs. For group short-term disability products, an estimate of the value of future 

payments to be made on claims already submitted, as well as IBNR claims, is determined in aggregate rather than on the individual 

claimant basis that we use for our long-term products, using historical patterns of claim incidence as well as historical patterns of aggregate 

claim resolution rates. The average length of time between the event triggering a claim under a policy and the final resolution of those 

claims is much shorter for these products than for our long-term liabilities and results in less estimation variability. 

	 Claim reserves supporting the Unum US group life and accidental death and dismemberment products represent approximately 

3.8 percent of our total claim reserves at December 31, 2007. Claim reserves for these products are related primarily to death claims 

reported but not yet paid, IBNR death claims, and a liability for waiver of premium benefits. The death claim reserve is based on the 

actual face amount to be paid, the IBNR reserve is calculated using the count and severity method, and the waiver of premium benefits 

reserve is calculated using the tabular reserve methodology. 

	 Claim reserves supporting our Unum UK segment represent approximately 10.8 percent of our total claim reserves at December 31, 

2007, and are calculated using generally the same methodology that we use for Unum US disability and group life reserves. The persistency 

rates we assume in calculating claim reserves for this line of business are based on standard United Kingdom industry experience, adjusted 

for Unum UK’s own experience. 

	 The majority of the Colonial Life segment lines of business have short-term benefits, which have less estimation variability than our 

long-term products because of the shorter claim payout period. Our claim reserves for Colonial Life’s lines of business, which approximate 

1.4 percent of our total claim reserves at December 31, 2007, are predominantly determined using the incurred loss development method 

based on our own experience. The incurred loss development method uses the historical patterns of payments by loss date to predict 

future claim payments for each loss date. Where the incurred loss development method may not be appropriate, we estimate the incurred 

claims using an expected claim cost per policy or other measure of exposure. The key assumptions for claim reserves for the Colonial Life 

lines of business are: 1) the timing, rate, and amount of estimated future claim payments; and 2) the estimated expenses associated 

with the payment of claims. 

	 The following table displays policy reserves, incurred claim reserves, and IBNR claim reserves by major product line, with the 

summation of the policy reserves and claim reserves shown both gross and net of the associated reinsurance recoverable. Incurred claim 

reserves represent reserves determined for each incurred claim and also include estimated amounts for litigation expenses and other 

expenses associated with the payment of the claims as well as provisions for claims which we estimate will be reopened for our long-

term care products. IBNR claim reserves include provisions for incurred but not reported claims and a provision for reopened claims for  

our disability products. The IBNR and reopen claim reserves for our disability products are developed and maintained in aggregate based 

on historical monitoring that has only been on a combined basis. 
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	 December 31, 2007	
			   Gross				    Total		
	 Policy			  Claim Reserves			   Reinsurance	 Total

(in millions of dollars)	 Reserves	 %	 Incurred	 IBNR	 %	 Total (1)	 Ceded	 Net

Group Disability	 $	 —	 —%	 $	 7,770.4	 $	 596.9	 33.8%	 $	 8,367.3	 $	 92.9	 $	 8,274.4 

Group Life and Accidental 

	 Death & Dismemberment	 	 73.9	 0.6		  772.4		  178.5	 3.8		  1,024.8		  3.4		  1,021.4 

Individual Disability — Recently Issued	 	 458.4	 3.8		  822.4		  72.5	 3.6		  1,353.3		  79.4		  1,273.9 

Long-term Care		 2,478.2	 20.4		  244.3		  32.6	 1.1		  2,755.1		  52.6		  2,702.5 

Voluntary Benefits	 	 853.1	 7.0		  19.1		  35.0	 0.2		  907.2		  14.6		  892.6 

Unum US Segment	 	 3,863.6	 31.8		  9,628.6		  915.5	 42.5		 14,407.7		  242.9		 14,164.8 

Unum UK Segment	 	 30.7	 0.2		  2,420.4		  268.8	 10.8		  2,719.9		  149.3		  2,570.6 

Colonial Life Segment	 	 1,091.7	 9.0		  239.9		  104.1	 1.4		  1,435.7		  33.4		  1,402.3

Individual Disability —  

	 Closed Block Segment	 	 1,657.2	 13.6		 10,013.8		  391.7	 42.0		 12,062.7		 1,374.4		 10,688.3

Other Segment	 	 5,515.2	 45.4		  518.3		  288.9	 3.3		  6,322.4		 4,770.8		  1,551.6

Subtotal, Excl. Unrealized Adj.	 $	12,158.4	 100.0%	 $	22,821.0	 $	1,969.0	 100.0%	 $	36,948.4	 $	6,570.8		 30,377.6

Adjustment to Reserves for  

	 Unrealized Investment Gains														              859.3 (1)

Consolidated													             $	31,236.9

	 December 31, 2006	
			   Gross				    Total		
	 Policy			  Claim Reserves			   Reinsurance	 Total

(in millions of dollars)	 Reserves	 %	 Incurred	 IBNR	 %	 Total (1)	 Ceded	 Net

Group Disability	 $	 —	 —%	 $	 7,563.0	 $	 790.3	 34.3%	 $	 8,353.3	 $	 101.5	 $	 8,251.8 

Group Life and Accidental 

	 Death & Dismemberment		  63.1	 0.5		  736.5		  202.2	 3.9		  1,001.8		  2.7		  999.1 

Individual Disability —Recently Issued	 	 431.8	 3.4		  718.9		  71.5	 3.3		  1,222.2		  76.7		  1,145.5 

Long-term Care		  2,067.2	 16.4		  195.0		  31.6	 0.9		  2,293.8		  57.1		  2,236.7 

Voluntary Benefits		  787.9	 6.2		  22.3		  36.3	 0.2		  846.5		  13.3		  833.2 

Unum US Segment		  3,350.0	 26.5		  9,235.7		 1,131.9	 42.6		 13,717.6		  251.3		 13,466.3 

Unum UK Segment		  28.9	 0.2		  2,252.8		  286.4	 10.4		  2,568.1		  142.4		  2,425.7 

Colonial Life Segment		  1,021.3	 8.1		  234.5		  100.8	 1.4		  1,356.6		  36.7		  1,319.9	

Individual Disability — 

	 Closed Block Segment		  1,777.8	 14.1		  9,794.9		  443.9	 42.1		 12,016.6		 1,498.7		 10,517.9	

Other Segment		  6,444.3	 51.1		  561.4		  282.1	 3.5		  7,287.8		 5,686.4		  1,601.4	

Subtotal, Excl. Unrealized Adj.	 $	12,622.3	 100.0%	 $	22,079.3	 $	2,245.1	 100.0%	 $	36,946.7	 $	7,615.5		 29,331.2	

Adjustment to Reserves for  

	 Unrealized Investment Gains														              963.1 (1)

Consolidated													             $	30,294.3	

(1)	� Equals the sum of “Policy and Contract Benefits” and “Reserves for Future Policy and Contract Benefits,” as reported in our consolidated balance sheets.			 
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Key Assumptions

	 The calculation of policy and claim reserves involves numerous assumptions, but the primary assumptions used to calculate reserves are 

(1) the discount rate, (2) the claim resolution rate, and (3) the claim incidence rate for policy reserves and IBNR claim reserves. Of these 

assumptions, our discount rate and claim resolution rate assumptions have historically had the most significant effects on our level of 

reserves because many of our product lines provide benefit payments over an extended period of time. 

	 1. �The discount rate, which is used in calculating both policy reserves and incurred and IBNR claim reserves, is the interest rate that 

we use to discount future claim payments to determine the present value. A higher discount rate produces a lower reserve. If the 

discount rate is higher than our future investment returns, our invested assets will not earn enough investment income to support 

our future claim payments. In this case, the reserves may eventually be insufficient. We set our assumptions based on our current 

and expected future investment yield of the assets supporting the reserves, considering current and expected future market 

conditions. If the investment yield on new investments that are purchased is below or above the investment yield of the existing 

investment portfolio, it is likely that the discount rate assumption on new claims will be established below or above the discount 

rate assumption on existing claims to reflect the new investment yield.

	 2. �The claim resolution rate, used for both policy reserves and incurred and IBNR claim reserves, is the probability that a disability 

claim will close due to recovery or death of the insured. It is important because it is used to estimate how long benefits will  

be paid for a claim. Estimated resolution rates that are set too high will result in reserves that are lower than they need to be  

to pay the claim benefits over time. Claim resolution assumptions involve many factors, including the cause of disability, the 

policyholder’s age, the type of contractual benefits provided, and the time since initially becoming disabled. We use our own 

claim experience to develop our claim resolution assumptions. These assumptions are established separately for the probability 

of death and the probability of recovery from disability. Our studies review actual claim resolution experience over a number  

of years, with more weight placed on our experience in the more recent years. We also consider any expected future changes 

in claim resolution experience. 

	 3. �The incidence rate, used for policy reserves and IBNR claim reserves, is the rate at which new claims are submitted to us. The 

incidence rate is affected by many factors including the age of the insured, the insured’s occupation or industry, the benefit plan 

design, and certain external factors such as consumer confidence and levels of unemployment. We establish our incidence 

assumption using a historical review of actual incidence results along with an outlook of future incidence expectations. 

	 Establishing reserve assumptions is complex and involves many factors. Reserves, particularly for policies offering insurance coverage 

for long-term disabilities, are dependent on numerous assumptions other than just those presented in the preceding discussion. The impact 

of internal and external events, such as changes in claims management procedures, economic trends such as the rate of unemployment and 

the level of consumer confidence, the emergence of new diseases, new trends and developments in medical treatments, and legal trends 

and legislative changes, among other factors, will influence claim incidence and resolution rates. Reserve assumptions differ by product 

line and by policy type within a product line. Additionally, in any period and over time, our actual experience may have a positive or 

negative variance from our long-term assumptions, either singularly or collectively, and these variances may offset each other. We test 

the overall adequacy of our reserves using all assumptions and with a long-term view of our expected experience over the life of a block 

of business rather than test just one or a few assumptions independently that may be aberrant over a short period of time. Therefore it is 

not possible to bifurcate the assumptions to evaluate the sensitivity of a change in each assumption, but rather in the aggregate by product 

line. We have presented in the following section an overview of our trend analysis for key assumptions and the results of variability in our 

assumptions, in aggregate, for the reserves which we believe are reasonably possible to have a material impact on our future financial 

results if actual claims yield a materially different amount than what we currently expect and have reserved for, either favorable  

or unfavorable. 
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Trends in Key Assumptions

	 Because our actual experience regarding persistency and claim incidence has varied very little from our policy reserve and IBNR claim 

reserve assumptions, we have had minimal adjustments to our persistency assumptions and claim incidence assumptions during 2006 

and 2007. Generally, we do not expect our mortality and morbidity claim incidence trends or our persistency trends to change significantly 

in the short-term, and to the extent that these trends do change, we expect those changes to be gradual over a longer period of time. 

However, we have historically experienced an increase in our group long-term disability morbidity claim incidence trends during and 

following a recessionary period. Should a recession occur, it is possible that our claim incidence rates for this type of product would increase. 

	 Actual interest rates and the assumptions we use to discount our reserves have generally trended downward for all segments and 

product lines during 2006 and 2007. Reserve discount rate assumptions for new policies and new claims have been adjusted to reflect  

our current and expected net investment returns. Changes in our discount rate assumptions tend to occur gradually over a longer period 

of time because of the long duration investment portfolio needed to support the reserves for the majority of our lines of business.

	 Both the mortality rate experience and the retirement rate experience for our block of group pension products have remained stable 

and consistent with expectations. 

	 Claim resolution rates have a greater chance of significant variability in a shorter period of time than our other reserve assumptions. 

These rates are reviewed on a quarterly basis for the death and recovery components separately. Claim resolution rates in our Unum US 

segment group and individual long-term disability product lines and our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment have over the last 

several years exhibited some variability. Relative to the resolution rate we expect to experience over the life of the block of business, 

actual quarterly rates during the period 2005 through 2007 have varied by +/-3 percent in our Unum US group long-term disability and 

between +8 and -6 percent in our Unum US individual disability — recently issued line of business and in our Individual Disability — Closed 

Block segment. 

	 Claim resolution rates are very sensitive to operational and environmental changes and can be volatile over short periods of time. 

During 2005 and 2006, we experienced quarter to quarter variability in our claim resolution rates. We believe this variability was primarily 

the result of a short-term reduction in the operating effectiveness of our Unum US and Individual Disability — Closed Block segment claims 

management performance. During 2007, we gained more stability in our claims management performance, and our claim resolution 

rates were more consistent with our long-term assumptions. Our claim resolution rate assumption used in determining reserves is our 

expectation of the resolution rate we will experience over the life of the block of business and will vary from actual experience in any 

one period, both favorably and unfavorably. 

	 We monitor and test our reserves for adequacy relative to all of our assumptions in the aggregate. In our estimation, scenarios based 

on reasonably possible variations in each of our reserve assumptions, when modeled together in aggregate, could produce a potential result, 

either positive or negative, in our Unum US group disability line of business that would change our reserve balance by +/– 2.4 percent. Using 

our actual claim reserve balance at December 31, 2007, this variation would have resulted in an approximate change (either positive or 

negative) of $200 million to our claim reserves. Using the same sensitivity analysis approach for our Individual Disability — Closed Block 

segment, the claim reserve balance could potentially vary by +/-1.9 percent of our reported balance, which at December 31, 2007, would 

have resulted in an approximate change (either positive or negative) of $200 million to our claim reserves. The major contributor to the 

variance for both the group long-term disability line of business and the Individual Disability — Closed Block segment is the claim resolution 

rate. We believe that these ranges provide a reasonable estimate of the possible changes in reserve balances for those product lines 

where we believe it is possible that variability in the assumptions, in the aggregate, could result in a material impact on our reserve levels, 

but we record our reserves based on our long-term best estimate. Because these product lines have long-term claim payout periods, 

there is a greater potential for significant variability in claim costs, either positive or negative. 
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Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC)
	 We defer certain costs incurred in acquiring new business and amortize (expense) these costs over the life of the related policies. Deferred 

costs include certain commissions, other agency compensation, selection and policy issue expenses, and field expenses. Acquisition costs 

that do not vary with the production of new business, such as commissions on group products which are generally level throughout the 

life of the policy, are excluded from deferral. 

	 Over 90 percent of our DAC relates to traditional non interest-sensitive products, and we amortize DAC in proportion to the premium 

income we expect to receive over the life of the policies in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 

No. 60, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises. Key assumptions used in developing the future amortization of DAC are future 

persistency and future premium income. We use our own historical experience and expectation of the future performance of our businesses 

in determining the expected persistency and premium income. The estimated premium income in the early years of the amortization 

period is generally higher than in the later years due to higher anticipated policy persistency in the early years, which results in a greater 

proportion of the costs being amortized in the early years of the life of the policy. During the years 2005 and 2006, our key assumptions 

used to develop the future amortization did not change materially. We adopted the provisions of SOP 05-1 effective January 1, 2007. 

The adoption of SOP 05-1 shortened the amortization period of our Unum US and Unum UK group disability, group life, and group accidental 

death and dismemberment products, as shown below. The amortization periods for the other product lines were not impacted by the 

adoption of SOP 05-1. Generally, we do not expect our persistency or interest rates to change significantly in the short-term, and to the 

extent that these trends do change, we expect those changes to be gradual over a longer period of time. 

	 Presented below are our assumptions, both before and after the adoption of SOP 05-1, for the years 2007, 2006, and 2005, regarding 

the length of our amortization periods and the approximate DAC balance that remains at the end of years 3, 10, and 15, as a percentage 

of the cost initially deferred.

	 2007	 2006 and 2005

		  Balance Remaining as a %		  Balance Remianing as a % 
	 Amortization	 of Initial Deferral	 Amortization	 of Initial Deferral

	 Period	 Year 3	 Year 10	 Year 15	 Period	 Year 10	 Year 15

Unum US

	 Group Disability	 6	 25%	 0%	 0%	 20	 25%	 10%

	 Group Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment	 6	 20%	 0%	 0%	 15	 15%	 0%

	 Supplemental and Voluntary

		  Individual Disability — Recently Issued	 20	 75%	 50%	 25%	 20	 50%	 25%

		  Long-term Care	 20	 80%	 55%	 25%	 20	 55%	 25%

		  Voluntary Benefits	 15	 60%	 15%	 0%	 15	 15%	 0%

Unum UK		

	 Group Disability	 6	 25%	 0%	 0%	 15	 20%	 0%

	 Group Life	 6	 20%	 0%	 0%	 15	 20%	 0%

	 Individual Disability	 15	 60%	 15%	 0%	 15	 15%	 0%

Colonial Life	 17	 60%	 20%	 10%	 17	 20%	 10%

	 Amortization of DAC on traditional products is adjusted to reflect the actual policy persistency as compared to the anticipated experience, 

and as a result, the unamortized balance of DAC reflects actual persistency. We may experience accelerated amortization if policies 

terminate earlier than projected. Because our actual experience regarding persistency and premium income has varied very little from 

our assumptions during the last three years, we have had minimal adjustments to our projected amortization of DAC during those years. 

We measure the recoverability of DAC annually by performing gross premium valuations. Our testing indicates that our DAC is recoverable.
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Valuation of Fixed Maturity Securities
	 In determining when a decline in fair value below amortized cost of a fixed maturity security is other than temporary, we evaluate  

the following factors:

	 • �The probability of recovering principal and interest. 

	 • �Our ability and intent to retain the security for a sufficient period of time for it to recover.

	 • �Whether the security is current as to principal and interest payments.

	 • �The significance of the decline in value.

	 • �The time period during which there has been a significant decline in value.

	 • �Current and future business prospects and trends of earnings.

	 • �The valuation of the security’s underlying collateral. 

	 • �Relevant industry conditions and trends relative to their historical cycles. 

	 • �Market conditions. 

	 • �Rating agency actions. 

	 • �Bid and offering prices and the level of trading activity.

	 • �Adverse changes in estimated cash flows for securitized investments. 

	 • �Any other key measures for the related security. 

	 Our review procedures include, but are not limited to, monthly meetings of certain members of our senior management personnel  

to review reports on the entire portfolio, identifying investments with changes in market value of five percent or more, investments with 

changes in rating either by external rating agencies or internal analysts, investments segmented by issuer, industry, and foreign exposure 

levels, and any other relevant investment information to help identify our exposure to possible credit losses. 

	 Based on this review of the entire investment portfolio, individual investments may be added to or removed from our “watch list,” 

which is a list of securities subject to enhanced monitoring and a more intensive review. We also determine if our investment portfolio is 

overexposed to an issuer that is showing warning signs of deterioration and, if so, we make no further purchases of that issuer’s securities 

and may seek opportunities to sell securities we hold from that issuer to reduce our exposure. We monitor below-investment-grade 

securities as to individual exposures and in comparison to the entire portfolio as an additional credit risk management strategy, looking 

specifically at our exposure to individual securities currently classified as below-investment-grade. In determining current and future 

business prospects and cash availability, we consider the parental support of an issuer in its analysis but do not rely heavily on this support.

	 If we determine that the decline in value of an investment is other than temporary, the investment is written down to fair value,  

and an impairment loss is recognized in the current period to the extent of the decline in value. If the decline is considered temporary, 

the security continues to be carefully monitored. These controls have been established to identify our exposure to possible credit losses 

and are intended to give us the ability to respond rapidly. 

	 We have no held-to-maturity fixed maturity securities. All fixed maturity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are reported 

at fair value. Fair values are based on quoted market prices, where available. 

	 Private placement fixed maturity securities had a fair value of approximately $3.9 billion, or 10.9 percent of total fixed maturity 

securities, at December 31, 2007. Private placement fixed maturity securities do not have readily determinable market prices. For these 

securities, we use internally prepared valuations combining matrix pricing with vendor purchased software programs, including valuations 

based on estimates of future profitability, to estimate the fair value. Additionally, we obtain prices from independent third-party brokers 

to establish valuations for certain of these securities. Our ability to liquidate our positions in some of these securities could be impacted to 

a significant degree by the lack of an actively traded market, and we may not be able to dispose of these investments in a timely manner. 

Although we believe our estimates reasonably reflect the fair value of those securities, the key assumptions about the risk-free interest 

rates, risk premiums, performance of underlying collateral (if any), and other factors involve significant assumptions and may not reflect 

those of an active market. We believe that generally these private placement securities carry an average credit quality comparable to 

companies rated Baa or BBB by major credit rating organizations.
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	 As of December 31, 2007, the key assumptions used to estimate the fair value of private placement fixed maturity securities included 

the following: 

	 • �Risk free interest rates of 3.44 percent for five-year maturities to 4.45 percent for 30-year maturities were derived from the current 

yield curve for U.S. Treasury Bonds with similar maturities.

	 • �Current Baa corporate bond spreads ranging from 1.81 percent to 2.15 percent plus an additional 20 basis points were added to the 

risk free rate to reflect the lack of liquidity.

	 • �An additional five basis points were added to the risk free rates for foreign investments.

	 • �Additional basis points were added as deemed appropriate for certain industries and for individual securities in certain industries 

that are considered to be of greater risk.

	 Increasing the 20 basis points added to the risk free rate for lack of liquidity by 1.5 basis points, increasing the five basis points added 

to the risk free rates for foreign investments by one basis point, and increasing the additional basis points added to each industry considered 

to be of greater risk by one basis point would have decreased the December 31, 2007 net unrealized gain in the fixed maturity securities 

portfolio by approximately $1.7 million. Historically, our realized gains or losses on dispositions of private placement fixed maturity securities 

have not varied significantly from amounts estimated under the valuation methodology described above. 

	 Changes in the fair value of fixed maturity securities, other than declines that are determined to be other than temporary, are reported 

as a component of other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. If we subsequently determine that any of these securities are 

other than temporarily impaired, the impairment loss is reported as a realized investment loss in our consolidated statements of income. 

The recognition of the impairment loss does not affect total stockholders’ equity to the extent that the decline in value had been previously 

reflected in other comprehensive income.

	 There are a number of significant risks inherent in the process of monitoring our fixed maturity securities for impairments and 

determining when and if an impairment is other than temporary. These risks and uncertainties include the following possibilities:

	 • �The assessment of a borrower’s ability to meet its contractual obligations will change. 

	 • �The economic outlook, either domestic or foreign, may be less favorable or may have a more significant impact on the borrower 

than anticipated, and as such, the security may not recover in value. 

	 • �New information may become available concerning the security, such as disclosure of accounting irregularities, fraud, or corporate 

governance issues. 

	 • �Significant changes in credit spreads may occur in the related industry.

	 • �Significant increases in interest rates may occur and may not return to levels similar to when securities were initially purchased.

	 • �Adverse rating agency actions may occur.

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans
	 We sponsor several defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit (OPEB) plans for our employees, including non-qualified 

pension plans. The U.S. pension plans comprise the majority of our total benefit obligation and pension expense. Our U.K. operation 

maintains a separate defined benefit plan for eligible employees. The U.K. defined benefit pension plan was closed to new entrants on 

December 31, 2002.

	 We follow Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87 (SFAS 87), Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, No. 106 (SFAS 106), 

Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, No. 132 (SFAS 132), Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and 

Other Postretirement Benefits, and No. 158 (SFAS 158), Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement 

Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) in our financial reporting and accounting for our pension and 

postretirement benefit plans. See Note 10 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further discussion.

	 Our net periodic benefit costs and the value of our benefit obligations for these plans are determined based on a set of economic 

and demographic assumptions that represent our best estimate of future expected experience. Major assumptions used in accounting  

for these plans include the expected discount (interest) rate and the long-term rate of return on plan assets. We also use, as applicable, 

expected increases in compensation levels and a weighted-average annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered benefits, 

which reflects a health care cost trend rate.
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	 The assumptions chosen for our pension and OPEB plans use consistent methodology but reflect the differences in the plan obligations. 

The assumptions are reviewed annually, and we use a December 31 measurement date for each of our plans. The discount rate assumptions 

and expected long-term rate of return assumptions have the most significant effect on our net periodic benefit costs associated with 

these plans. In addition to the effect of changes in our assumptions, the net periodic cost or benefit obligation under our pension and 

OPEB plans may change due to factors such as actual experience being different from our assumptions, special benefits to terminated 

employees, or changes in benefits provided under the plans. 

Discount Rate Assumptions

	 The discount rate is an interest assumption used to convert the benefit payment stream to a present value. We set the discount rate 

assumption at the measurement date for each of our retirement related benefit plans to reflect the yield of a portfolio of high quality fixed 

income debt instruments matched against the timing and amounts of projected future benefits. A lower discount rate increases the present 

value of benefit obligations and increases our costs.

	 The discount rate we used to determine our 2008 net periodic benefit costs for our U.S. pension plans was 6.50 percent. For 2007, 

the discount rate was 6.10 percent prior to the remeasurement date of March 1, 2007, at which time it changed to 5.90 percent. No other 

assumptions were materially changed in the remeasurement, which resulted from the sale of GENEX and the curtailment of the pension 

plan benefits for the employees of GENEX. See Note 10 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further discussion of the 

curtailment and remeasurement. 

	 The discount rate used for the net periodic benefit costs for 2008 and 2007 for our U.K. pension plan was 5.80 percent and  

5.10 percent, respectively. The discount rate used in the net periodic benefit cost for our OPEB plan for 2008 and 2007 was 6.30 percent 

and 5.90 percent, respectively. 

	 Reducing the discount rate assumption by 50 basis points would have resulted in an increase in our 2007 pension expense of 

approximately $13.0 million, before tax, and an increase in our benefit obligation of approximately $115.3 million as of December 31, 

2007, resulting in an after-tax decrease in stockholders’ equity of approximately $74.9 million as of December 31, 2007. A 50 basis point 

reduction in the discount rate assumption would increase our annual OPEB costs by approximately $0.1 million before tax.

	 Increasing the discount rate assumption by 50 basis points would have resulted in a decrease in our 2007 pension expense of 

approximately $11.7 million, before tax, and a decrease in our benefit obligation of approximately $101.0 million as of December 31, 2007, 

resulting in an after-tax increase in stockholders’ equity of approximately $65.7 million as of December 31, 2007. A 50 basis point increase 

in the discount rate assumption would not change our annual OPEB costs.

Long-Term Rate of Return Assumptions

	 The long-term rate of return assumption is the best estimate of the average annual assumed return that will be produced from the pension 

trust assets until current benefits are paid. We use a compound interest method in computing the rate of return on pension plan assets. 

The investment portfolio for our U.S. pension plans during 2007 contained a diversified blend of large cap, mid cap, and small cap equity 

securities, convertible securities, and investment-grade and below-investment-grade fixed income securities. Assets for our U.K. pension 

plan are invested in pooled funds, with approximately 56 percent in diversified growth assets including global equities, hedge funds, 

commodities, below-investment-grade fixed income securities, and currencies. The remainder of the assets for our U.K. plan is predominantly 

invested in fixed interest bonds and index linked bonds. Assets for our OPEB plan are invested primarily within life insurance contracts 

issued by one of our insurance subsidiaries. The terms of these contracts are consistent in all material respects with those the subsidiary 

offers to unaffiliated parties that are similarly situated. 

	 Our expectations for the future investment returns of the asset categories are based on a combination of historical market performance 

and evaluations of investment forecasts obtained from external consultants and economists. The methodology underlying the return 

assumption included the various elements of the expected return for each asset class such as long-term rates of return, volatility of returns, 

and the correlation of returns between various asset classes. The expected return for the total portfolio is calculated based on the plan’s 

strategic asset allocation. Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing basis through annual liability measurements, periodic 

asset/liability studies, and quarterly investment portfolio reviews. Risk tolerance is established through consideration of plan liabilities, 

plan funded status, and corporate financial condition. 
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	 The long-term rate of return on assets used in the net periodic pension costs for our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan for 

2008 and 2007 was 7.50 percent and 8.00 percent, respectively. The long-term rate of return on asset assumption used for 2008 and 2007 

for our U.K. pension plan was 6.90 percent and 6.80 percent, respectively, and for our OPEB plan, 5.75 percent for both years. 

	 Changing the expected long-term rate of return on the plan assets by +/-50 basis points would have changed our 2007 pension plan 

expense by approximately $4.5 million before tax and our OPEB plan expense by approximately $0.1 million before tax. A lower rate of 

return on plan assets increases our expense.

Benefit Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets

	 The market related value equals the fair value of assets, determined as of the measurement date. The assets are not smoothed for 

purposes of SFAS 87. The expected return on assets, therefore, fully recognizes all asset gains and losses through the measurement date.

	 Our pension and OPEB plans have an aggregate unrecognized net actuarial loss and an unrecognized prior service credit, which 

represent the cumulative liability and asset gains and losses and the portion of prior service credits that have not been recognized in 

pension expense. As of December 31, 2007, the unrecognized net loss for these two items combined was approximately $301.8 million 

compared to $352.3 million at December 31, 2006. The decrease is primarily due to the increase in the year end discount rate. Prior to the 

adoption of SFAS 158, unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and prior service costs or credits were amortized as a component of pension 

expense but were not reported in companies’ balance sheets. SFAS 158 requires that actuarial gains or losses and prior service costs or 

credits that have not yet been included in net periodic benefit cost as of the adoption date of SFAS 158 be recognized as components  

of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. The unrecognized gains or losses will be amortized out of accumulated other 

comprehensive income and included as a component of the net benefit cost, as they were prior to the adoption of SFAS 158. Our 2007, 

2006, and 2005 pension and OPEB expense includes $15.3 million, $17.8 million, and $15.2 million, respectively, of amortization of the 

unrecognized net actuarial loss and prior service credit. The unrecognized net actuarial loss for our pension plans, which is $310.6 million 

at December 31, 2007, will be amortized over the average future working life of pension plan participants, currently estimated at 12 years 

for U.S. participants and 15 years for U.K. participants. The unrecognized net actuarial loss of $6.7 million for our OPEB plan will be amortized 

over the average future working life of OPEB plan participants, currently estimated at 11 years, to the extent the loss is outside of a corridor 

established in accordance with GAAP. The corridor is established based on the greater of 10 percent of the plan assets or 10 percent of the 

accumulated postretirement benefit obligation. At December 31, 2007, none of the actuarial loss was outside of the corridor.

	 The fair value of plan assets in our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan was $784.3 million at December 31, 2007, compared  

to $658.5 million at year end 2006. The plan contribution in 2007, coupled with the liability decrease due to increasing discount rates,  

has improved the year end funding level in the plan such that it has a deficit of $43.8 million as of December 31, 2007, compared to 

$151.6 million as of December 31, 2006. The fair value of plan assets in our OPEB plan was $12.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006. 

These assets represent life insurance reserves to fund the life insurance benefit portion of our OPEB plan. Our OPEB plan represents  

a non-vested, non-guaranteed obligation, and current regulations do not require specific funding levels for these benefits, which are 

comprised of retiree life, medical, and dental benefits. It is our practice to use general assets to pay medical and dental claims as they 

come due in lieu of utilizing plan assets for the medical and dental benefit portions of our OPEB plan. We expect to receive subsidies 

under the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 to partially offset these payments. 
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	 Our expected return on plan assets and discount rate discussed above will not affect the cash contributions we are required to make 

to our U.S. pension and OPEB plans because we have met all minimum funding requirements set forth by the Employee Retirement 

Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). We had no regulatory contribution requirements for 2007 and 2006; however, we elected to make 

voluntary contributions of $110.0 million and $92.0 million, respectively, to our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan. We expect to 

make a voluntary contribution of approximately $55.0 million in 2008, based on current tax law. 

	 During 2006, the federal government enacted the Pension Protection Act of 2006 which requires companies to fully fund defined 

benefit pension plans over a seven year period beginning in 2008. We have evaluated this requirement and have made estimates of 

amounts to be funded in the future. Based on this assessment, we do not believe that the funding requirements of the Pension Protection 

Act will cause a material adverse effect on our liquidity. 

	 The fair value of plan assets for our U.K. pension plan was $186.2 million at December 31, 2007, compared to $168.9 million at year 

end 2006. The U.K. pension plan has a deficit of $1.7 million at December 31, 2007, compared to $9.6 million at December 31, 2006. We 

contribute to the plan in accordance with a schedule of contributions which requires that we contribute to the plan at the rate of at least 

18.2 percent of eligible salaries, sufficient to meet the minimum funding requirement under U.K. legislation. During 2006, we made a 

voluntary contribution of $44.2 million to reduce the deficit and required contributions of $9.1 million. During 2007, we made a required 

contribution of £5.3 million, or approximately $10.5 million. We anticipate that we will make contributions during 2008 of approximately 

£5.4 million. 

Income Taxes
	 We record a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. Our valuation 

allowance relates primarily to assets for foreign net operating loss carryforwards and assets for our basis in certain of our foreign 

subsidiaries that are not likely to be realized in the future based on our expectations using currently available evidence. In evaluating the 

ability to recover deferred tax assets, we have considered all available positive and negative evidence including past operating results, 

the existence of cumulative losses in the most recent years, forecasted earnings, future taxable income, and prudent and feasible tax 

planning strategies. In the event we determine that we most likely would not be able to realize all or part of our deferred tax assets in  

the future, an increase to the valuation allowance would be charged to earnings in the period such determination is made. Likewise, if  

it is later determined that it is more likely than not that those deferred tax assets would be realized, the previously provided valuation 

allowance would be reversed. 

	 The calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax laws in a multitude of 

jurisdictions, both domestic and foreign. The amount of income taxes we pay is subject to ongoing audits in various jurisdictions, and  

a material assessment by a governing tax authority could affect profitability. 

	 Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted FIN 48, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial 

statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. The evaluation of a tax 

position under FIN 48 is a two step process. The first step is to determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be 

sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position. The second step is to measure a position that satisfies the 

recognition threshold at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement.  

Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more likely than not threshold but that now satisfy the recognition threshold are recognized  

in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that no longer meet 

the more likely than not recognition threshold are derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold 

is no longer met. If a previously recognized tax position is settled for an amount that is different from the amount initially measured 

under FIN 48, the difference will be recognized as a tax benefit or expense in the period the settlement is effective. We believe that tax 

positions have been reflected in our financial statements at appropriate amounts in conformity with FIN 48.
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Consolidated Operating Results

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005	

Revenue	 									       

Premium Income	 $	 7,901.1		  (0.6)%	 $	 7,948.2		  1.7)%	 $	 7,815.6 

Net Investment Income	 	 2,409.9		  3.8		  2,320.6		  6.0		  2,188.3 

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)		  (65.2)	 	 N.M.		  2.2		  132.8		  (6.7)

Other Income	 	 274.1		  3.7		  264.3		  0.8		  262.1 

Total			   	10,519.9	 	 (0.1)	 	10,535.3		  2.7		 10,259.3 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 	 6,988.2	 	 (7.8)		  7,577.2		  7.0		  7,083.2 

Commissions		  841.1		  2.7		  819.0		  1.8		  804.7 

Interest and Debt Expense		  183.1	 	 (4.5)		  191.8		  (7.8)		  208.0 

Cost Related to Early Retirement of Debt	 	 58.8		 127.9		  25.8		  N.M.		  — 

Deferral of Acquisition Costs	 	 (556.3)		  5.3		  (528.2)		  1.7		  (519.4)

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs	 	 480.4	 	 0.4		  478.6		  3.2		  463.7 

Compensation Expense	 	 722.4		  6.2		  680.5		  3.3		  659.0 

Other Expenses	 	 805.0		  (2.4)		  825.2		  (4.7)		  866.2 

Total			   	 9,522.7	 	 (5.4)		 10,069.9		  5.3		  9,565.4 

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Tax	 	 997.2		 114.3		  465.4		  (32.9)		  693.9 

Income Tax	 	 324.8		  N.M.		  61.8		  (67.5)		  189.9 

Income from Continuing Operations	 	 672.4		  66.6		  403.6		  (19.9)		  504.0 

Income from Discontinued Operations	 	 6.9	 	 (6.8)		  7.4		  (22.9)		  9.6 

Net Income	 $	 679.3		  65.3	 $	 411.0		  (20.0)	 $	 513.6 

N.M. = not a meaningful percentage										        
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	 The following chart lists charges affecting the comparability of our financial results. In describing our results, we may at times note 

these items and exclude the impact on financial ratios and metrics to enhance the understanding and comparability of our Company’s 

performance and the underlying fundamentals in our operations, but this exclusion is not an indication that similar items may not recur. 

 
	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits					   

Regulatory Claim Reassessment Charges					     $	65.8	 $	396.4	 $	52.7 

Other Operating Expenses					   

Regulatory Claim Reassessment Charges					     	(12.8)		  15.0		 22.3 

Broker Compensation Settlements					     	 —	 	 18.5		  —  

Total Charges, Before Tax					     $	53.0	 $	429.9	 $	75.0 

Total Charges, After Tax					     $	34.5	 $	280.1	 $	51.6 

	 Consolidated premium income for both 2007 and 2006 includes premium growth, relative to the preceding year, for Unum US 

supplemental and voluntary lines of business, Unum UK, and Colonial Life. Unum US group disability and group life and accidental death 

and dismemberment lines of business experienced year over year declines in premium income during 2007 and 2006, as expected, due 

primarily to our continued pricing discipline for our Unum US group business and our strategy of developing a more balanced business 

mix. Premium persistency for our Unum US group market segment declined in 2007 relative to 2006, as expected and due to a decline  

in persistency in the large case market segment, but case persistency is above the level of the prior year and is consistent with our 

expectations. Premium income in the Individual Disability — Closed Block segment decreased in 2007 relative to 2006 due primarily to  

the expected decline in this block of closed business, although this segment’s premium income increased in 2006 relative to the prior 

year due to the recapture of a ceded block of business in the third quarter of 2005. 

	 Net investment income is progressively higher each year due primarily to the growth in invested assets, offset by a lower yield due 

to the investment of new cash at lower rates than that of our overall portfolio yield and a decline in the level of prepayment income on 

mortgage-backed securities in each of 2007 and 2006 relative to the preceding year. In addition, both 2007 and 2006 include a full year  

of net investment income, versus a partial year during 2005, on the bonds transferred to us in conjunction with the third quarter of 2005 

recapture of a ceded closed block of individual disability business. We expect that our portfolio yield will continue to gradually decline 

until the market rates on new purchases increase above the level of the overall yield in our portfolio. 

	 We reported a net realized investment loss of $65.2 million in 2007 compared to a gain of $2.2 million in 2006 and a loss of  

$6.7 million in 2005. Included in those amounts are changes in the fair value of the embedded derivatives in certain reinsurance contracts, 

which resulted in net realized losses of $57.3 million, $5.3 million, and $7.9 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Also, in the third 

quarter of 2007, we recognized losses of $18.4 million related to the decline in fair value below amortized cost for certain securities for 

which it was determined during the third quarter of 2007 that we no longer had the intent to hold to recovery or maturity due to anticipated 

changes in our capital requirements resulting from the reinsurance transactions involving our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment 

business and the related issuance of $800.0 million of notes, as well as our capital redeployment plans. See “Investments” contained 

herein for further discussion.

	 The reported ratio of benefits and change in reserves for future benefits to premium income was 88.4 percent in 2007 compared to 

95.3 percent in 2006 and 90.6 percent for 2005. As noted above, our reported benefits and change in reserves for future benefits include 

charges pertaining to our claim reassessment process required by the 2004 and 2005 regulatory settlement agreements. Excluding these 

charges, the ratio of benefits and change in reserves for future benefits to premium income was 87.6 percent for 2007, compared to 

90.3 percent for 2006 and 90.0 percent for 2005. See “Segment Results” as follows for discussions of line of business risk results and 

claims management performance in each of our segments.
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	 Interest and debt expense continues to decline year over year due to the reduction in our outstanding debt.

	 Cost related to early retirement of debt includes costs associated with our $769.5 million and $732.0 million debt repurchases during 

2007 and 2006. See “Debt” contained herein for additional information.

	 Excluding amounts related to claim reassessment and broker compensation settlements, our expense ratio improved in 2006 relative 

to 2005 but increased in 2007. The increase was due primarily to the decrease in premium income, as well as the second quarter of 2007 

litigation settlement expense and additional expenses associated with the development of new product offerings in our core lines of 

business. We intend to aggressively manage our expenses while continuing to increase the effectiveness of our operating processes.

	 As previously noted, during the third quarter of 2007, we recorded a reduction of $1.7 million to our income tax expense to reflect 

the impact of the enactment of the U.K. tax rate change on our net deferred tax liability related to our U.K. operations. During the second 

half of 2007, our income tax expense reflected the lower U.K. tax rate, and we expect that our overall effective tax rate in the future will 

also be reduced by an amount proportional to earnings from our U.K. operations. Income tax for 2006 includes tax benefits of $91.9 million 

as a result of the reversal of tax liabilities related primarily to group relief benefits recognized from the use of net operating losses in a 

foreign jurisdiction in which our businesses operate. In addition, we recorded a net tax benefit of $1.3 million related to interest and tax 

refunds on prior year tax items in excess of what was previously provided. Income tax for 2005 includes tax benefits of $42.8 million 

related to the reduction of income tax liabilities in the first and third quarters of 2005 and a net tax benefit of $3.3 million recorded in 

connection with the repatriation of unremitted foreign earnings from our U.K. subsidiaries under the Homeland Investment Act of 2004. 

Consolidated Sales Results

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005	

Unum US													          

	 Fully Insured Products	 $	 631.0	 	 (6.1)%	 $	 671.8		  4.0)%	 $	 645.8 

	 Administrative Services Only (ASO) Products	 	 7.2		 (47.4)		  13.7		  80.3		  7.6 

	 Total Unum US	 	 638.2		  (6.9)		  685.5		  4.9		  653.4 

Unum UK		 	 105.4		  4.3		  101.1		  (23.6)		  132.3 

Colonial Life	 	 334.9		  6.3		  315.1		  10.0		  286.4 

Individual Disability — Closed Block		  3.0		 (31.8)		  4.4		  (32.3)		  6.5 

Consolidated	 $	1,081.5	 	 (2.2)	 $	1,106.1		  2.5	 $	1,078.6

	 Sales results shown in the preceding chart generally represent the annualized premium or annualized fee income on new sales 

which we expect to receive and report as premium income or fee income during the next 12 months following or beginning in the initial 

quarter in which the sale is reported, depending on the effective date of the new sale. Sales do not correspond to premium income or fee 

income reported as revenue in accordance with GAAP. This is because new annualized sales premiums reflect current sales performance 

and what we expect to recognize as premium or fee income over a 12 month period, while premium income and fee income reported in 

our financial statements are reported on an “as earned” basis rather than an annualized basis and also include renewals and persistency 

of in force policies written in prior years as well as current new sales. 

	 Premiums for fully insured products are reported as premium income. Fees for ASO products (those where the risk and responsibility 

for funding claim payments remain with the customer and we only provide services) are included in other income. Sales, persistency  

of the existing block of business, and the effectiveness of the renewal program are indicators of growth in our premium and fee income. 

Trends in new sales, as well as existing market share, also indicate our potential for growth in our respective markets and the level  

of market acceptance of price changes and new product offerings. Sales results may fluctuate significantly due to case size and timing  

of sales submissions. 
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	 We intend to continue with our disciplined approach to pricing and also with our strategy of developing a more balanced business mix. 

This strategy is expected to result in a lower premium persistency or market share, particularly in the large case Unum US group market, 

but historically the profitability of business that terminates has generally been lower than the profitability of retained business. We do  

not anticipate a decline in the number of cases, or case persistency, for our Unum US group market on an aggregate basis. 

	 See “Segment Results” as follows for additional discussion of sales by segment.

Segment Results
	 Our reporting segments are comprised of the following: Unum US, Unum UK, Colonial Life, Individual Disability — Closed Block (previously 

referred to as Individual Income Protection — Closed Block), Other, and Corporate. In the following segment financial data and discussions 

of segment results, “operating revenue” excludes net realized investment gains and losses. “Operating income” or “operating loss” excludes 

net realized investment gains and losses and income tax. These are considered non-GAAP financial measures. A non-GAAP financial 

measure is a numerical measure of a company’s performance, financial position, or cash flows that excludes or includes amounts that are 

not normally excluded or included in the most directly comparable measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP.

	 These non-GAAP financial measures of “operating revenue” and “operating income” or “operating loss” differ from revenue and income 

(loss) from continuing operations before income tax as presented in our consolidated operating results and in income statements prepared  

in accordance with GAAP due to the exclusion of before tax realized investment gains and losses. We measure segment performance for 

purposes of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, 

excluding realized investment gains and losses because we believe that this performance measure is a better indicator of the ongoing 

businesses and the underlying trends in the businesses. Our investment focus is on investment income to support our insurance liabilities 

as opposed to the generation of realized investment gains and losses, and a long-term focus is necessary to maintain profitability over the 

life of the business. Realized investment gains and losses depend on market conditions and do not necessarily relate to decisions regarding 

the underlying business of our segments. However, income or loss excluding realized investment gains and losses does not replace net 

income or net loss as a measure of overall profitability. We may experience realized investment losses, which will affect future earnings 

levels since our underlying business is long-term in nature and we need to earn the assumed interest rates in our liabilities. 

	 A reconciliation of total operating revenue by segment to total consolidated revenue and total operating income by segment to 

consolidated net income is as follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Operating Revenue by Segment					     $	10,585.1	 $	10,533.1	 $	10,266.0 

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)					     	 (65.2)	 	 2.2		  (6.7)

Revenue					     	 $	10,519.9	 $	10,535.3	 $	10,259.3 

Operating Income by Segment					     $	 1,062.4	 $	 463.2	 $	 700.6 

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)						      (65.2)	 	 2.2		  (6.7)

Income Tax					     	 324.8	 	 61.8		  189.9 

Income from Discontinued Operations						      6.9	 	 7.4		  9.6 

Net Income					     $	 679.3	 $	 411.0	 $	 513.6 

	 As previously noted, included in the before-tax operating income by segment shown above are before-tax charges of $53.0 million, 

$411.4 million, and $75.0 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, related to the claim reassessment process and $18.5 million in 

2006 for the broker compensation settlement.
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Unum US Segment
	 The Unum US segment includes group long-term and short-term disability insurance, group life and accidental death and dismemberment 

products, and supplemental and voluntary lines of business. The supplemental and voluntary lines of business are comprised of recently 

issued disability insurance, group and individual long-term care insurance, and voluntary benefits products. 

Unum US Operating Results
	 Shown below are financial results for the Unum US segment. In the sections following, financial results and key ratios are also presented 

for the major lines of business within the segment.

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Operating Revenue										        

Premium Income	 $	5,014.0	 	 (3.5)%	 $	5,196.0		  (0.6)%	 $	5,229.0 

Net Investment Income	 	1,129.9	 	 6.3		 1,063.1		  6.5		  998.2 

Other Income	 	 135.7	 	 25.1		  108.5		  (0.1)		  108.6 

Total			   	6,279.6	 	 (1.4)		 6,367.6		  0.5		 6,335.8 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 	4,246.4		 (10.6)		 4,752.1		  7.5		 4,419.3 

Commissions	 	 501.5	 	 (0.7)		  505.2		  0.7		  501.6 

Deferral of Acquisition Costs	 	 (304.2)		  (0.7)		  (306.2)		  (1.8)		  (311.9)

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs	 	 277.1		  (8.3)		  302.2		  (1.5)		  306.9 

Other Expenses	 	 993.2	 	 (2.5)		 1,018.6		  (1.3)		 1,032.2 

Total			   	5,714.0	 	 (8.9)		 6,271.9		  5.4		 5,948.1 

Operating Income Before Income Tax  

	 and Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses	 $	 565.6	 	 N.M.	 $	 95.7		  (75.3)	 $	 387.7 

N.M. = not a meaningful percentage												          

	 Included in the operating income reported above for Unum US are before-tax charges of $66.2 million, $364.2 million, and  

$40.7 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, related to the claim reassessment process. 
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Unum US Sales

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Fully Insured Products												          

	 Group Long-term Disability	 $	177.7	 	(14.8)%	 $	208.5		  15.6)%	 $	180.4 

	 Group Short-term Disability	 	 64.7	 	(12.7)		  74.1		  (0.9)		  74.8 

	 Group Life	 	134.0		 (10.5)		 149.8		  (5.1)		 157.8 

	 Accidental Death & Dismemberment	 	 13.8		  0.7		  13.7		  (6.8)		  14.7 

	 Individual Disability — Recently Issued	 	 59.7	 	 7.8		  55.4		  3.0		  53.8 

	 Group Long-term Care	 	 32.8		  30.7		  25.1		  19.0		  21.1 

	 Individual Long-term Care	 	 9.9		 (10.0)		  11.0		  (15.4)		  13.0 

	 Voluntary Benefits	 	138.4		  3.1		 134.2		  3.1		 130.2 

Total Fully Insured Products	 	631.0		  (6.1)		 671.8		  4.0		 645.8 

Administrative Services Only (ASO) Products	 	 7.2		 (47.4)		  13.7		  80.3		  7.6 

Total Sales	 $	638.2		  (6.9)	 $	685.5		  4.9	 $	653.4 

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

	 While overall sales for Unum US declined in 2007 relative to 2006, we maintained our disciplined pricing and our sales mix was generally 

in line with our target mix. In 2007, we had a sales mix of approximately 61 percent core market and 39 percent large case market, in line 

with our targeted 60 percent core/40 percent large case market distribution mix. Although sales on an annualized premium basis declined 

year over year in our group core market segment, the number of new accounts in this segment increased over the prior year. Sales growth 

gained momentum during the second half of the year, with an increase of 14.5 percent in group core market sales during the last six 

months of 2007 compared to the same period of 2006. 

	 Sales for our individual disability line of business increased over the prior year. We continue to focus on the multi-life individual 

disability business, with almost 94 percent of total 2007 sales for this line of business occurring in the multi-life market. Long-term care 

sales were generally in line with our strategy for this product line, with growth in the group product and a decline in sales for individual 

long-term care. Our voluntary benefits sales increased in 2007 relative to the prior year, consistent with our focus on sales growth in our 

voluntary product lines. 

	 We anticipate that sales for our group core market segment and our voluntary products will increase during 2008. Because our focus 

for our 2007 renewal program was aimed primarily at improving the profitability of our large case group business, sales and persistency 

for the large case market segment declined during 2007, as expected. As previously noted, during the third quarter of 2007, we introduced 

Simply Unum, a new product offering and administrative platform designed to better meet the needs of our group core market segment 

and our voluntary market. The initial market rollout was limited to four pilot sales offices, with the full rollout expected to occur during  

the first and second quarters of 2008. 
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Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

	 Sales for Unum US increased slightly in 2006 compared to 2005, with a sales mix of approximately 52 percent core market and 48 percent 

large case in our group products.

	 Group disability sales, on a fully insured basis, increased in 2006 compared to 2005, with an increase in the large case market driven 

by additional new sales to existing group policyholders. Group disability case coverages in the core market grew relative to 2005, but 

because of a lower case size, core market sales, when measured in dollars of annualized premium income, declined relative to 2005. 

On a by market segment basis, core market segment sales for group life increased in 2006 relative to 2005, while sales in the large case 

market segment decreased in 2006 compared to 2005. 

	 Approximately 90 percent of total 2006 sales for our individual disability line of business occurred in the multi-life market. Long-term 

care sales were generally in line with our strategy for this product line, with growth in the group product and a decline in sales for 

individual long-term care. Voluntary benefits sales increased in 2006 in comparison to 2005 as we continued to focus on the voluntary 

product lines for future growth. 

Unum US Persistency and Renewal of Existing Business
	 A continuing part of our strategy for Unum US group business involves executing our renewal programs and managing persistency in our 

existing blocks of business. Our renewal programs have generally been successful in retaining business that is relatively more profitable 

than business that terminated. While we believe the additional premium and related profits associated with renewal activity will continue 

to emerge, we intend to balance the renewal program with the need to maximize persistency and retain broker relationships. Persistency, 

measured in both premium dollars and in number of cases, for the large case group market segment declined during 2007 relative to the 

prior year because of our 2007 strategy for this market. Premium persistency was also lower for our core group market segment, but case 

persistency for this market segment improved over the level of 2006. During 2006, persistency for each of our product lines was generally 

higher than or consistent with 2005.

	 We adopted the provisions of SOP 05-1 effective January 1, 2007, and recorded a cumulative effect adjustment which decreased our 

2007 opening balance of Unum US DAC $589.8 million. SOP 05-1 provides guidance on accounting for DAC on internal replacements and 

effectively shortens the amortization period for DAC for many of our group products. Despite the shorter amortization period, we do not 

believe that the adoption of SOP 05-1 will have a material effect on amortization expense for Unum US as a result of the decrease in DAC 

from the cumulative effect adjustment. We will continue to monitor the persistency of the existing business and reflect changes relative 

to our amortization assumptions, as appropriate, in the current period’s amortization of DAC. 

	 In January 2006, we began a process of filing a request with various state insurance departments for rate adjustments on one older 

series of individual long-term care policies. The rate adjustment brings the rates for this policy series closer to today’s market, better 

reflecting current interest rates, higher expected future claims, persistency, experience, and other factors related to pricing individual 

long-term care coverage. In states for which a rate increase is submitted and approved, customers are also given options for coverage 

changes or other approaches that might fit their current financial and insurance needs. Higher premium income associated with the rate 

increases has begun to emerge and is expected to continue to do so during 2008.
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Unum US Group Disability Operating Results
	 Shown below are financial results and key performance indicators for Unum US group disability.

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars, except ratios)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Operating Revenue										        

Premium Income										        

     Group Long-term Disability	 $	1,895.7	 	 (2.9)%	 $	1,953.3		  (0.4)%	 $	1,961.6 

     Group Short-term Disability	 	 485.6		  (8.4)		  530.2		  (6.4)		  566.3 

Total Premium Income	 	2,381.3	 	 (4.1)		 2,483.5		  (1.8)		 2,527.9 

Net Investment Income	 	 636.0		  2.3		  621.9		  2.7		  605.7 

Other Income	 	 100.2		  21.7		  82.3		  2.5		  80.3 

Total	 		  	3,117.5	 	 (2.2)		 3,187.7		  (0.8)		 3,213.9 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits		 2,277.4	 	(15.7)		 2,702.5		  12.7		 2,397.7 

Commissions	 	 167.7	 	 (4.6)		  175.8		  0.4		  175.1 

Deferral of Acquisition Costs	 	 (60.4)		  (6.4)		  (64.5)		  (0.2)		  (64.6)

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs	 	 66.2	 	(23.4)		  86.4		  (6.3)		  92.2 

Other Expenses	 	 561.6	 	 (4.6)		  588.6		  1.0		  582.5 

Total			   	3,012.5	 	(13.7)		 3,488.8		  9.6		 3,182.9 

Operating Income (Loss) Before Income Tax  

	 and Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses	 $	 105.0	 	134.9	 $	(301.1)		  N.M.	 $	 31.0 

Operating Ratios (% of Premium Income):										        

	 Benefit Ratio (1)	 	 95.6%				    108.8)%				    94.8%

	 Other Expense Ratio (2)		  23.6%				    23.7)%				    23.0%

	 Before-tax Operating Income (Loss) Ratio (3)		  4.4%				    (12.1)%				    1.2%

Premium Persistency:										        

	 Group Long-term Disability	 	 85.1%				    87.8)%				    84.8%

	 Group Short-term Disability	 	 74.0%				    85.6)%				    79.6%

Case Persistency:										        

	 Group Long-term Disability		  88.4%				    87.4)%				    87.2%

	 Group Short-term Disability	 	 87.4%				    86.2)%				    85.6%

N.M. = not a meaningful percentage										        

(1) �Included in these ratios are charges of $76.5 million, $349.2 million, and $27.3 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, related to the claim reassessment process. 
Excluding these charges, the benefit ratios for 2007, 2006, and 2005 would have been 92.4%, 94.8%, and 93.8%, respectively.

(2) �Included in these ratios are increases (decreases) of $(10.3) million, $15.0 million, and $10.1 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, related to the claim 
reassessment process. Excluding these items, the other expense ratios for 2007, 2006, and 2005 would have been 24.0%, 23.1% and 22.6%, respectively. 

(3) �Included in these ratios are charges of $66.2 million, $364.2 million, and $37.4 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, related to the claim reassessment process. 
Excluding these charges, the before-tax operating income ratio for 2007, 2006, and 2005 would have been 7.2%, 2.5%, and 2.7%, respectively. 
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

	 Premium income for group disability decreased in 2007 relative to the prior year, as expected, due primarily to our more disciplined 

approach to pricing, renewals, and risk selection. Premium persistency and case persistency are both consistent with our expectations 

given our business mix strategy. Net investment income increased in 2007 in comparison to the prior year due to the growth in the level 

of assets supporting these lines of business, partially offset by the impact of the lower yield resulting from the lower interest rate 

environment and a decrease in bond call premiums. Other income includes ASO fees of $65.2 million and $60.9 million for 2007 and 

2006, respectively. 

	 Excluding the revisions to our estimate for claim reassessment costs, the benefit ratio for 2007 was lower than the benefit ratio for 

2006 due primarily to lower paid claims in both group long-term and short-term disability and a higher rate of claim recoveries relative  

to the prior year. 

	 Our claim operational effectiveness continues to improve as a result of our organizational and process changes. While additional 

performance improvement is expected to occur during 2008, the operational improvement we have projected may occur at a slower rate, 

and we may incur higher than anticipated claim costs.

	 The net decrease in the amortization of DAC is due primarily to the decrease in the level of DAC for these lines of business resulting 

from the adoption of the new accounting policy related to DAC on internal replacements, offset somewhat by higher amortization resulting 

from the shorter amortization period for DAC. The other expense ratio, excluding the adjustments to our claim reassessment incremental 

operating expense estimate, increased in 2007 compared to the prior year due to the decline in premium income as well as an increase 

in advertising and branding expenses and product and service development costs.

	 As discussed under “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and in “Risk Factors,” certain risks and uncertainties 

are inherent in our group disability business. Components of claims experience, including, but not limited to, incidence and recovery rates, 

may be worse than we expect. Both economic and societal factors can affect claim incidence. Adjustments to reserve amounts may be 

required if there are changes in assumptions regarding the incidence of claims or the rate of recovery, as well as persistency, mortality, 

and interest rates used in calculating the reserve amounts. 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

	 Premium income for group disability decreased in 2006 relative to 2005 due to our pricing, renewal, and risk selection strategy. Net 

investment income increased slightly in comparison to 2005 due to the growth in the level of assets supporting these lines of business 

and an increase in bond call premiums partially offset by the impact of the lower yield resulting from the lower interest rate environment. 

Other income includes ASO fees of $60.9 million for 2006 and $59.0 million for 2005. 

	 Excluding the revisions to our estimate for claim reassessment costs, the 2006 benefit ratio of 94.8 percent was higher than the 2005 

ratio of 93.8 percent due primarily to higher paid claims in both group long-term and short-term disability, partially offset by a higher rate 

of claim recoveries and a decrease in the claim incidence rate for group long-term disability relative to 2005. 

	 The other expense ratio, excluding the adjustments to our claim reassessment incremental operating expense estimate increased 

in 2006 compared to 2005 due to the implementation of additional resources and process changes and also due to the decrease in 

premium income. 
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Unum US Group Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Operating Results
	 Shown below are financial results and key performance indicators for Unum US group life and accidental death and dismemberment.

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars, except ratios)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Operating Revenue										        

Premium Income										        

     Group Life	 $	1,107.4	 	(11.3)%	 $	1,248.1		  (4.5)%	 $	1,306.8 

     Accidental Death & Dismemberment	 	 131.0	 	(13.6)		  151.6		  (3.1)		  156.4 

Total Premium Income	 	1,238.4	 	(11.5)		 1,399.7		  (4.3)		 1,463.2 

Net Investment Income	 	 134.9	 	 (4.5)		  141.3		  (7.0)		  151.9 

Other Income	 	 2.4		  N.M.		  —		  N.M.		  2.0 

Total			   	1,375.7		 (10.7)		 1,541.0		  (4.7)		 1,617.1 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 	 901.6	 	(15.5)		 1,067.3		  (4.0)		 1,111.9 

Commissions	 	 88.7	 	 (1.6)		  90.1		  (7.9)		  97.8 

Deferral of Acquisition Costs		  (36.1)		  (4.2)		  (37.7)		  (11.7)		  (42.7)

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs	 	 39.4	 	(39.4)		  65.0		  (11.0)		  73.0 

Other Expenses	 	 164.9	 	 (7.5)		  178.3		  (5.3)		  188.3 

Total			   	1,158.5	 	(15.0)		 1,363.0		  (4.6)		 1,428.3 

Operating Income Before Income Tax  

	 and Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses	 $	 217.2		  22.0	 $	 178.0		  (5.7)	 $	 188.8 

Operating Ratios (% of Premium Income):										        

	 Benefit Ratio		  72.8%				    76.3%				    76.0%

	 Other Expense Ratio		  13.3%				    12.7%				    12.9%

	 Before-tax Operating Income Ratio		  17.5%				    12.7%				    12.9%

Premium Persistency:										        

	 Group Life		  78.8%				    81.2%				    78.3%

	 Accidental Death & Dismemberment		  80.8%				    82.8%				    76.9%

Case Persistency:										        

	 Group Life		  87.7%				    86.9%				    86.3%

	 Accidental Death & Dismemberment		  88.0%				    87.0%				    86.4%

N.M. = not a meaningful percentage										        
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

	 Premium income for group life decreased in 2007 relative to the prior year due primarily to our more disciplined approach to pricing, 

renewals, and risk selection. Premium persistency and case persistency are both consistent with our expectations. The decrease in net 

investment income relative to the prior year resulted primarily from a decline in the level of assets supporting these lines of business. 

	 The benefit ratio decreased in 2007 due primarily to a lower submitted and paid claim incidence rate for group life, offset partially  

by higher paid claim incidence rates for the accidental death and dismemberment line of business. 

	 Similar to our group disability products, amortization of DAC is lower this year relative to last year due to the adoption of SOP 05-1. 

The other expense ratio increased in 2007 in comparison to the prior year due to the decline in premium income. 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

	 Premium income for group life decreased in 2006 relative to 2005 due to our pricing, renewal, and risk selection strategy. The decrease  

in net investment income relative to 2005 resulted primarily from a decline in the level of assets supporting these lines of business. 

	 The group life line reported a slightly increased benefit ratio in 2006 due primarily to an increased average claim size and a decrease 

in the waiver recovery rate, offset partially by a lower submitted and paid claim incidence rate. The accidental death and dismemberment 

line of business reported a decreased benefit ratio for 2006 compared to 2005 due primarily to a decrease in the paid claim incidence rate 

for certain of the product lines. 

	 Commissions and the deferral of acquisition costs decreased in 2006 in comparison to 2005 due primarily to the decrease in sales  

in comparison to the prior year and a buy-out of a block of business from a commissioned sales agency in 2005. Operating expenses 

decreased in 2006 relative to 2005, enabling the operating expense ratio to remain stable against the decline in premium income. 
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Unum US Supplemental and Voluntary Operating Results
	 Shown below are financial results and key performance indicators for Unum US supplemental and voluntary product lines.

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars, except ratios)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Operating Revenue										        

Premium Income										        

	 Individual Disability — Recently Issued	 $	 456.7		  4.2%	 $	 438.5		  3.2)%	 $	 425.1 

	 Long-term Care	 	 532.9		  8.2		  492.4		  4.1		  473.2 

	 Voluntary Benefits	 	 404.7		  6.0		  381.9		  12.5		  339.6 

Total Premium Income	 	1,394.3		  6.2		 1,312.8		  6.1		 1,237.9 

Net Investment Income	 	 359.0		  19.7		  299.9		  24.6		  240.6 

Other Income		  33.1	 	 26.3		  26.2		  (0.4)		  26.3 

Total			   	1,786.4	 	 9.0		 1,638.9		  8.9		 1,504.8 

Benefits and Expenses								      

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 	1,067.4		  8.7		  982.3		  8.0		  909.7 

Commissions	 	 245.1		  2.4		  239.3		  4.6		  228.7 

Deferral of Acquisition Costs		 (207.7)	 	 1.8		  (204.0)		  (0.3)		  (204.6)

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs	 	 171.5		  13.7		  150.8		  6.4		  141.7 

Other Expenses		  266.7	 	 6.0		  251.7		  (3.7)		  261.4 

Total			   	1,543.0	 	 8.7		 1,420.1		  6.2		 1,336.9 

Operating Income Before Income Tax  

	 and Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses	 $	 243.4	 	 11.2	 $	 218.8		  30.3	 $	 167.9 

Operating Ratios (% of Premium Income):									       

	 Benefit Ratios										        

		  Individual Disability — Recently Issued (1)	 	 56.7%	 			   58.0%				    57.5%

		  Long-term Care	 	 106.0%	 			   99.2%				    93.0%

		  Voluntary Benefits	 	 60.1%	 			   62.7%				    66.3%

	 Other Expense Ratio (2)		  19.1%				    19.2%				    21.1%

	 Before-tax Operating Income Ratio (3)	 	 17.5%				    16.7%				    13.6%

Interest Adjusted Loss Ratios:								      

	 Individual Disability — Recently Issued	 	 40.8%				    43.5%				    44.4%

	 Long-term Care		  77.7%				    73.1%				    70.9%

Premium Persistency:										        

	 Individual Disability — Recently Issued	 	 90.6%				    90.5%				    89.6%

	 Long-term Care		  95.4%	 			   95.3%				    95.8%

	 Voluntary Benefits	 	 79.4%				    80.9%				    81.1%

(1) �Included in these ratios is a charge of $2.3 million in 2005 related to the claim reassessment process. Excluding this charge, the benefit ratio for 2005 would have been 57.0%.

(2) �Included in these ratios is a charge of $1.0 million in 2005 related to the claim reassessment process. Excluding this charge, the operating expense ratio for 2005 would 
have been 21.0%.

(3) �Included in these ratios is a charge of $3.3 million in 2005 related to the claim reassessment process. Excluding this charge, the before-tax operating income ratio for 2005 
would have been 13.8%.
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

	 The increase in premium income for 2007 relative to the prior year is due to sales growth and overall stable persistency, although premium 

persistency for certain of the product lines declined compared to the prior year. Net investment income increased relative to the prior 

year primarily from growth in the level of assets supporting these lines of business.

	 The interest adjusted loss ratio for the individual disability — recently issued business decreased in 2007 relative to the prior year due 

primarily to a decrease in the submitted claim incidence rate as well as an increase in the claim recovery rate. The interest adjusted loss 

ratio for long-term care was higher in 2007 than in the prior year due primarily to an increase in the submitted claim incidence rate and a 

decrease in the claim recovery and mortality rates. The benefit ratio for voluntary benefits decreased in comparison to the prior year due 

primarily to a lower rate of paid claim incidence for the voluntary benefits disability line of business partially offset by a higher mortality 

rate for the voluntary life line of business. 

	 The amortization of DAC increased in 2007 relative to the prior year due to the acceleration of amortization for certain of the product 

lines with lower than anticipated persistency. The other expense ratio remained level with the prior year due to the growth in premium 

income and the corresponding growth in operating expenses. 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

	 The increase in premium income for 2006 relative to 2005 is due to sales growth and stable persistency. Net investment income increased 

relative to 2005 primarily from growth in the level of assets supporting these lines of business and due to higher investment yields resulting 

from a greater portion of the investment portfolio being invested in longer-term investments than in 2005.

	 The interest adjusted loss ratio for the individual disability — recently issued business decreased slightly in 2006 relative to 2005, 

excluding the 2005 reserve charge, due primarily to an increase in the claim recovery rate, offset partially by an increase in the claim 

reopen rate. The interest adjusted loss ratio for long-term care was higher in 2006 than in 2005 due primarily to the aging of the block  

of business. The benefit ratio for voluntary benefits decreased in comparison to 2005 due to favorable mortality and paid incidence. 

	 Amortization of DAC was higher for 2006 due primarily to the growth of the deferred asset for the multi-life individual disability and 

voluntary benefits product lines relative to the other supplemental product lines. The amortization period for multi-life individual disability 

and voluntary benefits products is generally shorter than that of the other supplemental products.

	 The decrease in other expenses in 2006 in comparison to 2005 is driven primarily by the individual disability — recently issued line of 

business and is due mainly to relatively flat sales for 2006 and the restructuring of the distribution model for this line of business that was 

implemented in mid-2005. These expense declines are partially offset by an increase in other expenses related to the voluntary benefits 

lines of business driven primarily by growth in those lines of business.

Segment Outlook
	 Our primary focus in 2008 will be continued improvement of our claims management performance in our group disability line of business 

along with growth in our core group market and our supplemental and voluntary lines of business. We expect our overall benefit ratio for 

group disability to gradually improve to the 88 to 89 percent range by late 2008 to early 2009. 

	 We are focused on diversifying our product portfolio through new initiatives such as Simply Unum and increased focus on our group 

core market and voluntary product sales. Simply Unum combines group and voluntary coverages on one fully-integrated platform and 

represents substantial changes in existing technologies and workflow processes, from quote and proposal to billing and administration and 

ultimately to the payment of claims. The initial market rollout in the third quarter of 2007 was limited to four pilot sales offices. Marketplace 

reaction from brokers and customers has been very positive. We expect the national rollout to occur during the first and second quarters 

of 2008.

	 We expect that premium income growth will emerge in late 2008 and 2009 as our group large case market persistency stabilizes 

and growth continues in our group core market and our supplemental product lines. 
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Unum UK Segment
	 Unum UK includes insurance for group long-term disability, group life, and individual disability products sold primarily in the United 

Kingdom through field sales personnel and independent brokers and consultants. 

Operating Results
	 Shown below are financial results and key performance indicators for the Unum UK segment. 

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars, except ratios)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Operating Revenue										        

Premium Income										        

	 Group Long-term Disability	 $	 752.6	 	 17.8)%	 $	 638.9		  9.6)%	 $	 582.9 

	 Group Life		  177.4	 	 3.7		  171.0		  4.2		  164.1 

	 Individual Disability		  38.3	 	 16.4		  32.9		  (14.1)		  38.3 

Total Premium Income	 	 968.3	 	 14.9		  842.8		  7.3		  785.3 

Net Investment Income	 	 200.4	 	 14.8		  174.6		  13.2		  154.2 

Other Income		  3.1	 	 N.M.		  0.1		  (98.4)		  6.1 

Total			   	1,171.8	 	 15.2		 1,017.5		  7.6		  945.6 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 	 574.3		  3.8		  553.5		  1.4		  545.8 

Commissions		  67.0	 	 34.8		  49.7		  (11.9)		  56.4 

Deferral of Acquisition Costs		  (41.2)		  19.8		  (34.4)		  0.9		  (34.1)

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs		  49.4	 	 54.4		  32.0		  48.1		  21.6 

Other Expenses	 	 183.5		  15.5		  158.9		  (5.5)		  168.2 

Total			   	 833.0		  9.6		  759.7		  0.2		  757.9 

Operating Income Before Income Tax  

	 and Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses	 $	 338.8		  31.4	 $	 257.8		  37.3	 $	 187.7 

Operating Ratios (% of Premium Income):										        

	 Benefit Ratio	 	 59.3%				    65.7%				    69.5%

	 Other Expense Ratio	 	 19.0%				    18.9%				    21.4%

	 Before-tax Operating Income Ratio		  35.0%				    30.6%				    23.9%

Premium Persistency:										        

	 Group Long-term Disability		  88.0%				    90.4%				    94.2%

	 Group Life	 	 70.5%				    69.1%				    86.3%

	 Individual Disability	 	 89.4%				    88.2%				    88.4%

N.M. = not a meaningful percentage										        
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Foreign Currency Translation
	 The functional currency of Unum UK is the British pound sterling. Unum UK’s premiums, net investment income, claims, and expenses  

are received or paid in pounds, and we hold pound denominated assets to support Unum UK’s pound denominated policy reserves and 

liabilities. We translate Unum UK’s pound-denominated financial statement items into dollars for our consolidated financial reporting.  

We translate income statement items using an average exchange rate for the reporting period, and we translate balance sheet items 

using the exchange rate at the end of the period. We report unrealized foreign currency translation gains and losses in accumulated  

other comprehensive income in our consolidated balance sheets. 

	 Fluctuations in the pound to dollar exchange rate have an effect on Unum UK’s reported financial results and our consolidated 

financial results. In periods when the pound weakens, translating pounds into dollars decreases current year results relative to the prior 

year. In periods when the pound strengthens, translating into dollars increases current year results in relation to the prior year.

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of pounds)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Operating Revenue

Premium Income										        

	 Group Long-term Disability	 £	375.9		  8.5)%	 £	346.3		  8.1)%	 £	320.4 

	 Group Life		  88.5		  (4.2)		  92.4		  2.4		  90.2 

	 Individual Disability		  19.1	 	 7.3		  17.8		  (15.2)		  21.0 

Total Premium Income		 483.5		  5.9		 456.5		  5.8		 431.6 

Net Investment Income	 	100.0		  5.8		  94.5		  11.4		  84.8 

Other Income		  1.6		  N.M.		  —		 (100.0)		  3.3 

Total			   	585.1	 	 6.2		 551.0		  6.0		 519.7 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits		 286.8		  (4.5)		 300.2		  0.1		 299.9 

Commissions		  33.5	 	 24.1		  27.0		  (12.9)		  31.0 

Deferral of Acquisition Costs		 (20.6)	 	 10.2		 (18.7)		  —		 (18.7)

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs		  24.7	 	 44.4		  17.1		  44.9		  11.8 

Other Expenses		  91.6	 	 6.4		  86.1		  (6.9)		  92.5 

Total				   416.0		  1.0		 411.7		  (1.2)		 416.5 

Operating Income Before Income Tax  

	 and Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses	 £	169.1	 	 21.4	 £	139.3		  35.0	 £	103.2 

Weighted Average Pound/Dollar Exchange Rate	 	2.004	 			  1.851				   1.819 

N.M. = not a meaningful percentage										        
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

	 Premium income increased in 2007 relative to the prior year due primarily to sales of group and individual disability products and stable 

persistency for those two lines of business, partially offset by lower sales for group life and continued lower persistency relative to the 

levels of 2005 and early 2006. Net investment income increased in 2007 relative to the prior year due to continued growth in the business 

and the assets supporting the lines of business and also due to the positive performance of the investment portfolio’s index-linked bonds. 

	 The lower benefit ratio in 2007 in comparison to the prior year was primarily the result of a third quarter of 2007 adjustment to our 

long-term assumptions for claim reserves due to emerging experience and our view of future events, which increased 2007 segment 

operating income approximately £8.2 million. Also contributing to a lower benefit ratio for 2007 was a lower rate of claim incidence for 

both group long-term disability and group life, partially offset by lower claim recoveries for group long-term disability. 

	 Commissions increased in 2007 relative to the prior year primarily because of a higher portion of long-term disability business sold 

and renewed in 2007 on which a commission is paid. Amortization of DAC increased in 2007 due to the shorter amortization period for 

DAC resulting from the adoption of SOP 05-1. The amount of the cumulative effect adjustment decreased the 2007 opening balance of 

Unum UK DAC approximately £45.1 million, or $88.3 million, which results in decreased amortization because of the lower deferred asset 

level. However, the timing of policy renewals occurring during 2007 resulted in increased amortization, causing an overall net increase in 

expense for 2007. The other expense ratio remained consistent with the prior year due to a continued focus on expense management. 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

	 Premium income increased in 2006 relative to 2005 due to higher sales during 2005 in the group long-term disability and group life lines 

of business, partially offset by a decline in persistency levels, particularly in the group life line of business. Net investment income increased 

in 2006 relative to 2005 due to continued growth in the business and the assets supporting the lines of business and also due to the 

positive performance of the investment portfolio’s index-linked bonds. Other income for 2005 includes a before tax gain of £3.1 million 

related to the disposal of Unum UK’s Netherlands branch.

	 The lower benefit ratio in 2006 in comparison to 2005 was attributable to favorable claim experience in all lines of business. Group 

long-term disability continued to have favorable claim incidence and claim resolution experience, although to a lesser extent than in recent 

periods because of a lower level of claim resolutions on an acquired block of group long-term disability business. Group life reported 

favorable paid claim experience. Individual disability had favorable claim resolution experience during 2006.

	 Commissions decreased in 2006 due to the ongoing increase in the proportion of business sold on a no-commission-basis and lower 

individual disability commissions following the sale of the Netherlands branch in 2006.

	 Amortization of DAC increased in 2006 due to accelerated amortization attributable to the run-off of a small in-force block of 

individual disability business. Amortization of value of business acquired (VOBA), which is reported in “Other Expenses,” decreased in 

2006 due to the VOBA on a previously acquired group long-term disability claims block becoming fully amortized in 2005. 

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Group Long-term Disability	 $	 84.4	 	 6.7)%	 $	 79.1		  (13.3)%	 $	 91.2 

Group Life		  13.2	 	(20.0)		  16.5		  (50.0)		  33.0 

Individual Disability	 	 7.8	 	 41.8		  5.5		  (32.1)		  8.1 

Total Sales	 $	105.4	 	 4.3	 $	101.1		  (23.6)	 $	132.3 

Total Sales (in millions of pounds)	 £	 52.6	 	 (2.8)	 £	 54.1		  (25.6)	 £	 72.7	
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	 Sales in Unum UK were generally consistent with the overall level of 2006 as well as the level of sales in the core market segment, 

or employee groups with less than 500 lives. Sales in the U.K. market were negatively impacted during 2006 by lower employee benefits 

purchase decisions caused by distraction in the U.K. employee benefits market due to changes in pension legislation. However, U.K. 

legislative changes that removed discrimination by employers on the basis of age, therefore encouraging the extension of insurance 

coverage, became effective in October 2006, which accounted for approximately £11.1 million of sales during the latter half of 2006. 

During 2007, Unum UK continued to take advantage of the opportunities offered by age equality legislation, with £7.4 million of additional 

sales during 2007. Excluding sales related to the change in age equality legislation, Unum UK achieved underlying sales growth of 

approximately 5 percent in 2007 as compared to 2006.

	 Sales in Unum UK, while declining for full year 2006 relative to 2005 as a result of the distraction in the U.K. employee benefits 

market, improved in the second half of 2006 relative to the first half of the year due to the U.K. legislative changes that became effective 

in October 2006 as discussed above. 

Segment Outlook
	 During 2008, we intend to focus on continued profitable sales growth and improvement in our premium persistency. We anticipate 

that high levels of profitability in this segment will continue, but with margins likely to return to approximately 30 percent in the medium 

term as we invest in new growth opportunities. 

	 We expect to maintain our strong leadership position in the U.K. We plan to explore additional market opportunities to expand our 

growth in the group market through new distribution channels and new product offerings, including leveraging Unum US expertise to 

open up the voluntary workplace market in the U.K. In 2008, we plan to introduce an innovative group disability product targeted to our 

core market segment, and in our individual business we plan to emphasize our own brand sales in those markets where we presently 

hold a strong position. We also intend to launch an initiative to provide Unum UK with industry leading services, processes, systems, and 

operational capability.

	 If the British pound to dollar exchange rate weakens during 2008 relative to the prior year, it will unfavorably impact Unum UK’s 

reported financial results and our consolidated financial results relative to the results reported for 2007. 
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Colonial Life Segment
	 The Colonial Life segment includes insurance for accident, sickness, and disability products, life products, and cancer and critical illness 

products issued primarily by Colonial Life & Accident Insurance Company and marketed to employees at the workplace through an agency 

sales force and brokers. 

Operating Results
	 Shown below are financial results and key performance indicators for the Colonial Life segment.

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars, except ratios)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Operating Revenue										        

Premium Income										        

	 Accident, Sickness, and Disability	 $	 566.6		  6.2)%	 $	533.3		  4.8)%	 $	508.9 

	 Life		  	 143.5	 	 10.0		 130.5		  14.5		 114.0 

	 Cancer and Critical Illness	 	 197.1		  10.5		 178.3		  8.7		 164.1 

Total Premium Income	 	 907.2	 	 7.7		 842.1		  7.0		 787.0 

Net Investment Income	 	 99.9	 	 6.7		  93.6		  (2.5)		  96.0 

Other Income		  0.9	 	(18.2)		  1.1		  (75.0)		  4.4 

Total			   	1,008.0	 	 7.6		 936.8		  5.6		 887.4 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 	 437.8	 	 (0.8)		 441.4		  1.9		 433.2 

Commissions	 	 201.6	 	 9.0		 184.9		  8.3		 170.7 

Deferral of Acquisition Costs	 	 (210.9)		  12.4		 (187.6)		  8.2		 (173.4)

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs	 	 153.9	 	 6.6		 144.4		  7.2		 134.7 

Other Expenses	 	 179.8	 	 16.0		 155.0		  0.6		 154.1 

Total			   	 762.2		  3.3		 738.1		  2.6		 719.3 

Operating Income Before Income Tax  

	 and Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses	 $	 245.8		  23.7	 $	198.7		  18.2	 $	168.1 

Operating Ratios (% of Premium Income):										        

	 Benefit Ratio	 	 48.3%	 			   52.4%				    55.0%

	 Other Expense Ratio		  19.8%	 			   18.4%				    19.6%

	 Before-tax Operating Income Ratio		  27.1%	 			   23.6%				    21.4%

Premium Persistency:										        

	 Accident, Sickness, and Disability	 	 75.9%	 			   74.9%				    75.3%

	 Life		  	 83.8%	 			   84.2%				    84.1%

	 Cancer and Critical Illness	 	 84.1%	 			   82.3%				    83.2%
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

	 Growth in premium income was attributable primarily to current and prior period sales growth and stable persistency. Net investment 

income increased in 2007 in comparison to the prior year due primarily to growth in the level of assets supporting these lines of business. 

	 The benefit ratio for this segment decreased in 2007 in comparison to the prior year due primarily to favorable risk experience in the 

accident, sickness, and disability line of business as well as the life line of business. The improvement in the accident, sickness, and disability 

line of business resulted from the continued favorable experience related to several new products introduced in 2004. In addition, individual 

short-term disability claim incidence and average claim duration decreased in 2007 compared to the prior year, while the average claim 

payment was higher in 2007 relative to the prior year. For accident products, the claim incidence rate decreased in 2007 compared to  

the prior year, while the average claim payment remained constant in 2007 relative to the prior year. The life line of business reported  

a decrease in the rate of incurred claims for 2007, although the aggregate claim expense increased due to the larger block of business. 

The cancer and critical illness product line also reported a slightly lower benefit ratio in 2007 relative to the prior year.

	 Although we continue to focus on expense management, the other expense ratio for 2007 increased in comparison to the prior year 

due primarily to our investment in brand and product promotion and the development of additional product offerings. Also, during 2006 

we reported a one-time adjustment to commissions and operating expenses that increased reported commissions and reduced other 

expenses for that year. 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

	 Growth in premium income was attributable primarily to current and prior period sales growth and stable persistency, partially offset 

by the lapsing of policies during the first quarter of 2006 for policyholders in hurricane-impacted areas. Net investment income decreased  

in 2006 in comparison to 2005 due primarily to the receipt of interest during 2005 on a bond previously in default. 

	 The benefit ratio for this segment decreased in 2006 in comparison to 2005 due primarily to favorable risk experience in the accident, 

sickness, and disability line of business. The improvement resulted from underwriting actions taken in 2004 and 2005 as well as the 

introduction of several new products in 2004. Sales of these new products increased significantly during 2006. Also favorably impacting 

year-over-year comparisons was the first quarter of 2006 release of reserves related to the lapsed policies in the hurricane-impacted 

areas and a $3.5 million reserve charge in 2005 related to cancer litigation. In addition, individual short-term disability claim incidence and 

average claim duration decreased in 2006 compared to 2005, while the average indemnity on claims was higher in 2006 relative to 2005. 

For accident, the claim incidence rate decreased in 2006 relative to 2005, but the average claim payment increased over that reported for 

2005. These positive trends were slightly offset by an increase in the claim incidence rate as well as the average claim payment during 

2006 for our hospital income product. For cancer, the incidence increased in 2006 relative to 2005, but the incurred loss ratio decreased 

due to the introduction of a new cancer product. The life line of business reported a slight increase in the number of paid claims in 2006 

relative to 2005 and an increase in the average claim payment.

	 The other expense ratio for 2006 decreased in comparison to 2005 due primarily to our expense management focus and the 

increase in premium income as well as the commission and expense adjustment noted above. 
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Sales

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Accident, Sickness, and Disability	 $	211.3	 	 8.7%	 $	194.4		  10.0%	 $	176.8 

Life			   	 66.7	 	 0.2		  66.6		  9.9		  60.6 

Cancer and Critical Illness	 	 56.9		  5.2		  54.1		  10.4		  49.0

Total Sales	 $	334.9		  6.3	 $	315.1		  10.0	 $	286.4 

	 Colonial Life’s sales in 2007 increased in comparison to the prior year primarily due to sales increases in the public sector market for 

educators and in the commercial market segment for employee groups with less than 100 lives. Also contributing to the sales increase 

was an increase in the number of new accounts over the prior year, offset partially by a decrease in the average new case size, which 

resulted in lower annualized premium per case sold. 

	 Colonial Life’s sales increased in 2006 compared to 2005 due to increases in both public sector and commercial market segments.  

In addition, the 2005 hurricanes in the United States gulf coast region resulted in lower sales in the second half of 2005. 

Segment Outlook
	 During 2008, we intend to focus on sales and distribution growth by accelerating recruiting and development, capitalizing on sales 

opportunities where we have less market share, and assessing emerging distribution opportunities. We anticipate that high levels of 

profitability in this segment will continue, but with margins decreasing modestly as the benefit ratio returns to more historic levels  

of approximately 50 percent. 

	 We will continue the investment in brand, product promotion, and marketing programs that we initiated during 2007. Our 2008 

initiatives also include enhancement of our product development and enrollment capabilities. We intend to further enhance our continuous 

improvement program and focus on training and leadership development of our sales organization. We believe that the changes we have 

made and continue to make in our sales organization through recruiting, development, and training will continue to drive accelerated 

growth through improved productivity.
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Individual Disability — Closed Block Segment
	 The Individual Disability — Closed Block segment generally consists of those individual disability policies in force before the substantial 

changes in product offerings, pricing, distribution, and underwriting, which generally occurred during the period 1994 through 1998.  

A small amount of new business continued to be sold after these changes, but we stopped selling new policies in this segment at the 

beginning of 2004 other than update features contractually allowable on existing policies. 

Operating Results
	 Shown below are financial results and key performance indicators for the Individual Disability — Closed Block segment. 

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars, except ratios)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Operating Revenue										        

Premium Income	 $	1,009.9		  (5.0)%	 $	1,062.8		  5.1)%	 $	1,011.7 

Net Investment Income	 	 827.2		  (0.2)		  828.7		  7.6		  770.0 

Other Income	 	 103.7	 	 (1.3)		  105.1		  10.4		  95.2 

Total		  	 	1,940.8	 	 (2.8)		 1,996.6		  6.4		 1,876.9 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 	1,614.5	 	 (5.6)		 1,709.7		  9.4		 1,562.7 

Commissions	 	 69.1	 	 (9.3)		  76.2		  1.7		  74.9 

Other Expenses		  139.3	 	 (0.1)		  139.4		  (12.5)		  159.4 

Total			   	1,822.9		  (5.3)		 1,925.3		  7.1		 1,797.0 

Operating Income Before Income Tax  

	 and Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses	 $	 117.9	 	 65.4	 $	 71.3		  (10.8)	 $	 79.9 

Interest Adjusted Loss Ratio (1)	 	 91.4%				    97.3%				    89.3%

Operating Ratios (% of Premium  Income):										        

	 Other Expense Ratio (2)	 	 13.8%	 			   13.1%				    15.8%

	 Before-tax Operating Income Ratio (3)	 	 11.7%				    6.7%				    7.9%

Premium Persistency		  94.3%				    94.0%				    94.5%

(1) �Included in these ratios are charges (credits) of $(10.7) million, $47.2 million, and $23.1 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, related to the claim reassessment 
process. Excluding these charges and credits, the interest adjusted loss ratio for 2007, 2006, and 2005 would have been 92.5%, 92.9%, and 87.3%, respectively. 

(2) �Included in these ratios are increases (decreases) of $(2.5) million and $11.2 million in 2007 and 2005, respectively, related to the claim reassessment process. Excluding 
these items, the other expense ratio for 2007 and 2005 would have been 14.0% and 14.6%, respectively. 

(3) �Included in these ratios are charges (credits) of $(13.2) million, $47.2 million, and $34.3 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, related to the claim reassessment 
process. Excluding these charges and credits, the before-tax operating income ratio for 2007, 2006, and 2005 would have been 10.4%, 11.1%, and 11.3%, respectively. 
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

	 The decrease in premium income for 2007 relative to the prior year is due to the expected decline in this block of closed business, as  

well as an adjustment to premium income for a small block of ceded business for which the contract was modified during 2007. Partially 

offsetting these declines is an increase in premium income due to the reinsurance recapture of a small block of business, with an effective 

date of January 1, 2007, and an annualized premium income of approximately $7.0 million. Neither the contract modification nor the 

recapture had a material effect on operating results for this segment.

	 Net investment income decreased slightly in 2007 compared to the prior year due to a decrease in the level of assets supporting  

this business and the decline in the overall portfolio yield rate. As previously noted, during the fourth quarter of 2007, we entered into  

an intercompany reinsurance transaction whereby approximately 95 percent of our Individual Disability — Closed Block segment was 

ceded from Paul Revere Life, Provident, and Unum America to Northwind Re. With the risk transfer to Northwind Re, we released excess 

statutory capital previously supporting this reinsured closed block business. As a result, the capital allocated to our Individual Disability —  

Closed Block segment declined, with a resulting decrease in net investment income due to the lower asset levels needed to support 

allocated capital. Because this is an intercompany reinsurance arrangement, reported results remain unchanged for this segment other 

than the lower net investment income. 

	 Other income includes the underlying results of certain blocks of reinsured business. 

	 The interest adjusted loss ratio was lower in 2007 than the ratio for the prior year, excluding the revisions to the claim reassessment 

reserve estimate noted previously, due primarily to a higher rate of claim recoveries and a lower rate of submitted claims. 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

	 During the third quarter of 2005, we recaptured a closed block of individual disability business with approximately $1.6 billion in 

invested assets and $185.0 million of annual premium. Before the recapture, the underlying operating results of the reinsurance contract 

were reflected in other income. The recapture did not have a material effect on operating results for this segment.

	 The increase in premium income for 2006 relative to 2005 is due to the recapture of the ceded block of business, which increased 

reported premium income for 2006 by approximately $114.7 million relative to what was reported as premium income for the recaptured 

block of business in the prior year. Net investment income was higher in 2006 compared to 2005 because of the investment income 

related to the bonds transferred to one of our insurance subsidiaries in conjunction with the reinsurance recapture and due to an increase 

in bond call premiums. This increase was partially offset by a decline in the overall portfolio yield rate and a decline in prepayment 

income on mortgage-backed securities. 

	 Other income includes the underlying results of certain blocks of reinsured business, including the results of the recaptured block  

of business before the recapture date. 

	 Excluding the reserve charges noted previously, the 2006 interest adjusted loss ratio of 92.9 percent was higher than the prior year 

ratio of 87.3 percent due primarily to higher submitted claim incidence and a lower rate of claim recoveries. 

	 Other expenses, excluding charges related to the settlement agreements, decreased in 2006 in comparison to 2005 due to a 2005 

payment of a judgment in a lawsuit and also to our ongoing expense management. 

Segment Outlook
	 As a result of the decline in capital allocated to this segment, net investment income will decrease in 2008 relative to 2007 due to 

the lower asset levels needed to support allocated capital. We also expect that operating revenue and income will decline over time as  

this closed block of business winds down. We believe that the interest adjusted loss ratio for this block of business will be relatively flat 

over the long term, but the segment may experience quarterly volatility. Claim resolution rates are very sensitive to operational and 

environmental changes and can be volatile over short periods of time. During 2005 and 2006, we experienced quarter to quarter 

variability in our claim resolution rates. We believe this variability was primarily the result of a short-term reduction in the operating 

effectiveness of our claims management performance. During 2007, we gained more stability in our claims management performance, 

and our claim resolution rates were more consistent with our long-term assumptions. 
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	 Our claim resolution rate assumption used in determining reserves is our expectation of the resolution rate we will experience over 

the life of the block of business and will vary from actual experience in any one period. It is possible, however, that variability in our 

reserve assumptions could result in a material impact on our reserve levels.

Other Segment
	 The other operating segment includes results from Unum US insured products not actively marketed (with the exception of certain 

individual disability products), including individual life and corporate-owned life insurance, reinsurance pools and management operations, 

group pension, health insurance, and individual annuities. We expect operating revenue and income resulting from the products that are 

not actively marketed to decline over time as these business lines wind down, and we expect to reinvest the capital supporting these 

lines of business in the future growth of our Unum US, Unum UK, and Colonial Life segments. 

Operating Results

	 Year Ended December 31

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 % Change	 2006	 % Change	 2005

Operating Revenue										        

Premium Income	 $	 1.7	 	(62.2)%	 $	 4.5		  73.1)%	 $	 2.6 

Net Investment Income	 	108.4	 	 (4.2)		 113.2		  (6.1)		 120.5 

Other Income	 	 28.5	 	(15.7)		  33.8		  (6.1)		  36.0 

Total			   	138.6	 	 (8.5)		 151.5		  (4.8)		 159.1 

Benefits and Expenses										        

Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 	115.2	 	 (4.4)		 120.5		  (1.4)		 122.2 

Commissions		  1.9	 	(36.7)		  3.0		 172.7		  1.1 

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs		  —	 	 N.M.		  —		  N.M.		  0.5 

Other Expenses	 	 4.0	 	 11.1		  3.6		  (32.1)		  5.3 

Total			   	121.1	 	 (4.7)		 127.1		  (1.5)		 129.1 

Operating Income Before Income Tax  

	 and Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses	 $	 17.5	 	(28.3)	 $	 24.4		  (18.7)	 $	 30.0

N.M. = not a meaningful percentage				  

Reinsurance Pools and Management
	 Our reinsurance operations include the reinsurance management operations of Duncanson & Holt, Inc. (D&H) and the risk assumption, 

which includes reinsurance pool participation; direct reinsurance, which includes accident and health (A&H), long-term care (LTC),  

and long-term disability coverages; and Lloyd’s of London (Lloyd’s) syndicate participations. During the years 1999 through 2001, we 

discontinued new underwriting in our reinsurance pools and began an exit process from the pools and management operations through  

a combination of a sale, reinsurance, and/or placement of certain components in run-off. During 2007, this line of business reported an 

operating loss of $6.0 million compared to operating losses of $6.7 million and $11.0 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
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Individual Life and Corporate-Owned Life
	 During 2000, we reinsured substantially all of the individual life and corporate-owned life insurance blocks of business and ceded 

approximately $3.3 billion of reserves to the reinsurer. The $388.2 million before-tax gain on these transactions was deferred and is being 

amortized into income based upon expected future premium income on the traditional insurance policies ceded and estimated future 

gross profits on the interest-sensitive insurance policies ceded. A portion of the ceded corporate-owned life insurance block of business 

surrendered during 2007. The termination of this fully ceded business had no impact on our operating results and will not materially  

affect the amortization of the deferred gain.

	 Total operating revenue for individual life and corporate-owned life insurance was $29.4 million, $37.8 million, and $41.0 million  

in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Operating income for the same periods was $26.8 million, $33.0 million, and $38.8 million.

Other
	 Group pension, health insurance, individual annuities, and other closed lines of business had combined operating revenue of 

$103.6 million in both 2007 and 2006 and $110.4 million in 2005. These closed lines of business had combined operating income (losses) 

of $(3.3) million, $(1.9) million, and $2.2 million. 

Corporate Segment 
	 The Corporate segment includes investment income on corporate assets not specifically allocated to a line of business, corporate 

interest expense, and certain corporate income and expense not allocated to a line of business. 

	 Operating revenue in the Corporate segment was $46.3 million in 2007 compared to $60.5 million in 2006 and $61.2 million in 2005. 

	 The Corporate segment reported operating losses of $223.2 million, $184.7 million, and $152.8 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, 

respectively. Included in the corporate segment operating results for 2007 and 2006 are costs related to early retirement of debt of  

$55.6 million and $25.8 million, respectively. Also included in the corporate segment operating results is a litigation settlement accrual  

of $11.6 million in 2007 and broker compensation settlement expenses of $18.5 million in 2006. 

	 Interest and debt expense, excluding the costs related to early retirement of debt, was $186.3 million in 2007 compared to  

$191.8 million in 2006 and $208.0 million in 2005. See “Debt” contained herein for further discussion. 

Discontinued Operations
	 During the first quarter of 2007, we completed the sale of GENEX and recognized an after-tax gain on the transaction of approximately 

$6.2 million. This gain is included with income from discontinued operations in our statements of income. Also included in discontinued 

operations is after-tax income for GENEX of $0.7 million, $7.4 million, and $9.6 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. See Note 2  

of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additional information.
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Investments 

Overview
	 Investment activities are an integral part of our business, and profitability is significantly affected by investment results. We segment our 

invested assets into portfolios that support our various product lines. Generally, our investment strategy for our portfolios is to match the 

effective asset cash flows and durations with related expected liability cash flows and durations to consistently meet the liability funding 

requirements of our businesses. We try to maximize investment income and assume credit risk in a prudent and selective manner, subject to 

constraints of quality, liquidity, diversification, and regulatory considerations. Our overall investment philosophy is to invest in a portfolio 

of high quality assets that provide investment returns consistent with those assumed in the pricing of our insurance products. Assets are 

invested predominately in fixed maturity securities, and the portfolio is matched with liabilities so as to eliminate as much as possible our 

exposure to changes in the overall level of interest rates. Changes in interest rates may affect the amount and timing of cash flows. 

	 We actively manage our asset and liability cash flow match, as well as our asset and liability duration match to minimize interest rate 

risk. We may redistribute investments within our different lines of business, when necessary, to adjust the cash flow and/or duration of 

the asset portfolios to better match the cash flow and duration of the liability portfolios. Asset and liability portfolio modeling is updated 

on a quarterly basis and is used as part of the overall interest rate risk management strategy. Cash flows from the inforce asset and liability 

portfolios are projected at current interest rate levels and also at levels reflecting an increase and a decrease in interest rates to obtain a 

range of projected cash flows under the different interest rate scenarios. These results enable us to assess the impact of projected changes  

in cash flows and duration resulting from potential changes in interest rates. Testing the asset and liability portfolios under various interest 

rate scenarios enables us to choose the most appropriate investment strategy as well as to minimize the risk of disadvantageous outcomes. 

This analysis is a precursor to our activities in derivative financial instruments, which are used to hedge interest rate risk and to manage 

duration match. At December 31, 2007, the weighted average duration of our policyholder liability portfolio was approximately 8.03 years, 

and the weighted average duration of our investment portfolio supporting those policyholder liabilities was approximately 7.26 years. 

	 We believe that our investment portfolio is positioned to lessen the potential impact of an economic slowdown on our financial position 

or operating results. Our portfolio is well diversified by type of investment and industry sector. Over the past few years, we have actively 

reduced our exposure to below-investment-grade fixed maturity securities, although additional downgrades may occur during an economic 

slowdown. Recent market concerns have been centered on several specific types of investment securities. We have no exposure to 

subprime mortgages or collateralized debt obligations in our asset-backed or mortgage-backed securities portfolios, our exposure to  

“Alt-A” loans within our mortgage-backed securities portfolio is less than $6.0 million, and we hold less than $35.0 million of collateralized 

debt obligations within our public bond portfolio. We have approximately $150.0 million of exposure to investments for which the payment 

of interest and principal is guaranteed under a financial guaranty insurance policy. The weighted average rating of the underlying securities, 

absent the guaranty insurance policy, is A1.

	 Below is a summary of our formal investment policy, including the overall quality and diversification objectives.

	 • �The majority of investments are in high quality publicly traded securities to ensure the desired liquidity and preserve the capital 

value of our portfolios.

	 • �The long-term nature of our insurance liabilities also allows us to invest in less liquid investments to obtain superior returns.  

A maximum of 10 percent of the total investment portfolio may be invested in below-investment-grade securities, 2 percent in 

equity type instruments, up to 35 percent in private placements, and 5 percent in commercial mortgage loans. The remaining 

assets can be held in publicly traded investment-grade corporate securities, mortgage-backed securities, bank loans, asset-backed 

securities, government and government agencies, and municipal securities. 

	 • �We intend to manage the risk of losses due to changes in interest rates by matching asset duration with liabilities, in the aggregate, 

to within a range of +/- ten percent of the liability duration.

	 • The weighted average credit quality rating of the portfolio should be BBB or higher. 
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	 • �The maximum investment per issuer group is limited based on internal limits established by our board of directors and is more 

restrictive than the five percent limit generally allowed by the state insurance departments which regulate the type of investments 

our insurance subsidiaries are allowed to own. These internal limits are as follows:

		  Rating	 Internal Limit 

				    ($ in millions)

		  AAA/A	 $150

		  BBB+	 125

		  BBB	 100

		  BBB-	 75

		  BB+	 60

		  BB/BB-	 50

		  B		  20

	 • �The portfolio is to be diversified across industry classification and geographic lines.

	 • �Derivative instruments may be used to hedge interest rate risk and foreign currency risk and match liability duration and cash flows 

consistent with the plan approved by the board of directors.

	 • �Asset mix guidelines and limits are established by us and approved by the board of directors.

	 • �The allocation of assets and the selection and timing of the acquisition and disposition of investments are subject to ratification, on 

a weekly basis, by an investment subcommittee appointed by our board of directors. These actions are also reviewed and approved 

by the finance committee of our board of directors on a quarterly basis.

	 • �These investment policies and guidelines are reviewed and appropriately adjusted by the board of directors annually, or more 

frequently if deemed necessary. 

Investment Results
	 Net investment income was $2,409.9 million in 2007, an increase of 3.8 percent relative to the prior year. The increase was due 

primarily to growth in invested assets, partially offset by a lower yield due to the investment of new cash at lower rates than that of our 

overall portfolio yield and a decline in the level of prepayment income on mortgage-backed securities. 

	 The overall yield in our investment portfolio was 6.66 percent as of December 31, 2007, and the weighted average credit rating  

was A2. This compares to an overall yield in the portfolio of 6.73 percent as of December 31, 2006 and a weighted average credit rating 

of A2. We expect the portfolio yield to continue to gradually decline until the market rates on new purchases equal or exceed the level  

of the overall yield. 

	 We recognize impairment losses when we determine that the value of certain fixed maturity securities has other than temporarily 

declined during the applicable reporting period, as well as when there are further declines in the values of fixed maturity securities that 

were initially written down in a prior period. See “Critical Accounting Estimates” contained herein for a complete discussion of the 

valuation of fixed maturity securities.

	 We also report changes in the fair values of certain embedded derivatives as realized investment gains and losses, as required under 

the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 Implementation Issue B36 (DIG Issue B36), Embedded Derivatives: 

Modified Coinsurance Arrangements and Debt Instruments That Incorporate Credit Risk Exposure That Are Unrelated or Only Partially Related 

to the Creditworthiness of the Obligor Under Those Instruments. During 2007, changes in the fair value of the embedded derivatives in 

certain reinsurance contracts resulted in net realized losses of $57.3 million, which resulted primarily from a widening of credit spreads in 

the overall investment market, not from credit deterioration of the investments held in the portfolios supporting the modified coinsurance 

reserves. Fair value changes in 2005 include an embedded derivative that was terminated when the associated reinsurance contract was 

recaptured in 2005. Under our remaining reinsurance contracts for which DIG Issue B36 is applicable, we believe that fair value changes 

will be minimal.
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	 Realized investment gains and losses, before tax, are as follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Gross Realized Investment Gain from Sales					     $	105.8	 $	82.0	 $	110.8 

Gross Realized Investment Loss					   

	 Write-downs						      76.2	 	17.2		  19.4 

	 Sales							       37.5	 	57.3		  90.2 

	 Total						      	113.7	 	74.5		 109.6 

Change in Fair Value of DIG Issue B36 Derivatives				    		 (57.3)	 	(5.3)		  (7.9)

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)				    	 $	(65.2)	 $	 2.2	 $	 (6.7)

	 One of the factors we evaluate in determining when a decline in fair value below amortized cost of a fixed maturity security is other 

than temporary is our ability and intent to retain the security for a sufficient period of time for it to recover. During the third quarter of 

2007, we recognized losses of $18.4 million related to the decline in fair value below amortized cost for certain securities for which it was 

determined during the third quarter of 2007 that we no longer had the intent to hold to recovery or maturity due to anticipated changes 

in our capital requirements, as previously discussed. 

	 Also during 2007, we recorded an adjustment to the book values and related unrealized loss of two securitized asset trusts acquired 

in 2001 to reflect the values that would have been present had we recorded the investment income as dividends rather than interest 

accretion. The book value adjustment of $20.2 million was recognized as a realized investment loss in the second quarter of 2007. Because 

the investments no longer satisfied our investment objectives, we subsequently sold the trusts in June of 2007 and recognized a realized 

investment gain of $24.9 million on the sale.

Realized Investment Losses $10.0 Million or Greater from Other than Temporary Impairments
	 During 2007, we recognized an other than temporary impairment loss of $15.0 million on bonds issued by a large media company. The 

company was the subject of a leveraged buyout that placed a large amount of debt on the balance sheet during 2007. Because of our 

outlook for the future business prospects of this issuer, the length of time these securities had been in an unrealized loss position, and  

a change in our intent to retain the security for a sufficient period of time for it to recover, we determined that an other than temporary 

impairment had occurred. These securities were investment grade at the time of purchase but were downgraded to below-investment-

grade in the second quarter of 2006. At the time of the impairment, these securities had been in an unrealized loss position for a period 

of greater than two years. The circumstances of this impaired investment have no impact on other investments. 

	 We had no individual realized investment losses $10.0 million or greater from other than temporary impairments during 2006.

	 During 2005, we recognized an other than temporary impairment loss of $10.3 million on certificates issued by a trust backed by 

leases to a U.S. based airline. Although the airline had filed for bankruptcy in the third quarter of 2004, the bonds were secured by aircraft 

owned by the trust and had remained current on all interest payments to date. However, due to the lack of clarity regarding the value of 

aircraft collateralizing these securities and the length of time these securities had been in an unrealized loss position, we determined that 

an other than temporary impairment had occurred. These securities were investment-grade at the time of purchase but were downgraded to 

below-investment-grade in the first quarter of 2000. At the time of the impairment, these securities had been continuously in an unrealized 

loss position for a period of greater than three years. The circumstances of this impaired investment have no impact on other investments.
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Realized Investment Losses $10.0 Million or Greater from Sale of Fixed Maturity Securities
	 We had no individual realized investments losses $10.0 million or greater from the sale of fixed maturity securities during 2007. 

	 During 2006, we recognized a loss of $13.1 million on the sale of securities issued by a U.S. based automotive parts supplier. In an 

October 2005 press release, this company confirmed that due to accounting errors it would restate its previously released 2004 and first 

and second quarter 2005 earnings and delay third and fourth quarter 2005 earnings releases. In a first quarter of 2006 press release, the 

company reported third quarter 2005 results which were significantly below expectations and also withdrew guidance of positive free cash 

flow for its fiscal year 2005. Trade creditors put into place more stringent credit terms in response to the weaker financial results, which 

forced the company into bankruptcy in the first quarter of 2006. A portion of these securities had an investment-grade rating at the time 

of purchase, and a portion was purchased after the securities had been downgraded to below-investment-grade in the second quarter  

of 2001. At the time of sale, these securities had been continuously in an unrealized loss position for a period of greater than three years. 

The circumstances of this investment have no impact on other investments.

	 During 2005, we recognized a loss of $14.6 million on the sale of securities issued by a major U.S. based automotive parts supplier. 

These securities were investment-grade at the time of purchase but were downgraded to below-investment-grade in the first quarter of 

2005. At the time of sale, these securities had been continuously in an unrealized loss position for a period of greater than 90 days but 

less than 180 days. The circumstances of this investment have no impact on other investments. 

	 Also during 2005, we recognized a loss of $12.6 million on the sale on securities issued by a major U.S. based automotive manufacturer. 

These securities were investment-grade at the time of purchase but were downgraded to below-investment-grade in the third quarter  

of 2005. At the time of sale, these securities had been continuously in an unrealized loss position for a period of less than 90 days. The 

circumstances of this investment have no impact on other investments. 

Asset Distribution
	 The following table provides the distribution of invested assets for the periods indicated. Ceded policy loans of $2.4 billion as of 

December 31, 2007 and $3.2 billion as of December 31, 2006, which are reported on a gross basis in the consolidated balance sheets,  

are excluded from the table below. Ceded policy loans declined during 2007 due to the surrender of a portion of our ceded corporate-owned 

life insurance block of business. The investment income on ceded policy loans is not included in income. Therefore, the termination of this 

fully ceded business had no impact on our net investment income. 

Distribution of Invested Assets

	 December 31	

					     2007	 2006	

Investment-Grade Fixed Maturity Securities	 	 87.2%	 89.0%

Below-Investment-Grade Fixed Maturity Securities		  5.3	 5.8	

Mortgage Loans and Real Estate		  2.8	 2.6	

Short-Term Investments		  3.9	 1.8	

Other Invested Assets		  0.8	 0.8	

	 Total			   100.0%	 100.0%
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Fixed Maturity Securities
	 Fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2007, included $35.3 billion, or 98.9 percent, of bonds and derivative instruments and  

$384.8 million, or 1.1 percent, of redeemable preferred stocks. The following table shows the fair value composition by internal industry 

classification of the fixed maturity bond portfolio and the associated unrealized gains and losses. 

Fixed Maturity Bonds — By Industry Classification

As of December 31, 2007

(in millions of dollars) 

			   Fair Value		  Fair Value 
			   of Bonds		  of Bonds			 
		  Net	 with Gross	 Gross	 with Gross	 Gross		
		  Unrealized	 Unrealized	 Unrealized	 Unrealized	 Unrealized	  
Classification	 Fair Value	 Gain (Loss)	 Loss	 Loss	 Gain	 Gain

Basic Industry		  $  2,281.4		 $     47.5		  $     913.8		  $  50.6		  $  1,367.6		  $     98.1 

Canadian			  290.0		  60.2		  —		  —		  290.0		  60.2 

Capital Goods		  2,674.6		  105.3		  968.3		  54.0		  1,706.3		  159.3 

Communications		  2,395.9		  111.6		  841.2		  53.6		  1,554.7		  165.2 

Consumer Cyclical		  1,348.6		  (3.9)		  699.6		  58.3		  649.0		  54.4 

Consumer Non-Cyclical		  4,193.8		  91.5		  1,723.0		  82.7		  2,470.8		  174.2 

Derivatives Hedging Available-for-Sale		  (91.1)		  (92.2)		  (232.6)		  232.6		  141.5		  140.4 

Energy (Oil & Gas)		  2,455.5		  204.2		  449.4		  16.8		  2,006.1		  221.0 

Financial Institutions		  3,536.1		  (92.2)		  2,563.0		  149.1		  973.1		  56.9 

Mortgage/Asset-Backed		  4,237.5		  230.7		  488.8		  6.9		  3,748.7		  237.6 

Sovereigns		  1,070.4		  50.5		  558.9		  7.5		  511.5		  58.0 

Technology		  571.5		  8.1		  279.9		  15.2		  291.6		  23.3 

Transportation		  981.1		  57.1		  322.2		  13.0		  658.9		  70.1 

U.S. Government Agencies and Municipalities		  2,462.5		  149.8		  840.9		  28.7		  1,621.6		  178.5 

Utilities			   6,930.9		  179.7		  3,169.2		  144.3		  3,761.7		  324.0 

Total				    $35,338.7		 $1,107.9		  $13,585.6		  $913.3		  $21,753.1		  $2,021.2 

	 The above chart excludes DIG Issue B36 embedded derivatives, which at December 31, 2007 had a fair value of $(68.8) million.
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	 The following table is a distribution of the maturity dates for fixed maturity bonds in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2007. 

Fixed Maturity Bonds — By Maturity

As of December 31, 2007

(in millions of dollars)

	 Fair Value of Bonds with	 Gross 

	 Gross Unrealized Loss	 Unrealized Loss

Due in 1 year or less	 $	 167.3	 $	 1.0	

Due after 1 year up to 5 years		  1,124.9		  18.0	

Due after 5 years up to 10 years		  3,948.3		 417.1	

Due after 10 years		  7,856.3		 470.3	

Subtotal				  13,096.8		 906.4	

Mortgage/Asset-Backed Securities		  488.8		  6.9	

Total				   $	13,585.6	 $	913.3	

	 Of the $913.3 million in gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2007, $781.5 million, or 85.6 percent, are related to investment-grade 

fixed maturity bonds and result primarily from increases in interest rates or changes in market or sector credit spreads which occurred 

subsequent to acquisition of the bonds. The following table shows the length of time the investment-grade fixed maturity bonds had 

been in a gross unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2007.

Unrealized Loss on Investment-Grade Fixed Maturity Bonds

Length of Time in Unrealized Loss Position

As of December 31, 2007
(in millions of dollars)

	 Fair Value	 Gross Unrealized Loss

Fair value < 100% >= 70% of amortized cost

<= 90 days	 $	 657.8	 $	 8.7	

> 90 <= 180 days		  500.2		  14.4	

> 180 <= 270 days		  1,701.3		  48.7	

> 270 <= 1 year		  925.9		  35.4	

> 1 year <= 2 years		  4,548.6		 198.5	

> 2 years <= 3 years		  2,786.5		 154.2	

> 3 years				  1,137.7		 295.9	

Total					   $	12,258.0	 $	755.8	

Fair value < 70% >= 40% of amortized cost 

> 2 years <= 3 years	 $	 0.7	 $	 0.4	

> 3 years				  54.0		  25.3	

Total					   $	 54.7	 $	 25.7 
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	 The following table shows the length of time the below-investment-grade fixed maturity bonds had been in a gross unrealized loss 

position as of December 31, 2007. The relationships of the current fair value to amortized cost are not necessarily indicative of the fair 

value to amortized cost relationships for the securities throughout the entire time that the securities have been in an unrealized loss 

position nor are they necessarily indicative of the relationships after December 31, 2007.

Unrealized Loss on Below-Investment-Grade Fixed Maturity Bonds

Length of Time in Unrealized Loss Position

As of December 31, 2007

(in millions of dollars)

	 Fair Value	 Gross Unrealized Loss

Fair value < 100% >= 70% of amortized cost	

<= 90 days	 $	 186.5	 $	 5.6	

> 90 <= 180 days		  169.5		  11.4	

> 180 <= 270 days		  371.7		  19.9 

> 270 <= 1 year		  63.3		  11.3 

> 1 year <= 2 years		  138.0		  19.3 

> 2 years <= 3 years		  218.0		  40.7 

> 3 years				  109.8		  15.7 

Total					   $	1,256.8	 $	123.9 

Fair value < 70% >= 40% of amortized cost 

> 2 years <= 3 years	 $	 16.1	 $	 7.9 

	 As of December 31, 2007, we held four securities with a gross unrealized loss of $10.0 million or greater, as shown in the chart below. 

Gross Unrealized Losses on Fixed Maturity Bonds

$10.0 Million or Greater

As of December 31, 2007

(in millions of dollars)						    

			   Length of Time 

Fixed Maturity Bonds	 Fair Value	 Gross Unrealized Loss	 in a Loss Position

Investment-Grade						    

U.S. Government Sponsored Mortgage Funding Company	 $	377.9	 $	22.3		  > 3 years

Principal Protected Equity Linked Note		  54.0		 25.3		  > 3 years

Total					   $	431.9	 $	47.6		

Below-Investment Grade						    

United Kingdom Based Financial Institution	 $	 16.5	 $	13.2		  > 1 year <= 2 years

U.S. Based Automobile Manufacturer		  26.8		 10.4		  > 2 years <= 3 years

Total					   $	 43.3	 $	23.6		

	 Unrealized losses on investment-grade fixed maturity securities principally relate to changes in interest rates or changes in market or 

sector credit spreads which occurred after the acquisition of the securities. These changes are generally temporary and are not recognized 

as realized investment losses unless the securities are sold, it becomes unlikely that we will hold the securities until recovery based on 
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relevant facts and circumstances, or the securities become other than temporarily impaired. Generally, below-investment-grade fixed 

maturity securities are more likely to develop credit concerns. In determining whether a decline in fair value below amortized cost of a 

fixed maturity security is other than temporary, we utilize a formal, well-defined, and disciplined process to monitor and evaluate our 

fixed income investment portfolio. The process results in a thorough evaluation of problem investments and the recording of realized 

losses on a timely basis for investments determined to have an other than temporary impairment.

	 For those fixed maturity securities with an unrealized loss and on which we have not recorded an impairment loss, we believe that 

the decline in fair value below amortized cost is temporary. We have the ability and intent to hold our securities to the earlier of recovery 

or maturity. If information becomes available that changes our assessment as to whether we will receive contractual payments related to 

a fixed maturity security and the security is also not projected to recover in value, the related security is generally sold. We may also in 

certain circumstances sell a security in an unrealized loss position because of changes in tax laws, when a merger or the disposition of a 

segment or product line results in positions outside of our investment guidelines, due to changes in regulatory or capital requirements, 

due to unexpected changes in liquidity needs, to better match portfolio cash flows, or to take advantage of relative value opportunities  

or tender offers that recover up to or beyond the cost of the investment.

	 For those securities with a gross unrealized loss of $10.0 million or greater, further discussed as follows are (a) the factors which we 

believe resulted in the impairment and (b) the information we considered, both positive and negative, in reaching the conclusion that the 

impairments were not other than temporary.

	 • �The fixed maturity bond of the U.S. government sponsored mortgage funding company was issued by the Federal Home Loan 

Mortgage Corporation. The bond was rated AAA by S&P as of December 31, 2007, with no negative outlook by rating agencies or in 

analysts’ reports. The change in the market value of this security relates to changes in interest rates after the purchase of the bond. 

We believe that the decline in fair value of this security is temporary. The market value of this security will increase if interest rates 

decline to levels similar to when the bonds were purchased. We believe this is likely to occur over the life of the security. We have 

the ability to hold this security to the earlier of recovery or maturity.

	 • �The principal protected equity linked note is a zero coupon bond, issued by a large, well capitalized Fortune 500 financial services 

company, the return of which is linked to a Vanguard S&P 500 index mutual fund. This bond matures on August 24, 2020 and carried 

the AA rating of the issuer, as determined by S&P as of December 31, 2007. This note has an embedded derivative contract and 

substitutes highly rated bonds in place of the underlying S&P 500 index mutual fund to provide principal protection if there is a 

significant decline in the equities market. The note derives its value from the underlying S&P 500 index mutual fund. This note is 

currently at an unrealized loss because the fixed rate of accretion on the note has exceeded the rate of return on the underlying 

S&P 500 index fund since the purchase date of the note. Based on historical long-term returns of the S&P 500 index, we believe that 

the value of the underlying S&P 500 index mutual fund will equate to or exceed the par value of the security at maturity. We believe 

that the decline in fair value of the note is temporary. We have the ability to hold this security to the earlier of recovery or maturity.

	 • �The fair value of the securities of the United Kingdom based financial institution declined due to a significant decrease in its liquidity, 

although The Bank of England has guaranteed the institution’s deposits and senior debt securities. In addition, at the time of the 

decrease in liquidity, the regulatory authority of the U.K. financial services industry stated that the financial institution exceeded 

regulatory requirements and had a good quality loan book. Two private-sector bidders have presented offers to purchase the 

institution at prices that give equity value to the company. We believe that the decline in fair value of these securities is temporary. 

We have the ability to hold these securities to the earlier of recovery or maturity.

	 • �The fixed maturity bonds of the U.S. based automobile manufacturer are securities issued by the manufacturer and its captive 

finance subsidiary. The reduction in market value of these securities is due primarily to a decline in profitability and cash flow due 

to the competitive environment, a loss of market share, the shift in consumer demand, and an increase in the cost of raw materials 

and employee healthcare and pension benefits. The company and its finance subsidiary both have substantial liquidity, and the 

company has non-core automotive brands available for sale. Given this available liquidity, we believe that the decline in fair value 

of these securities is temporary. We have the ability to hold these securities to the earlier of recovery or maturity.
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	 Our mortgage/asset-backed securities were approximately $4.0 billion and $3.8 billion on an amortized cost basis at December 31, 

2007 and 2006, respectively. At December 31, 2007, the mortgage/asset-backed securities had an average life of 7.0 years, effective 

duration of 5.7 years, and a weighted average credit rating of AAA. The mortgage/asset-backed securities are valued on a monthly basis 

using valuations supplied by the brokerage firms that are dealers in these securities as well as independent pricing services. The primary 

risk involved in investing in mortgage/asset-backed securities is the uncertainty of the timing of cash flows from the underlying loans  

due to prepayment of principal with the possibility of reinvesting the funds in a lower interest rate environment. We use models which 

incorporate economic variables and possible future interest rate scenarios to predict future prepayment rates. 

	 We have not invested in mortgage-backed derivatives, such as interest-only, principal-only, or residuals, where market values can be 

highly volatile relative to changes in interest rates. All of our mortgage-backed securities are fixed rate. The credit quality of our mortgage-

backed securities portfolio has not been negatively impacted by the recent issues in the market concerning subprime mortgage loans. The 

change in value of our mortgage-backed securities portfolio has moved in line with that of prime agency-backed mortgage-backed securities. 

	 As of December 31, 2007, our exposure to below-investment-grade fixed maturity securities was $2,023.8 million, approximately  

5.3 percent of the fair value of invested assets excluding ceded policy loans, compared to 5.8 percent at the end of 2006. Below-investment-

grade bonds are inherently more risky than investment-grade bonds since the risk of default by the issuer, by definition and as exhibited 

by bond rating, is higher. Also, the secondary market for certain below-investment-grade issues can be highly illiquid. Additional downgrades 

may occur, but we do not anticipate any liquidity problem caused by our investments in below-investment-grade securities, nor do we 

expect these investments to adversely affect our ability to hold our other investments to maturity.

	 We have a significant interest in, but are not the primary beneficiary of, a special purpose entity which is a collateralized bond obligation 

asset trust (CBO) in which we hold interests in several of the tranches and for which we act as investment manager of the underlying high-yield 

securities. This entity is a cash flow CBO and was fully funded at the time of issuance. Our potential losses in this CBO are limited to our investment 

in the entity. Our investment in this entity is reported at fair value with fixed maturity securities in the consolidated balance sheets. The fair 

value of this investment was derived from the fair value of the underlying assets. The fair value and amortized cost of this investment were 

$12.0 million and $11.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 2007, and $18.8 million and $18.4 million, respectively, at December 31, 2006. 

Mortgage Loans and Real Estate
	 Our mortgage loan portfolio was $1,068.9 million and $944.0 million on an amortized cost basis at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

We expect that we will continue to add investments in this category either through the secondary market or through loan originations. 

We believe our mortgage loan portfolio is well diversified geographically and among property types. The incidence of problem mortgage 

loans and foreclosure activity remains low, and we expect the level of delinquencies and problem loans to remain low in the future. We 

had no impaired mortgage loans at December 31, 2007. Impaired mortgage loans totaled $2.8 million at December 31, 2006. 

	 Real estate was $18.2 million and $17.9 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Investment real estate is carried at cost 

less accumulated depreciation. Real estate acquired through foreclosure is valued at fair value at the date of foreclosure and may be classified 

as investment real estate if it meets our investment criteria. If investment real estate is determined to be permanently impaired, the carrying 

amount of the asset is reduced to fair value. Occasionally, investment real estate is reclassified to real estate held for sale when it no longer 

meets our investment criteria. Real estate held for sale, which is valued net of a valuation allowance that reduces the carrying value to 

the lower of cost or fair value less estimated cost to sell, was $8.9 million and $6.5 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

	 We use a comprehensive rating system to evaluate the investment and credit risk of each mortgage loan and to identify specific 

properties for inspection and reevaluation. We establish an investment valuation allowance for mortgage loans based on a review of 

individual loans and the overall loan portfolio, considering the value of the underlying collateral. Investment valuation allowances for real 

estate held for sale are established based on a review of specific assets. If a decline in value of a mortgage loan or real estate investment 

is considered to be other than temporary or if the asset is deemed permanently impaired, the investment is reduced to estimated net 

realizable value, and the reduction is recognized as a realized investment loss. We monitor the risk associated with these invested asset 

portfolios and regularly review and adjust the investment valuation allowance. We had no valuation allowance for mortgage loans at 

December 31, 2007. The balance in the valuation allowance for mortgage loans was $0.5 million at December 31, 2006. The balance in 

the valuation allowance for real estate was $7.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006. 
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Derivatives
	 We use derivative financial instruments to manage reinvestment risk, duration, and currency risk. Historically, we have utilized interest 

rate futures contracts, current and forward interest rate swaps and options on forward interest rate swaps, current and forward currency 

swaps, interest rate forward contracts, forward treasury locks, currency forward contracts, and forward contracts on specific fixed income 

securities. All of these freestanding derivative transactions are hedging in nature and not speculative. Positions under our hedging programs 

for derivative activity that were open during 2007 involved current and forward interest rate swaps, current and forward currency swaps, 

currency forward contracts, forward treasury locks, and options on forward interest rate swaps. Almost all hedging transactions are 

associated with the individual and group long-term care and the individual and group disability products. All other product portfolios are 

periodically reviewed to determine if hedging strategies would be appropriate for risk management purposes.

	 Our current credit exposure on derivatives, which is limited to the value of those contracts in a net gain position less collateral held, 

was $47.9 million at December 31, 2007. The carrying value of fixed maturity securities pledged as collateral to our counterparties was 

$265.8 million at December 31, 2007. See Note 5 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additional information. 

Other
	 Our exposure to non-current investments, on a fair value basis, totaled $2.6 million at December 31, 2007, compared to $12.5 million  

at December 31, 2006. 

	 We have an investment program where we simultaneously enter into repurchase agreement transactions and reverse repurchase 

agreement transactions with the same party. We net the related receivables and payables in the consolidated balance sheets since these 

transactions meet the requirements for the right of offset. We did not have any of these agreements in an open position at December 31, 

2007. We also use the repurchase agreement market as a source of short-term financing, but had no contracts for this purpose 

outstanding at December 31, 2007.

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
	 Our liquidity requirements are met primarily by cash flows provided from operations, principally in our insurance subsidiaries. Premium 

and investment income, as well as maturities and sales of invested assets, provide the primary sources of cash. Debt and/or securities 

offerings provide an additional source of liquidity. Cash is applied to the payment of policy benefits, costs of acquiring new business 

(principally commissions), operating expenses, and taxes, as well as purchases of new investments. We have established an investment 

strategy that we believe will provide for adequate cash flows from operations.

	 Our policy benefits are primarily in the form of claim payments, and we have minimal exposure to the policy withdrawal risk associated 

with deposit products such as individual life policies or annuities. A decrease in demand for our insurance products or an increase in the 

incidence of new claims or the duration of existing claims could negatively impact our cash flows from operations. Deterioration in the 

credit market, which could delay our ability to sell our positions in certain of our fixed maturity securities in a timely manner, could also 

negatively impact our cash flows. We believe our cash resources are sufficient to meet our liquidity requirements for the next 12 months.

	 During 2007, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $700.0 million of Unum Group’s common stock. The share 

repurchase program does not have an expiration date, and the pace of repurchase activity will depend upon various factors such as the 

level of available cash, alternative uses for cash, and our stock price. The authorization may be modified, extended, or terminated by our 

board of directors at any time. 

	 During January 2008, we repurchased approximately $350.0 million of our outstanding common stock, pursuant to the share repurchase 

authorization, using an accelerated share repurchase agreement. Under the terms of the repurchase agreement, we may receive, or be 

required to pay, a price adjustment based on the volume weighted average price of our common stock during the term of the agreement. 

Any price adjustment payable to us will be settled in shares of our common stock. Any price adjustment we are required to pay will be 

settled, at our option, in either cash or common stock. We expect the price adjustment to settle on or before the completion of the 

agreement in May 2008.
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	 During 2008, we intend to retain sufficient capital in our traditional U.S. insurance subsidiaries to maintain a weighted average RBC 

ratio in excess of our stated long-term objective of 300 percent. We also intend to maintain our leverage ratio at or slightly below our target 

levels. We expect that holding company liquidity will be in excess of $300.0 million at the end of 2008.

	 Our cash flows from discontinued operations are combined with cash flows from continuing operations within each cash flow 

statement category in our consolidated statements of cash flows for the applicable periods. The absence of cash flows from discontinued 

operations has not, nor is it expected to, materially affect liquidity and capital resources.

Consolidated Cash Flows 

Operating Cash Flows

	 Net cash provided by operating activities was $1,750.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to $1,431.9 million and 

$1,503.6 million for the comparable periods of 2006 and 2005. Operating cash flows are primarily attributable to the receipt of premium 

and investment income, offset by payments of claims, commissions, expenses, and income taxes. Premium income growth is dependent 

not only on new sales, but on renewals of existing business, renewal price increases, and stable persistency. Investment income growth 

is dependent on the growth in the underlying assets supporting our insurance reserves and on the level of portfolio yield rates. Increases 

in commissions and operating expenses are attributable primarily to new sales growth and the first year acquisition expenses associated 

with new business. The level of paid claims is due partially to the growth and aging of the block of business and also to the general economy, 

as previously discussed in the operating results by segment. Included in operating cash flows for 2007, 2006 and 2005 are voluntary pension 

contributions to our U.S. qualified defined benefit plan of $110.0 million, $92.0 million and $23.0 million, respectively. We also had increased 

cash inflows of approximately $211.4 million in 2007 due to the reinsurance recapture of a small block of individual disability business. 

	 The year to year fluctuation in the income tax adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities is due 

mostly to a tax benefit recognized during 2006 which resulted from the reversal of tax liabilities related primarily to group relief benefits 

recognized from the use of net operating losses in a foreign jurisdiction. 

Investing Cash Flows

	 Investing cash inflows consist primarily of the proceeds from the sales and maturities of investments. Investing cash outflows consist 

primarily of payments for purchases of investments. Net cash used by investing activities was $1,855.0 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2007 compared to $1,222.0 million and $1,635.6 million for the comparable periods of 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

	 We had lower proceeds from sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities in 2007 compared to 2006, primarily due to a 

decrease in scheduled maturities of fixed maturity securities as well as a lower level of proceeds from principal prepayments on mortgage-

backed securities. Somewhat offsetting this decline was the sale of a block of available-for-sale securities to generate the liquidity 

needed to repurchase debt in the fourth quarter as part of our capital redeployment plan. 

	 Proceeds from sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities in 2006 were higher than in 2005 due to the sale of floating rate 

bonds in the first quarter of 2006 which were initially purchased in the fourth quarter of 2005 with the proceeds from a debt issuance.  

We invested the 2005 fourth quarter debt proceeds in short-term investments and floating-rate bonds to provide liquidity needed for our 

$400.0 million purchase of debt in the first quarter of 2006. The proceeds from the subsequent sale in 2006 of these short-term investments 

and floating-rate bonds are included in sales of bonds and net purchases of short-term investments in 2006. We also had higher proceeds 

from maturities of investments in 2006 than in 2005 due to an increase in fixed maturity security principal proceeds from bond calls and 

scheduled maturities, offset somewhat by a decrease in principal prepayments on mortgage-backed securities. 

	 Purchases of available-for-sale securities increased during 2007, in part due to the investing of the net cash inflows of $98.8 million 

from the sale of GENEX and the $211.4 million cash inflows from the reinsurance recapture. 
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	 Purchases of other investments declined during 2007 relative to the prior years due to a decline in the purchase of commercial 

mortgage loans.

	 Net purchases of short-term investments increased during 2007 as a result of the liquidity needed for our capital redeployment plan 

previously discussed. During the fourth quarter of 2007, we issued $800.0 million of debt and invested the proceeds in floating rate bonds 

and short-term investments. Short-term investments were used as an interim investment as we seek suitable floating rate investments to 

support the floating rate debt. We also purchased short-term investments throughout 2007 as we anticipated the funding needed for our 

common stock repurchase program.

	 As noted above, the proceeds from dispositions in 2007 relate to the sale of GENEX. During 2005, we had cash inflows of $8.8 million 

related to the sale of Unum UK’s Netherlands branch and cash outflows of $3.5 million related to the GENEX acquisition of Independent 

Review Services, Inc. 

	 Policy loans, as reported in our consolidated balance sheet, declined during 2007 due to the surrender of a portion of our ceded 

corporate-owned life insurance block of business. The termination of this fully ceded business had no impact on our cash inflows or outflows. 

Financing Cash Flows

	 Financing cash flows consist primarily of borrowings and repayments of debt, issuance or repurchase of common stock, and dividends paid  

to stockholders. Net cash provided by financing activities was $181.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to net cash 

used of $157.0 million and net cash provided of $71.0 million for the comparable periods of 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

	 During 2007, we received proceeds of approximately $800.0 million, less debt issuance costs of $15.1 million, from the issuance  

of $800.0 million aggregate principal amount of debt by Northwind Holdings. We also repurchased and/or made principal payments of 

$769.5 million aggregate principal amount of outstanding debt during 2007, for an aggregate cash outflow of $803.7 million including the 

debt repurchase costs of $34.2 million. 

	 During 2007, we received proceeds of approximately $300.0 million and issued 17.7 million shares of common stock upon the 

settlement of the common stock purchase contract element of the 2004 units. 

	 During 2006, we received proceeds of approximately $130.0 million, less debt issuance costs of $4.1 million, from the issuance  

of $130.0 million aggregate principal amount of debt by Tailwind Holdings. We also repurchased and/or made principal payments of 

$732.0 million aggregate principal amounts of outstanding debt during 2006, for an aggregate cash outflow of $749.9 million including 

debt repurchase costs of $17.9 million. 

	 During 2006, we received proceeds of approximately $575.0 million and issued 43.3 million shares of common stock upon the 

settlement of the common stock purchase contract element of the 2003 units.

	 During 2005, we repaid $227.0 million of maturing debt. Also in 2005, we received proceeds of $399.6 million from the issuance  

of $400.0 million aggregate principal amount of debt less underwriting discounts of $4.0 million. 

	 See “Debt” as follows for further information.

Cash Available from Subsidiaries
	 Unum Group and certain of its intermediate holding company subsidiaries and/or finance subsidiaries depend on payments from subsidiaries 

to pay dividends to stockholders, to pay debt obligations, and/or to pay expenses. These payments by our insurance and non-insurance 

subsidiaries may take the form of interest payments on loans from the parent to a subsidiary, operating and investment management fees, 

and/or dividends. At December 31, 2007, Unum Group had outstanding from one of its insurance subsidiaries a $100.0 million 8.25% surplus 

debenture due in 2027. Semi-annual interest payments are conditional upon the approval by the insurance department of the applicable 

state of domicile. During 2006, Unum Group received $150.0 million from one of its insurance subsidiaries for the repayment of a surplus 

debenture issued to Unum Group in December 1996 with a maturity date of December 2006.
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	 Restrictions under applicable state insurance laws limit the amount of ordinary dividends that can be paid to a parent company from 

its insurance subsidiaries in any 12-month period without prior approval by regulatory authorities. For life insurance companies domiciled 

in the United States, that limitation generally equals, depending on the state of domicile, either ten percent of an insurer’s statutory surplus 

with respect to policyholders as of the preceding year end or the statutory net gain from operations, excluding realized investment gains 

and losses, of the preceding year. 

	 The payment of ordinary dividends to a parent company from its insurance subsidiaries is generally further limited to the amount of 

statutory surplus as it relates to policyholders. Based on the restrictions under current law, during 2008, $626.5 million is available for the 

payment of ordinary dividends to Unum Group from its traditional U.S. insurance subsidiaries, excluding Northwind Re and Tailwind Re. 

	 Unum Group and/or certain of its finance subsidiaries may also receive dividends from its United Kingdom-based affiliate, Unum 

Limited, subject to applicable insurance company regulations and capital guidance in the United Kingdom. During 2006, the FSA completed 

its review of Unum Limited’s capitalization and determined that Unum Limited’s current capitalization is in excess of the amount considered 

to be sufficient capitalization. Approximately £202.1 million is available for the payment of dividends from Unum Limited during 2008, 

subject to regulatory approval.

	 The amount available during 2007 for the payment of ordinary dividends from Unum Group’s traditional U.S. insurance subsidiaries was 

$506.2 million, of which $262.7 million was declared and paid. The traditional U.S. insurance subsidiaries also declared extraordinary dividends 

of $1,374.2 million in conjunction with the Northwind Re transaction, $1,346.0 million of which were paid in 2007 and $28.2 million in 

January 2008. The amount available during 2007 from Unum Limited was £102.2 million, of which £100.3 million was declared and paid. 

	 Northwind Holdings’ and Tailwind Holdings’ ability to meet their debt payment obligations will be dependent upon the receipt  

of dividends from Northwind Re and Tailwind Re, respectively. The ability of Northwind Re and Tailwind Re to pay dividends to their 

respective parent companies will depend on their satisfaction of applicable regulatory requirements and on the performance of the 

reinsured business. During 2007, Northwind Re received regulatory approval from the insurance department of its state of domicile to  

pay a dividend of $37.0 million to Northwind Holdings, and Tailwind Re received regulatory approval from the insurance department of  

its state of domicile to pay dividends of $35.0 million to Tailwind Holdings. 

	 The payment of dividends to the parent company from our subsidiaries also requires the approval of the individual subsidiary’s board 

of directors.

	 The ability of Unum Group and certain of its intermediate holding company subsidiaries and/or finance subsidiaries to continue to 

receive dividends from their insurance subsidiaries without regulatory approval generally depends on the level of earnings of those insurance 

subsidiaries as calculated under law. In addition to regulatory restrictions, the amount of dividends that may be paid by insurance subsidiaries 

will depend on additional factors, such as RBC ratios, funding growth objectives at an affiliate level, and maintaining appropriate capital 

adequacy ratios to support desired ratings. Insurance regulatory restrictions do not limit the amount of dividends available for distribution 

from non-insurance subsidiaries except where the non-insurance subsidiaries are held directly or indirectly by an insurance subsidiary and 

only indirectly by Unum Group. Unum Group’s RBC ratio for its traditional U.S. insurance subsidiaries, calculated on a weighted average 

basis using the NAIC Company Action Level formula, was approximately 344 percent at the end of 2007, with the individual RBC ratios for 

Unum Group’s principal traditional U.S. insurance subsidiaries all in excess of our long-term target ratio of 300 percent. The individual RBC 

ratios for Northwind Re and Tailwind Re, calculated using the NAIC Company Action Level formula, were each slightly above the target 

level of 200 percent which was established for these special purpose financial captive insurance companies. The individual RBC ratio for 

each of our insurance subsidiaries is above the range that would require state regulatory action. 
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Debt
	 At December 31, 2007, we had long-term debt, including senior secured notes and junior subordinated debt securities, totaling $2,515.2 million 

and short-term debt of $175.0 million due in May 2008. Our leverage ratio, when calculated excluding the non-recourse debt and associated 

capital of Tailwind Holdings and Northwind Holdings and also allowing 50 percent equity credit for the adjustable conversion-rate equity 

security units that were still outstanding at the beginning of the year, was 21.4 percent at the end of 2007, compared to 26.2 percent at 

the beginning of 2007, subsequent to our cumulative effect adjustment to equity for the adoption of the new accounting policies related 

to deferred acquisition costs and income taxes. Our leverage ratio, when calculated using consolidated debt to total consolidated capital, 

was 26.4 percent at the end of 2007, compared to 28.8 percent at the beginning of 2007.

	 On October 31, 2007, Northwind Holdings issued $800.0 million floating rate, insured, senior, secured notes in a private offering. 

Recourse for the payment of principal, interest, and other amounts due on the notes will be limited to the assets of Northwind Holdings, 

consisting primarily of the stock of its sole subsidiary Northwind Re, a Vermont special purpose financial captive insurance company. 

Northwind Holdings’ ability to meet its payment obligations under the notes will be dependent principally upon its receipt of dividends 

from Northwind Re. The ability of Northwind Re to pay dividends to Northwind Holdings will depend on its satisfaction of applicable 

regulatory requirements and on the performance of the reinsured claims of Provident, Paul Revere and Unum America (the ceding insurers) 

reinsured by Northwind Re. None of Unum Group, the ceding insurers, Northwind Re or any other affiliate of Northwind Holdings is an 

obligor or guarantor on the notes. 

	 On November 1, 2006, Tailwind Holdings issued $130.0 million floating rate, insured, senior, secured notes in a private offering. 

Recourse for the payment of principal, interest, and other amounts due on the notes will be limited to the assets of Tailwind Holdings, 

consisting primarily of the stock of its sole subsidiary Tailwind Re, a South Carolina special purpose financial captive insurance company. 

Tailwind Holdings’ ability to meet its payment obligations under the notes will be dependent principally upon its receipt of dividends from 

Tailwind Re. The ability of Tailwind Re to pay dividends to Tailwind Holdings will depend on its satisfaction of applicable regulatory 

requirements and on the performance of the reinsured claims of Unum America reinsured by Tailwind Re. None of Unum Group, Unum 

America, Tailwind Re or any other affiliate of Tailwind Holdings is an obligor or guarantor on the notes. The balance outstanding on these 

notes was $112.5 million at December 31, 2007. 

	 In the fourth quarter of 2007, we purchased and retired $17.5 million of our outstanding 6.75% notes scheduled to mature in 2028. 

Pursuant to a cash tender offer, we purchased and retired $23.5 million aggregate liquidation amount of the 7.405% junior subordinated 

debt securities due 2038; $99.9 million aggregate principal amount of the 7.625% notes due 2011; $210.5 million aggregate principal 

amount of the 7.375% notes due 2032; and $66.1 million aggregate principal amount of the 6.75% notes due 2028. We also called and 

retired all $150.0 million principal amount of our outstanding 7.25% notes scheduled to mature in 2032.

	 Also in 2007, in open market transactions, we purchased $34.5 million of our outstanding 6.85% notes due 2015 and $17.5 million of 

our outstanding senior secured notes issued by Tailwind Holdings. In February 2007, the scheduled remarketing of the senior note element  

of the 2004 units occurred, as stipulated by the terms of the original offering, and we reset the interest rate of $300.0 million of senior 

notes due May 15, 2009 to 5.859%. We purchased $150.0 million of the senior notes in the remarketing which were subsequently retired. 

In May 2007, we settled the purchase contract element of the units by issuing 17.7 million shares of common stock. We received proceeds 

of approximately $300.0 million from the transaction. 

	 In the fourth quarter of 2007, we entered into a $400.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility. At December 31, 2007, we had no 

borrowings outstanding on this facility. The facility has a 364 day tenor and a one year term out option. Within this facility is a $100.0 million 

dollar letter of credit sub-limit.
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	 In the second quarter of 2006, pursuant to a cash tender offer, we purchased and retired $50.0 million aggregate liquidation amount 

of our 7.405% junior subordinated debt securities due 2038 and $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of our outstanding 7.625% notes 

due 2011. In the fourth quarter of 2006, in open market transactions, we purchased $32.0 million of our outstanding 6.85% notes due 2015.

	 In February 2006, the scheduled remarketing of the senior note element of the 2003 units occurred, as stipulated by the terms of the 

original offering, and we reset the interest rate on $575.0 million of senior notes due May 15, 2008 to 5.997%. We purchased $400.0 million 

of the senior notes in the remarketing which were subsequently retired. In May 2006, we settled the purchase contract element of the 

units by issuing 43.3 million shares of common stock. We received proceeds of approximately $575.0 million from the transaction.

	 During the fourth quarter of 2005, Unum Group repatriated $454.8 million in unremitted foreign earnings from its U.K. subsidiaries, 

and as part of its repatriation plan, issued $400.0 million of 6.85% senior debentures due November 15, 2015 in a private offering. The 

aggregate principal amount outstanding was $333.5 million at December 31, 2007. 

	 In 2001, Unum Group issued $575.0 million of 7.625% senior notes due March 1, 2011. The aggregate principal amount outstanding 

was $225.1 million at December 31, 2007. 

	 In 2002, Unum Group completed two long-term offerings, issuing $250.0 million of 7.375% senior debentures due June 15, 2032 and 

$150.0 million of 7.250% public income notes due June 15, 2032. The public income notes were called and retired in 2007 as previously 

discussed. The 7.375% notes have an aggregate principal amount outstanding of $39.5 million at December 31, 2007. 

	 In 1998, Unum Group completed public offerings of $200.0 million of 7.25% senior notes due March 15, 2028, $200.0 million of 7.0% 

senior notes due July 15, 2018, and $250.0 million of 6.75% senior notes due December 15, 2028. None of these amounts have been 

reduced other than the 6.75% notes, which have an aggregate principal amount outstanding of $166.4 million at December 31, 2007.

	 In 1998, Provident Financing Trust I (the trust) issued $300.0 million of 7.405% capital securities in a public offering. These capital 

securities, which mature on March 15, 2038, are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Unum Group, have a liquidation value of $1,000 

per capital security, and have a mandatory redemption feature under certain circumstances. Unum Group issued 7.405% junior subordinated 

deferrable interest debentures, which mature on March 15, 2038, to the trust in connection with the capital securities offering. The securities 

issued by the trust have an aggregate principal amount outstanding of $226.5 million at December 31, 2007. 

	 Unum Group has debt securities with an aggregate principal amount outstanding of $62.0 million which were initially issued in three 

separate series in 1990, 1993, and 1996, pursuant to an indenture dated September 15, 1990. The notes are fixed maturity rate notes with 

fixed maturity dates ranging between nine months to thirty years from the issuance date. 

	 Unum Group has a shelf registration, which became effective in 2005, with the Securities and Exchange Commission to issue various 

types of securities, including common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, depository shares, stock purchase contracts, units and warrants, 

or preferred securities of wholly-owned finance trusts up to an aggregate of $1.0 billion. If utilized, the shelf registration will enable us to 

raise funds from the offering of any individual security covered by the shelf registration as well as any combination thereof, subject to 

market conditions and our capital needs. 

	 See Note 9 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additional information.
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Commitments
	 The following table summarizes contractual obligations and our reinsurance recoverable by period as of December 31, 2007 (in millions  

of dollars). Excluded from the table are tax liabilities of approximately $168.5 million for which we are unable to make reasonably reliable 

estimates of the period of potential cash settlements, if any, with taxing authorities. 

		  In 1 Year	 After 1 Year	 After 3 Years 

	 Total	 or Less	 up to 3 Years	 up to 5 Years	 After 5 Years

Payments Due

Short-term Debt	 $	 180.2	 $	 180.2	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —  

Long-term Debt		  5,410.0		  152.7		  433.2		  493.5		  4,330.6 

Policyholder Liabilities		 39,292.7		 4,549.1		 6,605.2		 4,976.7		 23,161.7 

Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits		  1,973.7		  64.7		  131.9		  134.3		  1,642.8 

Miscellaneous Liabilities		  253.9		  220.9		  4.7		  7.0		  21.3 

Operating Leases		  108.8		  26.7		  43.5		  20.5		  18.1 

Purchase Obligations		  73.1		  72.2		  0.9		  —		  —

Total			   $	47,292.4	 $	5,266.5	 $	7,219.4	 $	5,632.0	 $	29,174.5 

Receipts Due									       

Reinsurance Recoverable	 $	 7,644.3	 $	 337.4	 $	 570.4	 $	 511.5	 $	 6,225.0 

	 Short-term and long-term debt includes contractual principal and interest payments and therefore exceeds the amount shown in the 

consolidated balance sheet. See Note 9 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for additional information.

	 Policyholder liability maturities and the related reinsurance recoverable represent the projected payout of the current inforce 

policyholder liabilities and the expected cash inflows from reinsurers for liabilities ceded and therefore incorporate uncertainties as to  

the timing and amount of claim payments. We utilize extensive liability modeling to project future cash flows from the inforce business. 

The primary assumptions used to project future cash flows are claim incidence rates for mortality and morbidity, claim resolution rates, 

persistency rates, and interest rates. These cash flows are discounted to determine the current value of the projected claim payments.  

The timing and amount of payments on policyholder liabilities may vary significantly from the projections above. See our previous 

discussion of asset/liability management under “Investments” contained herein. 

	 Pensions and other postretirement benefit obligations include our defined benefit pension and postretirement plans for our employees, 

including non-qualified pension plans. Pension plan obligations, other than the non-qualified plans, represent our contributions to the 

pension plans, with the next 12 months’ contributions equaling our planned contributions and the remaining years’ contributions projected 

based on the average remaining service period assuming the current funded status of the plans. Non-qualified pension plan and other 

postretirement benefit obligations represent the expected benefit payments related to these plans, discounted with respect to interest and 

reflecting expected future service, as appropriate. See Note 10 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” and “Critical 

Accounting Estimates” contained herein for additional information.
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	 Miscellaneous liabilities include commissions due and accrued, deferred compensation liabilities, state premium taxes payable, 

amounts due to reinsurance companies, and various other liabilities that represent contractual obligations. Obligations where the timing 

of the payment was uncertain were included in the one year or less category.

	 Operating leases include noncancelable obligations on certain office space and equipment.

	 Purchase obligations include commitments of $35.9 million to fund certain private placement fixed maturity and equity securities 

and $22.8 million for commercial mortgage loan originations. These are shown in the table above based on the expiration date of the 

commitments. The funds will be due upon satisfaction of contractual notice from the trustee or issuer of the private placement securities 

or at closing of the mortgage loans. The amounts may or may not be funded. Also included are noncancelable obligations with outside 

parties for computer data processing services and related functions and software maintenance agreements. The aggregate obligation 

remaining under these agreements was $14.4 million at December 31, 2007. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
	 As noted in the preceding discussion, we have operating lease commitments and purchase obligations totaling $108.8 million and  

$73.1 million, respectively, at December 31, 2007. 

	 We maintain a committed and unsecured credit facility and letters of credit. See “Debt” contained herein for further description  

of this arrangement.

	 As part of our regular investing strategy, we receive collateral from unaffiliated third parties through transactions which include both 

securities lending and also short-term agreements to purchase securities with the agreement to resell them at a later, specified date. For 

both types of transactions, we require that a minimum of 102 percent of the fair value of the securities loaned or securities purchased 

under repurchase agreements be maintained as collateral. Generally, cash is received as collateral under these agreements. In the event 

that securities are received as collateral, we are not permitted to sell or repledge them. We also pledge our fixed maturity securities as 

collateral to unaffiliated third parties through transactions including both securities lending and also short-term agreements to sell securities 

with the agreement to repurchase them at a later, specified date. At December 31, 2007, the carrying value of fixed maturity securities 

pledged as collateral to third parties under these programs was $2.0 million. 

	 To help limit the credit exposure of the derivatives, we enter into master netting agreements with our counterparties whereby 

contracts in a gain position can be offset against contracts in a loss position. We also typically enter into bilateral, cross-collateralization 

agreements with our counterparties to help limit the credit exposure of the derivatives. These agreements require the counterparty in a 

loss position to submit acceptable collateral with the other counterparty in the event the net loss position meets or exceeds an agreed 

upon amount. Our current credit exposure on derivatives, which is limited to the value of those contracts in a net gain position less 

collateral held, was $47.9 million at December 31, 2007. The carrying value of fixed maturity securities pledged as collateral to our 

counterparties was $265.8 million at December 31, 2007.

Ratings	
	 A.M. Best Company (AM Best), Fitch Ratings (Fitch), Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s), and Standard & Poor’s Corporation (S&P) 

are among the third parties that assign issuer credit ratings to Unum Group and financial strength ratings to our insurance subsidiaries. 

Issuer credit ratings reflect an agency’s opinion of the overall financial capacity of a company to meet its senior debt obligations. Financial 

strength ratings are specific to each individual insurance subsidiary and reflect each rating agency’s view of the overall financial strength 

(capital levels, earnings, growth, investments, business mix, operating performance, and market position) of the insuring entity and its 

ability to meet its obligations to policyholders. Both the issuer credit ratings and financial strength ratings incorporate quantitative and 

qualitative analyses by rating agencies and are routinely reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis.
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	 We compete based in part on the financial strength ratings provided by rating agencies. A downgrade of our financial strength ratings 

can be expected to adversely affect us and could potentially, among other things, adversely affect our relationships with distributors of 

our products and services and retention of our sales force, negatively impact persistency and new sales, particularly large case group 

sales and individual sales, and generally adversely affect our ability to compete. A downgrade in the issuer credit rating assigned to 

Unum Group can be expected to adversely affect our cost of capital or our ability to raise additional capital.

	 The table below reflects the issuer credit ratings for Unum Group and the financial strength ratings for each of our traditional 

insurance subsidiaries as of the date of this filing. 

				    AM Best	 Fitch	 Moody’s	 S&P

Issuer Credit Ratings	 bbb- (Good)	 BBB- (Good)	 Ba1 (Speculative)	 BB+ (Speculative)

Financial Strength Ratings				  

	 Provident Life & Accident	 A- (Excellent)	 A- (Strong)	 Baa1 (Adequate)	 BBB+ (Good)

	 Provident Life & Casualty	 A- (Excellent)	 A- (Strong)	 Not Rated	 Not Rated

	 Unum Life of America	 A- (Excellent)	 A- (Strong)	 Baa1 (Adequate)	 BBB+ (Good)

	 First Unum Life	 A- (Excellent)	 A- (Strong)	 Baa1 (Adequate)	 BBB+ (Good)

	 Colonial Life & Accident	 A- (Excellent)	 A- (Strong)	 Baa1 (Adequate)	 BBB+ (Good)

	 Paul Revere Life	 A- (Excellent)	 A- (Strong)	 Baa1 (Adequate)	 BBB+ (Good)

	 Paul Revere Variable	 A- (Excellent)	 A- (Strong)	 Baa1 (Adequate)	 Not Rated

	 Unum Limited	 A- (Excellent)	 Not Rated	 Not Rated	 BBB+ (Good)

	 We maintain an ongoing dialogue with the four rating agencies in order to inform them of progress we are making regarding our 

strategic objectives and financial plans, as well as other pertinent issues. A significant component of our communications includes an 

annual review meeting, as well as other meetings not limited to quarterly updates regarding our business. During the second quarter of 

2007, we conducted our annual review with Moody’s, S&P, and Fitch. Our annual review meeting with AM Best took place in the fourth 

quarter of 2007. 

	 On August 1, 2007, S&P raised the outlook from “stable” to “positive” on our financial strength ratings and reaffirmed the positive 

outlook on our holding company’s issuer credit rating. On January 29, 2008, AM Best reaffirmed the ratings of Unum Group and its operating 

subsidiaries and upgraded the outlook from “negative” to “stable.” The agency’s revised outlook was positioned on our increased financial 

flexibility, the quality of our investment portfolio, the operational execution of our operating segments, and the completion of the claim 

reassessment process. On February 4, 2008, Fitch revised its outlook for Unum Group and its operating subsidiaries to “positive” from 

“stable,” citing our progress in increasing profitability and decreasing risk and our improved capitalization levels as the basis for the upgrade. 

On February 14, 2008, Moody’s revised its outlook for Unum Group and its operating subsidiaries to “stable” from “negative,” basing its 

revision on the overall improvement in our financial flexibility. There have been no other changes in any of the rating agencies’ outlook 

statements or ratings during 2007 or prior to the date of this filing.

	 Agency ratings are not directed toward the holders of our securities and are not recommendations to buy, sell, or hold our securities. 

Each rating is subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organization, and each rating should be regarded as an 

independent assessment, not conditional on any other rating. Given the dynamic nature of the ratings process, changes by these or other 

rating agencies may or may not occur in the near-term. 

	 See “Ratings” and “Risk Factors — Issuer Credit Ratings and Financial Strength Ratings” contained herein for further discussion. 
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	 We are subject to various market risk exposures, including interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk. The following discussion 

regarding our risk management activities includes forward-looking statements that involve risk and uncertainties. Estimates of future 

performance and economic conditions are reflected assuming certain changes in market rates and prices were to occur (sensitivity 

analysis). Caution should be used in evaluating our overall market risk from the information presented below, as actual results may differ. 

We employ various derivative programs to manage these material market risks. See Notes 4 and 5 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements” for further discussions of the qualitative aspects of market risk, including derivative financial instrument activity. 

Interest Rate Risk 
	 Our operations are subject to risk resulting from interest rate fluctuations, primarily long-term U.S. interest rates. Changes in interest rates 

and individuals’ behavior affect the amount and timing of asset and liability cash flows. We continually model and test asset and liability 

portfolios to improve interest rate risk management and net yields. Testing the asset and liability portfolios under various interest rate and 

economic scenarios allows us to choose the most appropriate investment strategy, as well as to prepare for disadvantageous outcomes. 

This analysis is the precursor to our activities in derivative financial instruments. We use interest rate swaps, interest rate forward contracts, 

exchange-traded interest rate futures contracts, and options to hedge interest rate risks and to match asset durations and cash flows with 

corresponding liabilities. 

	 Assuming an immediate increase of 100 basis points in interest rates from year end levels, the net hypothetical decrease in stockholders’ 

equity related to financial and derivative instruments was estimated to be $1.2 billion and $1.4 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006, 

respectively. The fair values of mortgage loans, which are reported in our consolidated balance sheets at amortized cost, would decrease 

by approximately $60 million and $50 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

	 At December 31, 2007 and 2006, assuming a 100 basis point decrease in long-term interest rates from year end levels, the fair values 

of our short-term and long-term debt would increase approximately $140 million and $210 million, respectively.

	 The effect of a change in interest rates on asset prices was determined using a duration implied methodology for corporate bonds, 

private placement securities, and government and government agency securities whereby the duration of each security was used to 

estimate the change in price for the security assuming an increase of 100 basis points in interest rates. The effect of a change in interest 

rates on the mortgage-backed securities is estimated using a mortgage analytic system which takes into account the impact of changing 

prepayment speeds resulting from a 100 basis point increase in interest rates on the change in price of the mortgage-backed securities. 

These hypothetical prices were compared to the actual prices for the period to compute the overall change in market value. The changes 

in the fair values of long-term debt were determined using discounted cash flows analyses. Because we actively manage our investments 

and liabilities, actual changes could be less than those estimated above. 
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Foreign Currency Risk 
	 We are also subject to foreign exchange risk arising from our foreign operations and certain investment securities denominated in those 

local currencies. Foreign operations represented 7.7 percent and 7.4 percent of total assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, 

and 11.1 percent and 9.7 percent of total revenue from continuing operations for 2007 and 2006, respectively. Assuming foreign exchange 

rates decreased 10 percent from the December 31, 2007 and 2006 levels, stockholders’ equity and net income as of and for the periods 

then ended would not have been materially affected.

Risk Management
	 We have an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) program, with primary objectives of: 

	 • �Improving our Company’s risk-based decision making; 

	 • �Effectively utilizing our capital to improve our Company’s risk adjusted returns; 

	 • �Improving and protecting shareholder value; and 

	 • �Supporting efforts to minimize our reputational risk.

	 Our chief risk officer manages the ERM program. We utilize a “pyramid” risk committee structure, beginning with our board of director 

committees and cascading down to business segment risk committees, to govern our ERM process and manage our risks in an integrated 

manner. Collectively, these committees are responsible for managing our strategic, market, credit, insurance, operational, capital and 

liquidity, and reputational risks.

	 An executive risk management committee is responsible for overseeing our corporate-wide risk management program. Representative 

activities of this committee include, but are not limited to, reviewing risk reports, establishing corporate risk tolerance levels, providing 

direction on emerging risk issues, and reporting on a periodic basis to our board of directors. The following executives comprise the committee: 

our president and chief executive officer, our chief financial officer and chief actuary, our general counsel, the presidents of our three 

primary business units, our chief operating officer for Unum U.S., our chief risk officer, and the senior vice president of internal audit.

	 Business unit risk committees for each of our three primary business units as well as our corporate function are responsible for 

identifying, measuring, reporting, and managing insurance and operational risks within their respective areas, consistent with corporate 

risk tolerance levels. Market and credit risk are jointly managed and executed by our asset/liability and investment committees.
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	 December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006

Assets				  

Investments				  

	 Fixed Maturity Securities — at fair value (amortized cost: $34,629.2; $33,414.1)		  $	35,654.7	 $	35,001.5 

	 Mortgage Loans			   	 1,068.9		  944.0 

	 Real Estate			   	 18.2		  17.9 

	 Policy Loans			   	 2,617.7		  3,429.5 

	 Other Long-term Investments			   	 104.7		  122.0 

	 Short-term Investments			   	 1,486.8		  648.4 

Total Investments			   	40,951.0		 40,163.3 

Other Assets				  

	 Cash and Bank Deposits			   	 199.1		  121.3 

	 Accounts and Premiums Receivable			   	 1,914.7		  2,057.1 

	 Reinsurance Recoverable			   	 5,160.0		  5,512.2 

	 Accrued Investment Income				    592.3		  646.8 

	 Deferred Acquisition Costs				    2,381.9		  2,983.1 

	 Goodwill			   	 204.3		  204.1 

	 Property and Equipment				    393.7		  370.1 

	 Other Assets			   	 615.5		  624.5 

	 Other Assets — Discontinued Operations				    —		  112.3 

	 Separate Account Assets			   	 20.2		  28.5 

	

							     

				  

Total Assets	 		  $	52,432.7	 $	52,823.3

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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	 December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity				  

Liabilities				 

	 Policy and Contract Benefits		  	 $	 1,979.7	 $	 2,220.4 

	 Reserves for Future Policy and Contract Benefits			   	35,828.0		 35,689.4 

	 Unearned Premiums			   	 523.1		  520.1 

	 Other Policyholders’ Funds			   	 1,821.2		  2,019.1 

	 Income Tax Payable			   	 148.6		  44.4 

	 Deferred Income Tax			   	 251.7		  567.3 

	 Short-term Debt			   	 175.0		  —  

	 Long-term Debt		  		  2,515.2		  2,659.6 

	 Other Liabilities			   	 1,130.1		  1,326.7 

	 Other Liabilities — Discontinued Operations				    —		  29.0 

	 Separate Account Liabilities			   	 20.2		  28.5 

Total Liabilities			   	44,392.8		 45,104.5 

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities — Note 15				  

Stockholders’ Equity				  

Common Stock, $0.10 par			 

	 Authorized: 725,000,000 shares			 

	 Issued: 362,844,570 and 344,578,616 shares			   	 36.3		  34.4 

Additional Paid-in Capital			   	 2,516.9		  2,200.0 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)			 

	 Net Unrealized Gain on Securities			   	 356.1		  534.8 

	 Net Gain on Cash Flow Hedges			   	 182.5		  194.2 

	 Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment			   	 123.4		  116.0 

	 Unrecognized Pension and Postretirement Benefit Costs			   	 (198.5)		  (232.2)

Retained Earnings		  		  5,077.4		  4,925.8 

Treasury Stock — at cost: 1,951,095 shares			   	 (54.2)		  (54.2)

Total Stockholders’ Equity			   	 8,039.9		  7,718.8 

				  

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity			   $	52,432.7	 $	52,823.3

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

65977_FIN_Blueline.indd   71 3/27/08   2:24:30 PM



88       Unum 2007 Annual Report

Consolidated Statements of Income

	 Year Ended December 31	

(in millions of dollars, except per share data)		  2007	 2006	 2005

Revenue						    

	 Premium Income	 $	 7,901.1	 $	 7,948.2	 $	 7,815.6 

	 Net Investment Income		  2,409.9		  2,320.6		  2,188.3 

	 Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)		  (65.2)		  2.2		  (6.7)

	 Other Income	 	 274.1		  264.3		  262.1 

Total Revenue		 10,519.9		 10,535.3		 10,259.3 

Benefits and Expenses						    

	 Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 	 6,988.2		  7,577.2		  7,083.2 

	 Commissions		  841.1		  819.0		  804.7 

	 Interest and Debt Expense	 	 183.1		  191.8		  208.0 

	 Cost Related to Early Retirement of Debt		  58.8		  25.8		  — 

	 Deferral of Acquisition Costs	 	 (556.3)		  (528.2)		  (519.4)

	 Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs		  480.4		  478.6		  463.7 

	 Compensation Expense	 	 722.4		  680.5		  659.0 

	 Other Expenses	 	 805.0		  825.2		  866.2 

Total Benefits and Expenses		  9,522.7		 10,069.9		  9,565.4 

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Tax		  997.2		  465.4		  693.9 

Income Tax (Benefit)						    

	 Current	 	 264.2		  150.5		  116.2 

	 Deferred	 	 60.6		  (88.7)		  73.7 

Total Income Tax	 	 324.8		  61.8		  189.9 

Income from Continuing Operations		  672.4		  403.6		  504.0 

Discontinued Operations — Note 2						    

	 Income Before Income Tax		  17.8		  13.2		  15.7 

	 Income Tax		  10.9		  5.8		  6.1 

Income from Discontinued Operations	 	 6.9		  7.4		  9.6 

Net Income	 $	 679.3	 $	 411.0	 $	 513.6 

Earnings Per Common Share						    

	 Basic					   

		  Income from Continuing Operations	 $	 1.90	 $	 1.25	 $	 1.71 

		  Net Income	 $	 1.92	 $	 1.27	 $	 1.74 

	 Assuming Dilution					   

		  Income from Continuing Operations	 $	 1.89	 $	 1.21	 $	 1.61 

		  Net Income	 $	 1.91	 $	 1.23	 $	 1.64

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

	 Year Ended December 31	

(in millions of dollars)		  2007	 2006	 2005

Common Stock						    

Balance at Beginning of Year	 $	 34.4	 $	 30.1	 $	 29.8 

	 Common Stock Activity		  1.9		  4.3		  0.3 

Balance at End of Year		  36.3		  34.4		  30.1 

Additional Paid-In Capital						    

Balance at Beginning of Year	 	2,200.0		 1,627.9		 1,588.4 

	 Common Stock Activity	 	 316.9		  585.9		  39.5 

	 Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle Change — Note 1		  —		  (13.8)		  —  

Balance at End of Year	 	2,516.9		 2,200.0		 1,627.9 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income						    

Balance at Beginning of Year	 	 612.8		 1,163.5		 1,481.1 

	 Change During Year	 	 (149.3)		  (466.6)		  (317.6)

	 Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle Change — Note 1		  —		  (84.1)		  —  

Balance at End of Year	 	 463.5		  612.8		 1,163.5 

Retained Earnings						    

Balance at Beginning of Year	 	4,925.8		 4,610.4		 4,185.5 

	 Net Income		  679.3		  411.0		  513.6 

	 Dividends to Stockholders ($0.30 per common share)	 	 (105.2)		  (95.6)		  (88.7)

	 Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle Changes — Note 1	 	 (422.5)		  —		  —  

Balance at End of Year		 5,077.4		 4,925.8		 4,610.4 

Treasury Stock						    

Balance at Beginning and End of Year	 	 (54.2)		  (54.2)		  (54.2)

Deferred Compensation						    

Balance at Beginning of Year		  —		  (13.8)		  (6.5)

	 Common Stock Activity		  —		  —		  (7.3)

	 Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle Change — Note 1		  —		  13.8		  —  

Balance at End of Year		  —		  —		  (13.8)

Total Stockholders’ Equity at End of Year	 $	8,039.9	 $	7,718.8	 $	7,363.9

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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	 Year Ended December 31	

(in millions of dollars)		  2007	 2006	 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities						    

	 Net Income	 $	 679.3	 $	 411.0	 $	 513.6 

	 Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities		  			 

		  Change in Receivables	 	 235.5	 	 65.2		  (56.9)

		  Change in Deferred Acquisition Costs	 	 (75.9)		  (49.6)		  (55.7)

		  Change in Insurance Reserves and Liabilities	 	 887.2	 	 1,440.5		  1,319.7 

		  Change in Income Tax Liabilities	 	 114.8	 	 (67.4)		  90.2 

		  Change in Other Accrued Liabilities	 	 (119.8)		  (120.8)		  (44.0)

		  Non-cash Adjustments to Net Investment Income	 	 (363.6)		  (370.0)		  (368.6)

		  Net Realized Investment (Gain) Loss	 	 65.2	 	 (2.2)		  6.7 

		  Depreciation	 	 66.2	 	 72.5		  72.7 

		  Cash Received from Reinsurance Recapture	 	 211.4	 	 —		  — 

		  Other, Net	 	 50.0	 	 52.7		  25.9 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	 	 1,750.3	 	 1,431.9		  1,503.6 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities						    

	 Proceeds from Sales of Available-for-Sale Securities	 	 2,189.0	 	 2,174.2		  1,871.0 

	 Proceeds from Maturities of Available-for-Sale Securities	 	 1,171.4	 	 1,364.0		  1,169.7 

	 Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Other Investments	 	 303.2	 	 139.6		  139.6 

	 Purchase of Available-for-Sale Securities	 	(4,205.2)		 (4,050.2)		 (4,370.1)

	 Purchase of Other Investments	 	 (488.8)		  (561.0)		  (524.4)

	 Net Sales (Purchases) of Short-term Investments		  (836.2)		  (225.4)		  5.4 

	 Acquisition of Business		  —		  —		  (3.5)

	 Disposition of Business	 	 98.8	 	 —		  8.8 

	 Other, Net	 	 (87.2)		  (63.2)		  67.9 

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities	 	(1,855.0)		 (1,222.0)		 (1,635.6)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities						    

	 Maturities and Benefit Payments from Policyholder Accounts	 	 (5.7)		  (7.2)		  (7.4)

	 Short-term Debt Repayments		  —		  —		  (227.0)

	 Issuance of Long-term Debt	 	 800.0	 	 130.0		  399.6 

	 Long-term Debt Repayments	 	 (769.5)		  (732.0)		  — 

	 Cost Related to Early Retirement of Debt		  (34.2)		  (17.9)		  — 

	 Issuance of Common Stock	 	 307.8	 	 580.0		  18.1 

	 Dividends Paid to Stockholders	 	 (105.2)		  (95.6)		  (88.7)

	 Other, Net	 	 (12.0)		  (14.3)		  (23.6)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities	 	 181.2	 	 (157.0)		  71.0 

Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on Cash		  1.3	 	 1.3		  (2.6)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Bank Deposits	 	 77.8	 	 54.2		  (63.6)

Cash and Bank Deposits at Beginning of Year	 	 121.3	 	 67.1		  130.7 

Cash and Bank Deposits at End of Year	 $	 199.1	 $	 121.3	 $	 67.1 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

	 Year Ended December 31	

(in millions of dollars)		  2007	 2006	 2005

Net Income	 $	 679.3	 $	 411.0	 $	 513.6 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

	 Change in Net Unrealized Gain on Securities Before Reclassification  

		  Adjustment (net of tax benefit of $134.6; $323.3; $144.5)	 	(248.8)		 (613.0)		 (261.8)

	 Reclassification Adjustment for Net Realized Investment (Gain) Loss					   

		  (net of tax expense (benefit) of $0.2; $(0.3); $6.6)	 	 0.3		  (0.6)		  12.3 

	 Change in Net Gain on Cash Flow Hedges					   

		  (net of tax expense (benefit) of $(6.0); $(39.8); $19.7)	 	 (11.7)		  (79.1)		  36.4 

	 Change in Adjustment to Reserves for Future Policy and Contract Benefits,  

		  Net of Reinsurance (net of tax expense (benefit) of $34.0; $50.5; $(10.0))	 	 69.8		  107.7		  (19.6)

	 Change in Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment  

		  (net of tax benefit of $—; $0.3; $0.2)	 	 7.4		  93.6		  (73.9)

	 Change in Unrecognized Pension and Postretirement Benefit Costs  

		  (net of tax expense (benefit) of $16.7; $11.3; $(6.7))		  33.7		  24.8		  (11.0)

Total Other Comprehensive Loss		 (149.3)		 (466.6)		 (317.6)

Comprehensive Income (Loss)	 $	 530.0	 $	 (55.6)	 $	 196.0

See notes to consolidated financial statements.						    
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies
	 Basis of Presentation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Unum Group and its subsidiaries (the Company) have 

been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Such accounting principles differ from statutory 

accounting principles (see Note 16). Intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

	 In March 2007, we closed the sale of our wholly-owned subsidiary GENEX Services, Inc. (GENEX). The financial results of GENEX are 

reported as discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements. Except where noted, the information presented in the notes 

to the consolidated financial statements excludes GENEX. See Note 2 for further discussion.

	 Description of Business: We are the largest provider of group and individual disability products in the United States and the United 

Kingdom. We also provide a complementary portfolio of other insurance products, including long-term care insurance, life insurance, 

employer- and employee-paid group benefits, and other related services. We market our products primarily to employers interested in 

providing benefits to their employees. 

	 We have three major business segments: Unum US, Unum UK, and Colonial Life. Our other segments are the Individual Disability —  

Closed Block (previously referred to as Individual Income Protection — Closed Block) segment, the Other segment, and the Corporate 

segment. See Note 14 for further discussion of our operating segments. 

	 Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Such estimates and assumptions could change in the 

future as more information becomes known, which could impact the amounts reported and disclosed herein.

	 Many factors influence the assumptions upon which reserves for policy and contract benefits are based, including historical trends  

in our experience and expected deviations from historical experience. Considerable judgment is required to interpret actual historical 

experience and to assess the future factors that are likely to influence the ultimate cost of settling existing claims. Given that insurance 

products contain inherent risks and uncertainties, the ultimate liability may be more or less than such estimates indicate.

	 Investments: Investments are reported in our consolidated balance sheets as follows:

	 Available-for-Sale Fixed Maturity Securities, which include bonds and redeemable preferred stocks, are reported at fair value. Interest 

income is recorded as part of net investment income when earned, using an effective yield method giving effect to amortization of 

premium and accretion of discount. Payment terms specified for fixed maturity securities may include a prepayment penalty for unscheduled 

payoff of the investment. Prepayment penalties are recognized as investment income when received.

	 Included within fixed maturity securities are mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. We recognize investment income on these 

securities using a constant effective yield based on projected prepayments of the underlying loans and the estimated economic life of the 

securities. Actual prepayment experience is reviewed periodically, and effective yields are recalculated when differences arise between 

prepayments originally projected and the actual prepayments received and currently projected. The effective yield is recalculated on a 

retrospective basis, and the adjustment is reflected in net investment income.

	 Fixed maturity securities not bought and held for the purpose of selling in the near term but for which we do not have the positive 

intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as available-for-sale. Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale fixed maturity 

securities are reported as a component of other comprehensive income. These amounts are net of income tax and valuation adjustments 

to reserves for future policy and contract benefits which would have been recorded had the related unrealized gain or loss on these 

securities been realized.

	 Mortgage Loans are generally carried at amortized cost less an allowance for probable losses. Interest income is accrued on the 

principal amount of the loan based on the loan’s contractual interest rate. Payment terms specified for mortgage loans may include a 

prepayment penalty for unscheduled payoff of the investment. Prepayment penalties are recognized as investment income when received.
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	 Real Estate classified as investment real estate is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Real estate acquired through 

foreclosure is valued at fair value at the date of foreclosure. If investment real estate is determined to be other than temporarily impaired, 

the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to fair value. Occasionally, investment real estate is reclassified to real estate held for sale 

when it no longer meets our investment criteria. Real estate held for sale is valued net of a valuation allowance that reduces the carrying 

value to the lower of cost less accumulated depreciation or fair value less estimated cost to sell. Accumulated depreciation on real estate 

was $9.7 million and $9.5 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

	 Policy Loans are presented at unpaid balances directly related to policyholders. Interest income is accrued on the principal amount  

of the loan based on the loan’s contractual interest rate. Included in policy loans are $2,422.0 million and $3,238.1 million of policy loans 

ceded to reinsurers at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

	 Other Long-term Investments, primarily private equity fund limited partnerships, are generally carried at cost plus our share of changes 

in the investee’s ownership equity since acquisition.

	 Short-term Investments are carried at cost.

	 We discontinue the accrual of investment income on invested assets when collection is uncertain. We recognize investment income 

on impaired investments when the income is received. 

	 Realized investment gains and losses, which are reported as a component of revenue in the consolidated statements of income, are 

based upon specific identification of the investments sold and do not include amounts allocable to separate accounts. At the time a decline  

in the value of an investment is determined to be other than temporary, a loss is recorded which is included in realized investment gains 

and losses. 

	 Derivative Financial Instruments: We recognize all of our derivative instruments (including certain derivative instruments embedded  

in other contracts) as either assets or liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets and measure those instruments at fair value.

	 The accounting for changes in the fair value (i.e., gain or loss) of a derivative depends on whether it has been designated and 

qualifies as part of a hedging relationship, and further, on the type of hedging relationship. To qualify as a hedging instrument, a 

derivative must pass prescribed effectiveness tests, performed quarterly using both qualitative and quantitative methods. For those 

derivatives that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments, the derivative is designated, based upon the exposure being  

hedged, as one of the following:

Fair value hedge. Changes in the fair value of the derivative as well as the offsetting change in fair value on the hedged item 

attributable to the risk being hedged are recognized in current earnings during the period of change in fair value. The gain or loss on 

the termination of an effective fair value hedge is recognized in current earnings.

Cash flow hedge. To the extent it is effective, changes in the fair value of the derivative are reported in other comprehensive income 

and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged item affects earnings. The ineffective portion 

of the hedge, if any, is recognized in current earnings during the period of change in fair value. The gain or loss on the termination of an 

effective cash flow hedge is reported in other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods 

during which the hedged item affects earnings.

Foreign currency exposure hedge. To the extent it is effective, changes in the fair value of the derivative are reported in other 

comprehensive income as part of the foreign currency translation adjustment and reclassified into earnings in the same period or 

periods during which remeasurement of the hedged foreign currency asset affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the hedge, 

if any, is recognized in current earnings during the period of change in fair value. The gain or loss on the termination of an effective 

foreign currency exposure hedge is reported in other comprehensive income as part of the foreign currency translation adjustment 

and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which remeasurement of the hedged foreign currency asset 

affects earnings.
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	 Gains or losses on the termination of ineffective hedges are reported in current earnings. In the event a hedged item is disposed  

of or the anticipated transaction being hedged is no longer likely to occur, we will terminate the related derivative and recognize the gain 

or loss on termination in current earnings. 

	 For a derivative not designated as a hedging instrument, the change in fair value is recognized in earnings during the period of 

change. We report changes in the fair values of certain embedded derivatives as realized investment gains and losses during the period 

of change, as required under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 Implementation Issue B36 (DIG Issue 

B36), Embedded Derivatives: Modified Coinsurance Arrangements and Debt Instruments That Incorporate Credit Risk Exposure That Are 

Unrelated or Only Partially Related to the Creditworthiness of the Obligor Under Those Instruments. 

	 Reinsurance Recoverable: We routinely cede reinsurance to other insurance companies. For ceded reinsurance agreements wherein 

we are not relieved of our legal liability to our policyholders, we report assets and liabilities on a gross basis. Our reinsurance recoverable 

includes the balances due from reinsurers under the terms of these reinsurance agreements for ceded policy and contract benefits, ceded 

future policy and contract benefits, and ceded unearned premiums, less ceded policy loans. 

	 Deferred Acquisition Costs: Certain costs of acquiring new business that vary with and are primarily related to the production of new 

business have been deferred. Such costs include commissions, other agency compensation, certain selection and policy issue expenses, 

and certain field expenses. Acquisition costs that do not vary with the production of new business, such as commissions on group products 

which are generally level throughout the life of the policy, are excluded from deferral. Deferred acquisition costs are subject to 

recoverability testing at the time of policy issue and loss recognition testing subsequent to the year of issue.

	 Deferred acquisition costs related to traditional policies are amortized over the premium paying period of the related policies in 

proportion to the ratio of the present value of annual expected premium income to the present value of total expected premium income. 

Such amortization is adjusted annually to reflect the actual policy persistency as compared to the anticipated experience.

	 Deferred acquisition costs related to interest-sensitive policies are amortized over the lives of the policies in relation to the present 

value of estimated gross profits from surrender charges and mortality, investment, and expense margins. Adjustments are made each 

year to reflect actual experience for assumptions which deviate significantly compared to anticipated experience.

	 Internal replacement transactions wherein the modification does not substantially change the policy are accounted for as continuations 

of the replaced contracts. Unamortized deferred acquisition costs from the original policy continue to be amortized over the expected life 

of the new policy, and the costs of replacing the policy are accounted for as policy maintenance costs and expensed as incurred. Internal 

replacement transactions, principally on group contracts, that result in a policy that is substantially changed are accounted for as an 

extinguishment of the original policy and the issuance of a new policy. Unamortized deferred acquisition costs on the original policy that 

was replaced are immediately expensed, and the costs of acquiring the new policy are capitalized and amortized in accordance with our 

accounting policies for deferred acquisition costs. 

	 Loss recognition is generally performed on an annual basis. Insurance contracts are grouped for each major product line within a 

segment when we perform the loss recognition tests. If loss recognition testing indicates that deferred acquisition costs are not recoverable, 

the deficiency is charged to expense. The assumptions used in loss recognition testing represent our best estimates of future experience. 

	 Goodwill: Goodwill is the excess of the amount paid to acquire a business over the fair value of the net assets acquired. The carrying 

amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 

might not be recoverable. If the fair value of the operations to which the goodwill relates is less than the carrying amount of the unamortized 

goodwill, the carrying amount is reduced with a corresponding charge to expense. 

	 Property and Equipment: Property and equipment is reported at cost less accumulated depreciation, which is calculated on the 

straight-line method over the estimated useful life. The accumulated depreciation for property and equipment was $539.8 million and 

$496.4 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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	 Value of Business Acquired: Value of business acquired is included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets and represents 

the present value of future profits recorded in connection with the acquisition of a block of insurance policies. The asset is amortized 

based upon expected future premium income for traditional insurance policies and estimated future gross profits for interest-sensitive 

insurance policies. The accumulated amortization for value of business acquired was $110.9 million and $101.9 million as of December 31, 

2007 and 2006, respectively. We periodically review the carrying amount of value of business acquired using the same methods used to 

evaluate deferred acquisition costs. 

	 Revenue Recognition: Traditional life and accident and health products are long duration contracts, and premium income is recognized 

as revenue when due from policyholders. If the contracts are experience rated, the estimated ultimate premium is recognized as revenue 

over the period of the contract. The estimated ultimate premium, which is revised to reflect current experience, is based on estimated 

claim costs, expenses, and profit margins.

	 For interest-sensitive products, the amounts collected from policyholders are considered deposits, and only the deductions during 

the period for cost of insurance, policy administration, and surrenders are included in revenue. Policyholders’ funds represent funds 

deposited by contract holders and are not included in revenue.

	 Policy and Contract Benefits: Policy and contract benefits represent amounts paid and expected to be paid based on reported losses 

and estimates of incurred but not reported losses for traditional life and accident and health products. For interest-sensitive products, 

benefits are the amounts paid and expected to be paid on insured claims in excess of the policyholders’ policy fund balances.

	 Policy and Contract Benefits Liabilities: Policy reserves represent future policy and contract benefits for claims not yet incurred. 

Policy reserves for traditional life and accident and health products are determined using the net level premium method. The reserves 

are calculated based upon assumptions as to interest, persistency, morbidity, and mortality that were appropriate at the date of issue. 

Interest rate assumptions are based on actual and expected net investment returns. Persistency assumptions are based on our actual 

historical experience adjusted for future expectations. Morbidity and mortality assumptions are based on actual experience or industry 

standards adjusted as appropriate to reflect our actual experience and future expectations. The assumptions vary by plan, year of issue, 

and policy duration and include a provision for adverse deviation.

	 Policy reserves for group single premium annuities have been provided on a net single premium method. The reserves are calculated 

based on assumptions as to interest, mortality, and retirement that were appropriate at the date of issue. Mortality assumptions are based 

upon industry standards adjusted as appropriate to reflect our actual experience and future expectations. The assumptions vary by year  

of issue.

	 Policy reserves for interest-sensitive products are principally policyholder account values.

	 We perform loss recognition tests on our policy reserves annually, or more frequently if appropriate, using best estimate assumptions  

as of the date of the test, without a provision for adverse deviation. We group the policy reserves for each major product line within a 

segment when we perform the loss recognition tests. If the policy reserves determined using these best estimate assumptions are higher 

than our existing policy reserves net of any deferred acquisition cost balance, the existing policy reserves are increased or deferred 

acquisition costs are reduced to immediately recognize the deficiency. 

	 Claim reserves represent future policy and contract benefits for claims that have been incurred or are estimated to have been incurred 

but not yet reported to us. Our claim reserves relate primarily to disability policies and are calculated based on assumptions as to interest 

and claim resolution rates that are currently appropriate. Claim resolution rate assumptions are based on our actual experience. The 

interest rate assumptions used for discounting claim reserves are based on projected portfolio yield rates, after consideration for defaults 

and investment expenses, for the assets supporting the liabilities for the various product lines. Unlike policy reserves, claim reserves are 

subject to revision as current claim experience and projections of future experience change.
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	 Policyholders’ Funds: Policyholders’ funds represent customer deposits plus interest credited at contract rates. We control interest 

rate risk by investing in quality assets which have an aggregate duration that closely matches the expected duration of the liabilities.

	 Income Tax: Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities for financial statement purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred taxes have been measured using 

enacted statutory income tax rates and laws that are currently in effect. We record deferred tax assets for tax positions taken in the U.S. 

and other tax jurisdictions based on our assessment of whether a position is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination based 

solely on its technical merits. A valuation allowance is established for deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that an amount 

will not be realized.

	 Deferred Gain or Loss on Reinsurance: Where applicable, gains or losses on reinsurance transactions are deferred and amortized into 

earnings based upon expected future premium income for traditional insurance policies and estimated future gross profits for interest-sensitive 

insurance policies. The deferred gain on reinsurance included in other liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2007 

and 2006 was $177.8 million and $181.3 million, respectively.

	 Premium Tax Expense: Premium tax expense is included in other operating expenses in the consolidated statements of income. For the 

years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, premium tax expense was $130.8 million, $140.5 million, and $137.4 million, respectively.

	 Separate Accounts: The separate account amounts shown in our consolidated balance sheets represent contributions by contract 

holders to variable-benefits and fixed-benefits pension plans. The contract purchase payments and the assets of the separate accounts 

are segregated from other funds for both investment and administrative purposes. Contract purchase payments received under variable 

annuity contracts are subject to deductions for sales and administrative fees. Also, the sponsoring companies of the separate accounts 

receive management fees based on the net asset values of the separate accounts.

	 Translation of Foreign Currency: Revenues and expenses of our foreign operations are translated at average exchange rates. Assets 

and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange on the balance sheet date. The translation gain or loss is generally reported in accumulated 

other comprehensive income, net of deferred tax. 

	 Accounting for Participating Individual Life Insurance: Participating policies issued by one of our subsidiaries prior to its 1986 conversion 

from a mutual to a stock life insurance company will remain participating as long as the policies remain in force. A Participation Fund 

Account (PFA) was established for the benefit of all such individual participating life and annuity policies and contracts. The assets of the 

PFA provide for the benefit, dividend, and certain expense obligations of the participating individual life insurance policies and annuity 

contracts. The PFA was $362.0 million and $349.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and represented approximately 

0.7 percent of consolidated assets and 0.8 and 0.7 percent of consolidated liabilities at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

	 Accounting Pronouncements Adopted: Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Position 05-1 (SOP 05‑1), 

Accounting by Insurance Enterprises for Deferred Acquisition Costs in Connection With Modifications or Exchanges of Insurance Contracts. 

SOP 05-1 provides guidance on accounting by insurance enterprises for deferred acquisition costs on internal replacements of insurance 

and investment contracts other than those specifically described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 97, Accounting and 

Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Long-Duration Contracts and for Realized Gains and Losses from the Sale of Investments. An 

internal replacement is defined as a modification in product benefits, features, or coverages that occurs by the exchange or replacement  

of an existing insurance policy for a new policy. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of SOP 05-1 decreased our 2007 opening 

balance of retained earnings $445.2 million.
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	 Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting 

for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 (SFAS 109). FIN 48 clarifies the 

accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109. Unlike SFAS 109, 

FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax 

position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and 

penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 increased 

our 2007 opening balance of retained earnings $22.7 million. 

	 Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 155 (SFAS 155), Accounting 

for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, an amendment of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Nos. 133 (SFAS 133) and 140 

(SFAS 140). SFAS 155: (a) permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that 

otherwise would require bifurcation; (b) clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of 

SFAS 133; (c) establishes a requirement to evaluate beneficial interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding 

derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation; (d) clarifies that concentrations 

of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives; and, (e) eliminates restrictions on a qualifying special-purpose 

entity’s ability to hold passive derivative financial instruments that pertain to beneficial interests that are or contain a derivative financial 

instrument. The adoption of SFAS 155 did not have a material effect on our financial position or results of operations.

	 Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) (SFAS 123(R)), Share-Based 

Payment, which is a revision to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (SFAS 123), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. 

SFAS 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee service in exchange for share-based 

payments. Under SFAS 123(R), share-based awards that do not require future service (i.e., vesting awards) are expensed immediately. 

Share-based employee awards that require future service are amortized over the relevant service period. We adopted SFAS 123(R) using 

the modified prospective transition method. In accordance with the modified prospective transition method, the provisions are generally 

applied only to share-based awards granted subsequent to adoption. Prior to adoption of SFAS 123(R), the unrecognized compensation 

cost related to nonvested stock awards was reported as additional paid-in capital and deferred compensation, a contra equity account. 

The value of this contra equity account at the adoption of SFAS 123(R) was $13.8 million. The adoption of SFAS 123(R) did not have a 

material effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

	 Had we applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 as of its original effective date, pro forma net income for the year 

ended December 31, 2005 would have been $513.1 million, and net income per common share–basic would have been $1.73. Net income 

per common share–assuming dilution would not have changed. 

	 Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Staff Position No. FAS 115-1  

(FSP 115-1), The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments, which addresses the determination 

of when an investment is considered impaired, whether the impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of an impairment 

loss. FSP 115-1 also includes accounting considerations subsequent to the recognition of other-than-temporary impairment and requires 

certain disclosures about unrealized losses. The adoption of FSP 115-1 did not have a material effect on our financial position or results  

of operations.

	 Effective December 31, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 (SFAS 158), Employers’ 

Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). 

SFAS 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit pension and other postretirement 

plans as an asset or liability in its balance sheet and to recognize changes in that funded status through comprehensive income. Also, 

under SFAS 158, defined benefit pension and other postretirement plan assets and obligations are to be measured as of the date of the 

employer’s fiscal year-end. The adoption of SFAS 158 resulted in the following adjustments to our balance sheet: a decrease in other 

assets of $55.0 million, a decrease in deferred income tax of $40.3 million, an increase in other liabilities of $69.4 million, and a decrease 

in accumulated other comprehensive income of $84.1 million. The adoption of SFAS 158 had no effect on our results of operations. 
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	 Accounting Pronouncements Outstanding: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (SFAS 157), Fair Value Measurements, 

was issued in September 2006. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about 

fair value measurements. We will adopt the provisions of SFAS 157 effective January 1, 2008. The adoption of SFAS 157 will not have a 

material effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

Note 2. Discontinued Operations
	 As discussed in Note 1, the sale of GENEX closed effective March 1, 2007, and we recognized an after-tax gain of $6.2 million on the 

sale, which is included in income from discontinued operations in our statements of income. We intend to continue to purchase certain 

disability management services for a period of up to five years from the effective date of the sale. The cost of the services to be purchased 

was negotiated in an arms-length transaction. Intercompany amounts paid to GENEX for these types of services was $2.3 million for the 

two months ended February 28, 2007, and $15.4 million and $15.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

The cost of these services is not significant to our results of operations.

	 GENEX was accounted for as an asset held for sale at December 31, 2006. The results of GENEX which were previously reported  

in the Other segment, are reported as discontinued operations and excluded from segment results for all periods.

	 Selected results for GENEX are as follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars, except share data)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Total Revenue					     $	47.2	 $	183.5	 $	177.9 

Income Per Common Share						    

	 Basic					     	 $	0.02	 $	 0.02	 $	 0.03 

	 Assuming Dilution					     $	0.02	 $	 0.02	 $	 0.03 

	 Assets and liabilities for discontinued operations as reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are comprised of the 

following at December 31, 2006 (in millions of dollars):

Other Assets				  

	 Cash and Bank Deposits									         $	 3.1 

	 Accounts and Premiums Receivable										          29.6 

	 Goodwill										          71.1 

	 Property and Equipment										          4.7 

	 Other Assets										          3.8 

Other Assets — Discontinued Operations									         $	112.3 

Other Liabilities				  

	 Income Tax Payable									         $	 (0.6)

	 Deferred Income Tax										          8.4 

	 Other Liabilities										          21.2 

Other Liabilities — Discontinued Operations									         $	 29.0 
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Note 3. Fair Values of Financial Instruments
	 We use the following methods and assumptions in estimating the fair values of our financial instruments:

	 Fixed Maturity Securities: Fair values are based on quoted market prices, where available. For fixed maturity securities not actively 

traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from independent pricing services. For private placements, fair values are estimated 

using internally prepared valuations combining matrix pricing with vendor purchased software programs, including valuations based on 

estimates of future profitability. Additionally, we obtain prices from independent third-party brokers to establish valuations for certain of 

these securities. See Note 4 for the amortized cost and fair values of securities by security type and by maturity date.

	 Derivatives: Fair values are based on market quotes or pricing models and represent the net amount of cash we would have received  

or paid if the contracts had been settled or closed as of the last day of the year.

	 DIG Issue B36 Embedded Derivatives: Fair values are estimated using internal pricing models and represent the hypothetical value of 

the duration mismatch of assets and liabilities, interest rate risk, and third party credit risk embedded in certain reinsurance agreements 

we have entered.

	 Mortgage Loans: Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses and interest rates currently being offered for similar 

mortgage loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings and maturities. Mortgage loans with similar characteristics are aggregated for 

purposes of the calculations. 

	 Policy Loans and Other Long-Term Investments: Carrying amounts approximate fair value.

	 Short-Term Investments: Carrying amounts for short-term investments, which generally consist of investment-grade corporate 

commercial paper, U.S. Treasury bills, and bank term deposits, approximate fair value.

	 Policyholders’ Funds: Carrying amounts for deferred annuity products and other policyholders’ funds, which include guaranteed 

investment contracts (GICs) and supplementary contracts without life contingencies, approximate fair value. 

	 Fair values for insurance contracts other than investment contracts are not required to be disclosed. However, the fair values of 

liabilities under all insurance contracts are taken into consideration in our overall management of interest rate risk, which minimizes 

exposure to changing interest rates through the matching of investment maturities with amounts due under insurance contracts.

	 Short-Term and Long-Term Debt: Fair values are obtained from independent pricing services or discounted cash flow analyses based 

on current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.
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	 The carrying values of financial instruments such as cash and bank deposits, accounts and premiums receivable, accrued investment 

income, and accounts payable approximate the fair values due to the short-term nature of the instruments. As such, these financial 

instruments are not included in the following chart. 

		  December 31			 

	 2007		  2006	

(in millions of dollars)	 Carrying Amount	 Fair Value	 Carrying Amount	 Fair Value

Assets								     

Fixed Maturity Securities								      

	 Available-for-Sale	 $	35,814.6	 $	35,814.6	 $	35,055.5	 $	35,055.5 

	 Derivatives Hedging Available-for-Sale		  (91.1)		  (91.1)		  (42.5)		  (42.5)

	 DIG Issue B36 Embedded Derivatives		  (68.8)		  (68.8)		  (11.5)		  (11.5)

Mortgage Loans	 	 1,068.9		  1,079.8		  944.0		  949.7 

Policy Loans	 	 2,617.7		  2,617.7		  3,429.5		  3,429.5 

Other Long-term Investments	 	 104.7		  104.7		  122.0		  122.0 

Short-term Investments	 	 1,486.8		  1,486.8		  648.4		  648.4 

Liabilities								     

Policyholders’ Funds								      

	 Deferred Annuity Products	 $	 855.8	 $	 855.8	 $	 1,019.9	 $	 1,019.9 

	 Other		  	 411.5		  411.5		  470.3		  470.3 

Short-term Debt	 	 175.0		  175.3		  —		  —

Long-term Debt	 	 2,515.2		  2,673.8		  2,659.6		  2,862.0 
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Note 4.  Investments

Fixed Maturity Securities
	 The amortized cost and fair values of securities by security type are shown as follows. 

		  December 31, 2007		

		  Gross	 Gross 

(in millions of dollars)	 Amortized Cost	 Unrealized Gain	 Unrealized Loss	 Fair Value

Available-for-Sale Securities									       

	 United States Government and								      

		  Government Agencies and Authorities	 $	 2,329.0	 $	 133.5	 $	 28.6	 $	 2,433.9 

	 States, Municipalities, and Political Subdivisions		  40.4		  0.9		  —		  41.3 

	 Foreign Governments	 	 1,086.4		  116.2		  6.4		  1,196.2 

	 Public Utilities	 	 5,113.8		  239.8		 117.8		  5,235.8 

	 Mortgage/Asset-Backed Securities	 	 4,006.8		  237.6		  6.9		  4,237.5 

	 Derivatives Hedging Available-for-Sale	 	 1.1		  140.4		 232.6		  (91.1)

	 All Other Corporate Bonds	 	21,653.3		 1,152.8		 521.0		 22,285.1 

	 Redeemable Preferred Stocks	 	 398.4		  17.7		  31.3		  384.8 

Total				   $	34,629.2	 $	2,038.9	 $	944.6		 35,723.5 

Fair Value of DIG Issue B36 Embedded Derivatives							       	 (68.8)

Total Fixed Maturity Securities							       $	35,654.7 

		  December 31, 2006			 

		  Gross	 Gross 

(in millions of dollars)	 Amortized Cost	 Unrealized Gain	 Unrealized Loss	 Fair Value

Available-for-Sale Securities									       

	 United States Government and								      

		  Government Agencies and Authorities	 $	 2,587.0	 $	 71.5	 $	 67.2	 $	 2,591.3 

	 States, Municipalities, and Political Subdivisions		  42.9		  0.9		  —		  43.8 

	 Foreign Governments		  803.1		  103.9		  7.6		  899.4 

	 Public Utilities		  4,748.4		  311.2		  73.7		  4,985.9 

	 Mortgage/Asset-Backed Securities		  3,765.6		  222.0		  13.8		  3,973.8 

	 Derivatives Hedging Available-for-Sale		  3.5		  119.8		  165.8		  (42.5)

	 All Other Corporate Bonds		 21,049.3		  1,389.6		  322.7		 22,116.2 

	 Redeemable Preferred Stocks		  414.3		  33.3		  2.5		  445.1 

Total				   $	33,414.1	 $	2,252.2	 $	653.3		 35,013.0 

Fair Value of DIG Issue B36 Embedded Derivatives								        (11.5)

Total Fixed Maturity Securities								       $35,001.5
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	 Of the $944.6 million in gross unrealized losses on fixed maturity securities and the derivatives that hedge these securities at 

December 31, 2007, $799.6 million, or 84.6 percent, are related to investment-grade fixed maturity securities. Unrealized losses on 

investment-grade fixed maturity securities principally relate to changes in interest rates or changes in market or sector credit spreads 

which occurred subsequent to the acquisition of the securities. 

	 The gross unrealized loss on below-investment-grade fixed maturity securities was $145.0 million at December 31, 2007, or  

15.4 percent, of the total gross unrealized loss on fixed maturity securities. Generally, below-investment-grade fixed maturity securities 

are more likely to develop credit concerns.

	 The following charts indicate the length of time our fixed maturity securities had been in a gross unrealized loss position as of 

December 31, 2007 and 2006. 

		  December 31, 2007			 

	 Less Than 12 Months	 12 Months or Greater

		  Gross		  Gross 

(in millions of dollars)	 Fair Value	 Unrealized Loss	 Fair Value	 Unrealized Loss

Description								      

United States Government and								      

	 Government Agencies and Authorities	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 840.4	 $	 28.6 

Foreign Governments	 	 128.8		  1.9		  337.2		  4.5 

Public Utilities	 	 983.7		  26.0		 1,521.1		  91.9 

Mortgage/Asset-Backed Securities	 	 218.7		  1.7		  270.1		  5.2 

Derivatives Hedging Available-for-Sale	 	 —		  —		  (232.6)		 232.6 

All Other Corporate Bonds	 	3,245.0		 125.8		 6,273.2		 395.1 

Redeemable Preferred Stocks	 	 91.7		  8.1		  106.5		  23.2 

Total			   $	4,667.9	 $	163.5	 $	9,115.9	 $	781.1 

								      
		  December 31, 2006			 

	 Less Than 12 Months	 12 Months or Greater

		  Gross		  Gross 

(in millions of dollars)	 Fair Value	 Unrealized Loss	 Fair Value	 Unrealized Loss

Description								      

United States Government and								      

	 Government Agencies and Authorities	 $	1,068.3	 $	 42.6	 $	 311.7	 $	 24.6 

Foreign Governments		  278.4		  7.6		  —		  — 

Public Utilities		  871.3		  15.5		 1,019.3		  58.2 

Mortgage/Asset-Backed Securities		  165.6		  1.3		  571.4		  12.5 

Derivatives Hedging Available-for-Sale		  (36.3)		  36.3		  (129.5)		 129.5 

All Other Corporate Bonds		 4,283.1		  84.0		 3,801.3		 238.7 

Redeemable Preferred Stocks		  71.5		  0.9		  55.7		  1.6 

Total			   $	6,701.9	 $	188.2	 $	5,629.9	 $	465.1 

	 As of December 31, 2007, we held 482 individual investment-grade fixed maturity securities and 89 individual below-investment-

grade fixed maturity securities that were in an unrealized loss position, of which 353 investment-grade fixed maturity securities and  

33 below-investment-grade fixed maturity securities had been in an unrealized loss position continuously for over one year. 
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	 In determining when a decline in fair value below amortized cost of a fixed maturity security is other than temporary, we evaluate 

the following factors:

	 • �The probability of recovering principal and interest. 

	 • �Our ability and intent to retain the security for a sufficient period of time for it to recover.

	 • �Whether the security is current as to principal and interest payments.

	 • �The significance of the decline in value.

	 • �The time period during which there has been a significant decline in value. 

	 • �Current and future business prospects and trends of earnings. 

	 • �The valuation of the security’s underlying collateral.

	 • �Relevant industry conditions and trends relative to their historical cycles. 

	 • �Market conditions. 

	 • �Rating agency actions. 

	 • �Bid and offering prices and the level of trading activity.

	 • �Adverse changes in estimated cash flows for securitized investments. 

	 • �Any other key measures for the related security. 

	 If we determine that the decline in value of an investment is other than temporary, the investment is written down to fair value,  

and an impairment loss is recognized in the current period to the extent of the decline in value. For those fixed maturity securities with an 

unrealized loss and on which we have not recorded an impairment write-down, we believe that the decline in fair value below amortized 

cost is temporary.

	 The amortized cost and fair values of fixed maturity securities by maturity date are shown as follows. The maturity dates have not 

been adjusted for possible calls or prepayments. 

		  December 31, 2007		

(in millions of dollars)			   Amortized Cost	 Fair Value

Available-for-Sale Securities					   

	 1 year or less	 $	 260.2	 $	 305.0 

	 Over 1 year through 5 years	 	 3,494.3		  3,613.5 

	 Over 5 years through 10 years	 	 7,814.1		  7,681.6 

	 Over 10 years	 	19,053.8		 19,817.1 

				    	30,622.4		 31,417.2 

	 Mortgage/Asset-Backed Securities	 	 4,006.8		  4,237.5 

Total			   $	34,629.2	 $	35,654.7 

	 At December 31, 2007, the total investment in below-investment-grade fixed maturity securities was $2,023.8 million or 5.3 percent 

of the fair value of invested assets excluding ceded policy loans. The amortized cost of these securities was $2,129.9 million. 
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	 We have two special purpose entities which support our investment objectives and which are consolidated under the provisions of 

Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46(R)), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51. 

These entities are securitized asset trusts and contain specific financial instruments that do not include our common stock or debt. One of 

these entities is a trust holding forward contracts to purchase unrelated equity securities. This trust also holds a defeasance swap contract 

for highly rated bonds to provide principal protection for the investments. The fair values of the underlying forward and swap contracts 

equaled $79.8 million as of December 31, 2007, and are reported as fixed maturity securities in the consolidated balance sheets. The second 

entity is a trust containing a highly rated bond for principal protection and several partnership equity investments. We contributed the 

bond and partnership investments into the trust at the time it was established. The purpose of this trust was to allow us to maintain our 

investment in the partnerships while at the same time protecting the principal of the investment. The fair values of the bond and 

partnerships were $89.6 million and $26.2 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2007, and are reported as fixed maturity securities 

and other long-term investments, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheets. 

	 We have a significant investment in, but are not the primary beneficiary of, a special purpose entity which is a collateralized bond 

obligation asset trust (CBO) in which we hold interests in several of the tranches and for which we act as investment manager of the 

underlying securities. This special purpose entity does not meet the consolidation requirements of FIN 46(R). We issued the CBO in 1998, 

and its purpose is to securitize high yield bonds and earn a spread over the cost of the funds from the different tranches issued. The 

outstanding balance of all tranches at December 31, 2007 was $100.2 million, $54.7 million of which is held by third parties. These third 

parties have no recourse against us. The total fair value of the underlying securities in the CBO was $27.1 million at December 31, 2007. 

The fair value of our investment in the CBO, and therefore our maximum exposure to loss, was $12.0 million at December 31, 2007. This 

investment is reported as a fixed maturity security in the consolidated balance sheets. 

	 At December 31, 2007, we had commitments of approximately $35.9 million to fund certain of our private placement fixed maturity 

and equity securities. The funds are due upon satisfaction of contractual notice from the issuer. These amounts may or may not be funded 

during the term of the securities.

	 In the normal course of business, we receive collateral from unaffiliated third parties through transactions which include both 

securities lending and also short-term agreements to purchase securities with the agreement to resell them at a later, specified date. For 

both types of transactions, we require that a minimum of 102 percent of the fair value of the securities loaned or securities purchased 

under repurchase agreements be maintained as collateral. Generally, cash is received as collateral under these agreements. In the event 

that securities are received as collateral, we are not permitted to sell or repledge them. We also pledge our fixed maturity securities  

as collateral to unaffiliated third parties through transactions including both securities lending and also short-term agreements to sell 

securities with the agreement to repurchase them at a later, specified date. At December 31, 2007, the carrying value of fixed maturity 

securities pledged as collateral to third parties under these programs was $2.0 million. See Note 5 for discussion of collateral pledged  

to our derivatives counterparties. 

Mortgage Loans
	 At December 31, 2007, mortgage loans were collateralized by office buildings (39.1 percent), industrial buildings (30.9 percent), retail 

stores (16.5 percent), and other properties (13.5 percent). Our mortgage loan portfolio is geographically dispersed within the United States, 

with the largest concentrations in Pennsylvania (13.2 percent) and California (13.9 percent).

	 Mortgage loans are impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect all 

amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. We did not have any impaired mortgage loans as of December 31, 

2007. At December 31, 2006, impaired mortgage loans totaled $2.8 million.

	 At December 31, 2007, we had commitments of approximately $22.8 million for commercial mortgage loan originations. The funds 

will be due at closing of the mortgage loans.
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Investment Valuation Allowances
	 At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had real estate investment allowances totaling $7.6 million. We had no changes to the 

allowance during 2007 and 2006. Deductions for allowances released upon disposal or restructuring totaled $1.7 million in 2005. 

	 We had no valuation allowance for mortgage loans at December 31, 2007. The balance in the valuation allowance for mortgage 

loans was $0.5 million at December 31, 2006. Increases (decreases) to the allowance during 2007 and 2006 were $(0.5) million and  

$0.5 million, respectively. There were no changes during 2005. 

Net Investment Income
Sources for net investment income are as follows: 

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Fixed Maturity Securities	 $	2,315.2	 $	2,262.0	 $	2,151.3 

Mortgage Loans	 	 64.3		  54.6		  43.0 

Real Estate	 	 0.5		  1.0		  0.4 

Policy Loans		  12.7		  12.6		  17.4 

Other Long-term Investments	 	 6.8		  8.4		  8.5 

Short-term Investments	 	 49.5		  21.0		  10.8 

Gross Investment Income	 	2,449.0		 2,359.6		 2,231.4 

Less Investment Expenses		  17.0		  21.0		  19.9 

Less Investment Income on PFA Assets	 	 22.1		  18.0		  23.2 

Net Investment Income	 $	2,409.9	 $	2,320.6	 $	2,188.3 

Realized Investment Gain and Loss
Realized investment gains (losses) are as follows: 

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Fixed Maturity Securities						    

	 Gross Gains	 $	56.0	 $	 68.3	 $	 74.4 

	 Gross Losses	 	(82.8)		 (71.1)		 (95.7)

Mortgage Loans, Real Estate, and Other Invested Assets	 	19.0		  10.3		  22.8 

Change in Fair Value of DIG Issue B36 Derivatives	 	(57.3)		  (5.3)		  (7.9)

Other Derivatives	 	 (0.1)		  —		  (0.3)

Realized Investment Gain (Loss)	 $	(65.2)	 $	 2.2	 $	 (6.7)
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Note 5. Derivative Financial Instruments	
	 We use swaps, forwards, futures, and options to hedge interest rate and currency risks and to match assets with our insurance liabilities.

Derivative Risks
	 The basic types of risks associated with derivatives are market risk (that the value of the derivative will be adversely impacted by 

changes in the market, primarily the change in interest and exchange rates) and credit risk (that the counterparty will not perform 

according to the terms of the contract). The market risk of the derivatives should generally offset the market risk associated with the 

hedged financial instrument or liability.

	 To help limit the credit exposure of the derivatives, we enter into master netting agreements with our counterparties whereby contracts 

in a gain position can be offset against contracts in a loss position. We also typically enter into bilateral, cross-collateralization agreements 

with our counterparties to help limit the credit exposure of the derivatives. These agreements require the counterparty in a loss position 

to submit acceptable collateral with the other counterparty in the event the net loss position meets or exceeds an agreed upon amount. 

Our current credit exposure on derivatives, which is limited to the value of those contracts in a net gain position less collateral held,  

was $47.9 million at December 31, 2007. The carrying value of fixed maturity securities pledged as collateral to our counterparties was 

$265.8 million at December 31, 2007.

Hedging Activity
	 The table below summarizes by notional amounts the activity for each category of derivatives.

	 Swaps

	 Receive Fixed/	 Receive Fixed/	  

(in millions of dollars)	 Pay Fixed	 Pay Variable	 Forwards	 Options	 Total	

Balance at December 31, 2004	 $	 707.3	 $	3,127.0	 $	176.6	 $	785.0	 $	4,795.9 

	 Additions		  400.0		  560.0		 278.4		  31.0		 1,269.4 

	 Terminations		  16.9		  927.0		  46.9		 468.0		 1,458.8 

Balance at December 31, 2005		 1,090.4		 2,760.0		 408.1		 348.0		 4,606.5 

	 Additions		  —		 1,860.0		 109.8		 170.0		 2,139.8 

	 Terminations		  64.2		 2,435.0		 125.0		 348.0		 2,972.2 

Balance at December 31, 2006		 1,026.2		 2,185.0		 392.9		 170.0		 3,774.1 

	 Additions		  —		  407.5		 179.5		 230.0		  817.0 

	 Terminations		  80.6		  947.5		 257.3		 320.0		 1,605.4 

Balance at December 31, 2007	 $	 945.6	 $	1,645.0	 $	315.1	 $	 80.0	 $	2,985.7 

	 The following table summarizes the timing of anticipated settlements of interest rate swaps outstanding at December 31, 2007, 

whereby we receive a fixed rate and pay a variable rate. The weighted average interest rates assume current market conditions.

(in millions of dollars)		  2008	 2009	 2010	 2011	 2012	 2013	 Total

Receive Fixed/Pay Variable										        

	 Notional Value		  $485.0	 $380.0	 $240.0	 $205.0	 $185.0	 $150.0	 $1,645.0 

	 Weighted Average Receive Rate		  5.73%	 5.75%	 6.51%	 6.58%	 6.49%	 6.66%	 6.12%

	 Weighted Average Pay Rate		  4.70%	 4.70%	 4.70%	 4.70%	 4.70%	 4.70%	 4.70%
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	 Our freestanding derivatives all qualify as hedges and have been designated as cash flow hedges. Our significant cash flow hedging 

programs are described as follows.

	 We have executed a series of cash flow hedges for certain of our long-term product portfolios using forward starting interest rate 

swaps and forward contracts. The purpose of these hedges is to lock in the reinvestment rates on future anticipated cash flows through 

the year 2013 and protect us from the potential adverse impact of declining interest rates on the associated policy reserves. We plan on 

terminating these forward interest rate swaps and forward contracts at the time the projected cash flows are used to purchase fixed 

income securities. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had $1,645.0 million and $2,125.0 million, respectively, notional amount of the 

forward starting interest rate swaps outstanding under this program. We did not have any forward contracts outstanding under this 

program as of December 31, 2007 or 2006.

	 As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had $612.1 million and $658.4 million, respectively, notional amount of open current and 

forward foreign currency swaps to hedge fixed income foreign dollar denominated securities. 

	 As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had $333.5 million and $367.8 million, respectively, notional amount of currency swaps and 

$216.3 million notional amount of forward currency contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk associated with the U.S. dollar denominated 

debt issued by one of our U.K. subsidiaries. 

	 As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had $80.0 million and $170.0 million, respectively, notional amount of open options on forward 

interest rate swaps to lock in a reinvestment rate floor for the reinvestment of cash flows, through the year 2008, from renewals on policies 

with a one to two year minimum premium rate guarantee.

	 We have invested in certain structured fixed maturity securities that contain embedded derivatives with a notional amount of 

$98.8 million and $176.6 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These embedded derivatives represent forward 

contracts and are accounted for as cash flow hedges. The purpose of these forward contracts is to hedge the risk of changes in cash flows 

related to the anticipated purchase of certain equity securities in the years 2020 through 2022.

	 As of December 31, 2006 we had $60.0 million notional amount of an interest rate swap outstanding whereby we received a fixed 

rate of interest and paid a variable rate of interest. The purpose of this swap was to hedge the variable cash flows associated with a 

floating rate security we owned. The variable rate we paid on the swap was offset by the amount we received on the variable rate 

security. The swap and associated security matured in December 2007. 

	 We also have embedded derivatives in modified coinsurance contracts recognized under DIG Issue B36. Due to the change in fair value 

of these embedded derivatives, we recognized $57.3 million, $5.3 million, and $7.9 million of net realized investment losses during 2007, 

2006, and 2005, respectively. One of the reinsurance contracts for which DIG Issue B36 was applicable was recaptured during 2005. Prior 

to recapture, we included in other assets a deposit asset for the applicable reinsurance contract. At the time of recapture, the receivable 

in the deposit asset was settled, the derivative was terminated, and the assets were recorded using the market value of $1,621.7 million 

that existed on that date. The difference in the book value transferred out of the deposit asset account, which was $1,472.7 million, and 

the market value recorded equaled the embedded derivative market value component of $149.0 million. The time value component of 

$9.4 million was recognized as a realized investment loss. The fair value of the embedded derivative related to the remaining applicable 

reinsurance contract was $(68.8) million as of December 31, 2007.

	 During 2007 and 2006, we entered into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the variability of functional currency cash flows 

anticipated to be received related to the disposition of fixed maturity securities. In 2007 and 2006, we had $12.2 million and $15.2 million, 

respectively, notional amounts of these derivatives that were terminated, for cash, at the time the foreign currency proceeds were received.

	 During 2006, we completed a program to reset the interest rates of several receive fixed, pay variable forward starting interest rate 

swaps by terminating various existing swaps and adding new swaps at current market interest rates and identical cash flow dates. This 

allowed us to increase our utilization of cash flows as well as reduce our credit exposure to our counterparties. Under this program, we 

added and terminated swaps with a notional amount of $1,515.0 million each, resulting in a gain of $136.4 million which we reported in 

other comprehensive income (loss). The anticipated cash flows hedged by these derivatives are still probable, and the gains from the 

terminated swaps along with the replacement swaps continue to be highly effective cash flow hedges. These terminations and the 

associated gain are included in the hedging activity discussed in the following paragraph.
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	 During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, we recognized net gains of $26.0 million, $183.6 million, and $120.7 million, 

respectively, on the termination of cash flow hedges and reported $26.1 million, $183.6 million, and $121.0 million, respectively, in other 

comprehensive income (loss). During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2005 we reported a net loss of $0.1 million and $0.3 million, 

respectively, as a component of realized investment gains and losses. We amortized $20.2 million, $30.0 million, and $21.8 million of net 

deferred gains into net investment income during 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. The estimated amount of net deferred gains to be 

amortized into operating earnings during 2008 is $20.4 million. 

	 The notional amount of derivatives outstanding under the hedge programs was $2,985.7 million at December 31, 2007. For the year 

ended December 31, 2007, there was no material ineffectiveness related to our derivative holdings, and there was no component of the 

derivative instruments’ gain or loss excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. During 2007, we reclassified $0.1 million of net 

losses into earnings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges due to the improbability of the original forecasted transactions 

occurring as anticipated.

Note 6. Acquisitions and Dispositions 

Acquisitions
	 During 2005 GENEX acquired Independent Review Services, Inc., a provider of medical diagnostic networks and independent medical 

examinations, at a price of $3.5 million. Independent Review Services, Inc. was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GENEX and therefore 

included with the disposition of GENEX. 

	 A reconciliation of value of business acquired is as follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Balance at January 1	 $	78.2	 $	78.5	 $	101.5 

	 Interest Accrued	 	 4.4		  4.6		  5.2 

	 Amortization	 	(12.3)		 (12.6)		 (20.3)

	 Foreign Currency	 	 0.9		  7.7		  (7.9)

Balance at December 31	 $	71.2	 $	78.2	 $	 78.5 

	 The estimated net amortization of value of business acquired for each of the next five years is $8.5 million in 2008, $9.5 million in 

2009, $9.8 million in each of the years 2010, 2011, and 2012. Amortization of value of business acquired is included in other expenses in 

the consolidated statements of income. 

Dispositions
	 In March 2007, we completed the sale of GENEX. See Note 2 for further discussion.

	 During 2005, we completed the sale of Unum UK’s Netherlands branch. The gain on the sale was $5.7 million before tax and  

$4.0 million after tax.
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Note 7. Liability for Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses
	 Changes in the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses are as follows: 

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Balance at January 1	 $	24,324.4	 $	23,047.7	 $	22,285.1 

	 Less Reinsurance Recoverable	 	 2,257.3		  2,267.3		  3,096.2 

Net Balance at January 1		 22,067.1	 	20,780.4		 19,188.9 

Recapture of Business — Note 13	 	 204.3		  —		  934.8 

Incurred Related to						    

	 Current Year	 	 4,836.9		  5,204.4		  5,188.3 

	 Prior Years					   

		  Interest	 	 1,199.9		  1,149.5		  1,066.9 

		  Incurred for Claim Reassessment Process		  65.8		  396.4		  52.7 

		  All Other Incurred		  174.3	 	 228.5		  390.2 

		  Foreign Currency	 	 33.7		  292.2		  (224.2)

Total Incurred	 	 6,310.6		  7,271.0		  6,473.9 

Paid Related to						    

	 Current Year	 	(1,460.5)		 (1,597.5)		 (1,692.1)

	 Prior Years		 (4,581.3)		 (4,386.8)		 (4,125.1)

Total Paid		 	(6,041.8)		 (5,984.3)		 (5,817.2)

Net Balance at December 31	 	22,540.2		 22,067.1		 20,780.4 

	 Plus Reinsurance Recoverable		  2,249.8		  2,257.3		  2,267.3 

Balance at December 31	 $	24,790.0	 $	24,324.4	 $	23,047.7 

	 The majority of the net balances are related to disability claims with long-tail payouts on which interest earned on assets backing 

liabilities is an integral part of pricing and reserving. Interest accrued on prior year reserves has been calculated on the opening reserve 

balance less one-half year’s cash payments at our average reserve discount rate used during 2007, 2006, and 2005.

	 Our “Incurred Related to Prior Years” includes adjustments to reserves for our claim reassessment process. We entered into settlement 

agreements with various state insurance regulators in the fourth quarter of 2004 and with the California Department of Insurance (DOI)  

in the third quarter of 2005. In connection with these settlement agreements, we increased our disability claim reserves $52.7 million in 

2005. During 2006 and 2007, we further increased our disability claim reserves $396.4 million and $65.8 million, respectively, to reflect 

our revised estimate for costs associated with the claim reassessment process. “Paid Related to Prior Years” includes $248.0 million, 

$154.9 million, and $16.1 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, for these reserve charges. See Note 15 for further discussion of 

the settlement agreements and the claim reassessment process.

	 “Incurred Related to Prior Years — All Other Incurred” for 2007, 2006, and 2005 relates primarily to the recent variability in our claim 

resolution rate experience. Claim resolution rates are very sensitive to operational and environmental changes and can be volatile over 

short periods of time. During 2005 and 2006, we experienced quarter to quarter variability in our claim resolution rates. We believe this 

variability was primarily the result of a short-term reduction in the operating effectiveness of our Unum US and Individual 

Disability — Closed Block segment claims management performance. During 2007, we gained more stability in our claims management 

performance, and our claim resolution rates were more consistent with our long-term assumptions. Our claim resolution rate assumption 

used in determining reserves is our expectation of the resolution rate we will experience over the life of the block of business and will 

vary from actual experience in any one period, both favorably and unfavorably.
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	 A reconciliation of policy and contract benefits and reserves for future policy and contract benefits as reported in the consolidated 

balance sheets to the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses is as follows:

	 December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Policy and Contract Benefits	 $	 1,979.7	 $	 2,220.4	 $	 2,063.4 

Reserves for Future Policy and Contract Benefits	 	35,828.0		 35,689.4		 34,041.5 

Total			   	37,807.7		 37,909.8		 36,104.9 

Less:							     

	 Life Reserves for Future Policy and Contract Benefits	 	 6,937.2		  7,753.1		  7,471.3 

	 Accident and Health Active Life Reserves	 	 5,221.2		  4,869.2		  4,464.6 

	 Unrealized Adjustment to Reserves for Future Policy and Contract Benefits	 	 859.3		  963.1		  1,121.3 

Liability for Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses	 $	24,790.0	 $	24,324.4	 $	23,047.7 

	 The unrealized adjustment to reserves for future policy and contract benefits reflects the changes that would be necessary to 

policyholder liabilities if the unrealized investment gains and losses related to the available-for-sale securities had been realized. Changes 

in these adjustments are reported as a component of other comprehensive income. 

Note 8. Income Tax
	 Total income tax expense (benefit) is allocated as follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Income from Continuing Operations	 $	 324.8	 $	 61.8	 $	189.9 

Income from Discontinued Operations		  10.9	 	 5.8		  6.1 

Stockholders’ Equity — Additional Paid-in Capital Stock-Based Compensation	 	 (5.8)		  —		  (4.5)

Stockholders’ Equity — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)						    

	 Net Unrealized Gain on Securities		 (100.4)		 (273.1)		 (147.9)

	 Net Gain on Cash Flow Hedges	 	 (6.0)		  (39.8)		  19.7 

	 Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment	 	 —	 	 (0.3)		  (0.2)

	 Unrecognized Pension and Postretirement Benefit Costs		  16.7	 	 11.3		  (6.7)

	 Adjustment to Adopt SFAS 158		  —	 	 (40.3)		  —  

Stockholders’ Equity — Retained Earnings							     

	 Adjustment to Adopt SOP 05-1	 	(232.9)		  —		  —  

	 Adjustment to Adopt FIN 48		  (22.7)	 	 —		  — 

Total Income Tax Expense (Benefit)	 $	 (15.4)	 $	(274.6)	 $	 56.4 
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	 A reconciliation of the income tax expense (benefit) attributable to income from continuing operations before income tax, computed 

at U.S. federal statutory tax rates, to the income tax expense (benefit) as included in the consolidated statements of income, is as follows: 

									       
	 Year Ended December 31		

					     2007	 2006	 2005

Statutory Income Tax		  35.0)%		  35.0)%		  35.0)%

Prior Year Taxes and FIN 48		  (0.2)	 	 (2.1)		  (6.6)	

Tax-exempt Investment Income		  (1.0)	 	 (1.6)		  (0.8)	

Foreign Net Operating Losses	 	 0.1	 	 (17.9)		  (0.2)	

Other Items, Net	 	 (1.3)	 	 (0.1)		  —	

Effective Tax	 	 32.6)%	 	 13.3)%		  27.4)%

	 The net deferred income tax liability consists of the following:

	 December 31		

(in millions of dollars)				    2007	 2006

Deferred Tax Liability from Continuing Operations				  

	 Deferred Acquisition Costs			   $	284.9	 $	542.9 

	 Invested Assets			   	 62.1		 144.5 

	 Policy Reserves			   	 9.0		  76.0 

	 Other				    	 75.0		  75.0 

Gross Deferred Tax Liability			   	431.0		 838.4 

Deferred Tax Asset from Continuing Operations				  

	 Employee Benefits			   	148.3		 188.1 

	 Other					     36.6		  89.4 

Gross Deferred Tax Asset			   	184.9		 277.5 

	 Less Valuation Allowance			   	 5.6		  6.4 

Net Deferred Tax Asset			   	179.3		 271.1 

Net Deferred Tax Liability from Continuing Operations			   	251.7		 567.3 

Net Deferred Tax Liability from Discontinued Operations				    —		  8.4 

Total Net Deferred Tax Liability		  	 $	251.7	 $	575.7 

	 Under the Life Insurance Company Tax Act of 1959, U.S. stock life insurance companies were required to maintain a policyholders’ 

surplus account containing the accumulated portion of income which had not been subjected to income tax in the year earned. The Deficit 

Reduction Act of 1984 required that no future amounts be added after 1983 to the policyholders’ surplus account and that any future 

distributions to shareholders from the account would become subject to federal income tax at the general corporate federal income tax 

rate then in effect. During 2004, the Homeland Investment Act of 2004 was enacted. The Homeland Investment Act of 2004 provided, 

in part, that distributions from policyholders’ surplus accounts during 2005 and 2006 would not be taxed.

	 The amount of the policyholders’ surplus accounts of our U.S. insurance subsidiaries at December 31, 2004, was approximately 

$228.8 million. Distributions made during 2005 by these life insurance subsidiaries, including dividend distributions, were deemed to 

occur first from the policyholders’ surplus accounts. As a result, our U.S. life insurance subsidiaries distributed as dividends the remaining 

balance of their policyholders’ surplus account to the holding company during 2005. This resulted in the elimination of a future potential 

tax of approximately $80.1 million which had not previously been provided for in current or deferred taxes because we considered the 

conditions under which such a tax would be paid to be remote. 
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	 The Homeland Investment Act of 2004 also provided a deduction of 85 percent of certain foreign earnings that were repatriated 

during 2005, up to a maximum of $500.0 million. For the portion of unremitted foreign earnings of our non-U.S. operations that had been 

considered to be permanently reinvested, we had not previously provided U.S. income taxes. During 2005, we repatriated $454.8 million 

in unremitted foreign earnings from our U.K. subsidiary. We recorded current taxes payable of approximately $15.3 million on those previously 

unremitted foreign earnings and recorded a tax benefit of approximately $18.6 million as a result of the reversal of the deferred tax liability 

related to the unremitted earnings. We consider the remaining amounts of unremitted earnings as permanently invested in our foreign 

subsidiaries. The determination of the tax liability related to the remaining unremitted earnings is not practicable.

	 Our consolidated statements of income include amounts subject to both domestic and foreign taxation. The income and related tax 

expense (benefit) are as follows: 

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Income Before Tax						    

	 United States — Federal	 $	 703.9	 $	249.0	 $	529.8 

	 Foreign	 	 311.1		 229.6		 179.8 

	 Total		  $	1,015.0	 $	478.6	 $	709.6 

Current Tax Expense						    

	 United States — Federal	 $	 214.0	 $	110.2	 $	 69.9 

	 Foreign	 	 72.9		  43.9		  50.3 

	 Total		  	 286.9		 154.1		 120.2 

Deferred Tax Expense (Benefit)						    

	 United States — Federal		  38.6		 (21.3)		  75.2 

	 Foreign	 	 10.2		 (65.2)		  0.6 

	 Total		  	 48.8		 (86.5)		  75.8 

Total Income Tax Expense	 $	 335.7	 $	 67.6	 $	196.0 

	 During 2007, the U.K. enacted a tax rate decrease from 30 percent to 28 percent. The tax benefit recognized in operations as a result 

of this decrease was $1.7 million.

	

65977_FIN_Blueline.indd   96 3/27/08   2:24:35 PM



Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Unum 2007 Annual Report       113

	 The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007 resulted in a $22.7 million decrease in our liability for 

unrecognized tax benefits, net of associated deferred tax assets. Our consolidated statements of income include the following changes in 

unrecognized tax benefits during 2007 (in millions of dollars): 

Balance at January 1, 2007					     $	 67.4 

Tax Positions Related to Current Year		

	 Additions						     104.6 

	 Subtractions						      (4.8)

Tax Positions Related to Prior Years		

	 Additions						      4.4 

	 Subtractions						      (10.6)

Balance at December 31, 2007						     161.0 

Less Tax Attributable to Temporary Items Included Above						     (145.8)

Total Unrecognized Tax Benefits that if Recognized Would Affect the Effective Tax Rate					     $	 15.2	

	 Included at January 1, 2007 are unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $19.2 million that, if recognized, would impact our 

effective tax rate. Included in the balance at January 1 and December 31, 2007, are $48.2 million and $145.8 million, respectively, of 

unrecognized tax benefits for tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about 

the timing of such deductibility. Other than potential interest and penalties, the disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would  

not affect our results of operations but would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

	 We recognize interest expense and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in tax expense net of federal income tax. The total 

amounts of accrued interest and penalties in the consolidated balance sheets as of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007 are $5.5 million 

and $7.5 million, respectively. We recognized $2.0 million of interest expense and penalties related to unrecognized tax expense in our 

consolidated statements of income during 2007. We had no changes to uncertain tax positions as a result of settlements or lapses in 

statutes of limitations during 2007. We do not expect a significant change in our existing liability for unrecognized tax benefits during the 

next 12 months.

	 We file federal and state income tax returns in the United States and in foreign jurisdictions. We are under continuous examination  

by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) with regard to our U.S. federal income tax returns. The current IRS examination covers our tax years 

2002 through 2004 with a revenue agent’s report (RAR) expected to be issued by the IRS on those years during the first half of 2008.	

	 Tax years subsequent to 2004 remain subject to examination by tax authorities in the U.S., and tax years subsequent to 2005 remain 

subject to examination in major foreign jurisdictions. We believe sufficient provision has been made for all proposed and potential 

adjustments for years that are not closed by the statute of limitations in all major tax jurisdictions and that any such adjustments would 

not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, liquidity, or results of operations. However, it is possible that the resolution  

of income tax matters could impact our results of operations for a particular future period.

	 During 2006, we reversed income tax liabilities of approximately $91.9 million related primarily to group relief benefits obtained from 

the use of net operating losses in a foreign jurisdiction in which our businesses operate as the result of final determinations on those 

years. Also included in 2006 operating results is income of $2.6 million before tax and $3.9 million after tax attributable to the receipt  

of interest and tax refunds on prior year tax items in excess of what was previously provided.

	 During 2005, the IRS completed its examination of tax years 1999 through 2001 and issued its RAR. Income tax liabilities of approximately 

$32.0 million that related primarily to interest on the timing of expense deductions were released in 2005, all of which was reflected as a 

reduction to income tax expense.

	 During 2005, we also recognized $3.0 million of income before tax and $2.0 million after tax as a result of refunds received from the 

IRS during the year. Additionally, we recognized an income tax benefit of approximately $10.8 million in connection with the finalization 

of income tax reviews of our U.K. subsidiaries. 
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	 As of December 31, 2007, we had no net operating loss carryforward in the U.S. As of December 31, 2007, we had net operating loss 

carryforwards in foreign jurisdictions of $5.6 million for which a full valuation allowance has been established because, in our judgment, 

we will most likely not realize a tax benefit for these losses. The $0.8 million change from 2006 in the valuation allowance is due primarily 

to the utilization of loss carryforwards during 2007 as well as the change in the enacted tax rate in the U.K.

	 Total income taxes paid during 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $189.9 million, $129.2 million, and $93.4 million, respectively.

Note 9. Debt 
	 Short-term debt at December 31, 2007 consists of the 5.997% notes due in May 2008. There was no short-term debt outstanding  

at December 31, 2006.

	 Long-term debt consists of the following:

	 Year Ended December 31	

(in millions of dollars)				    2007	 2006

Senior Secured Notes, variable due 2037, callable at or above par		  	 $	 800.0	 $	 —  

Senior Secured Notes, variable due 2036, callable at or above par			   	 112.5	 	 130.0 

Adjustable Conversion-Rate Equity Security Units @ 8.25% due 2009				    —	 	 300.0 

Notes @ 7.25% due 2032, callable at or above par				    —	 	 150.0 

Notes @ 7.375% due 2032, callable at or above par				    39.5	 	 250.0 

Notes @ 6.75% due 2028, callable at or above par				    166.4	 	 250.0 

Notes @ 7.25% due 2028, callable at or above par				    200.0	 	 200.0 

Notes @ 7.0% due 2018, non-callable			   	 200.0	 	 200.0 

Notes @ 6.85%, due 2015, callable at or above par			   	 333.2	 	 367.6 

Notes @ 7.625% due 2011, callable at or above par			   	 225.1	 	 325.0 

Notes @ 5.859% due 2009			   	 150.0	 	 —  

Notes @ 5.997% due 2008			   	 —	 	 175.0 

Junior Subordinated Debt Securities @ 7.405% due 2038			   	 226.5		  250.0 

Medium-term Notes @ 7.0% to 7.2% due 2023 to 2028, non-callable			   	 62.0	 	 62.0 

Total					     $	2,515.2	 $	2,659.6 

	 The 5.859% notes due 2009 and the junior subordinated debt securities due 2038 are callable under limited, specified circumstances. 

The remaining callable debt may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time. Collateralized debt, which consists of the senior secured 

notes, ranks highest in priority, followed by unsecured notes, which consists of notes and medium-term notes, followed by junior 

subordinated debt securities. The aggregate contractual principal maturities are $150.0 million in 2009, $225.1 million in 2011, and 

$2,140.4 million in 2015 and thereafter.

	 In October 2007, Northwind Holdings, LLC (Northwind Holdings), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Unum Group, issued $800.0 million  

of insured, senior, secured notes due 2037 (the Northwind notes) in a private offering. The Northwind notes bear interest at a floating rate 

equal to the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 0.78%. Northwind Holdings contributed the $800.0 million proceeds 

from the issuance of the Northwind notes to Northwind Reinsurance Company (Northwind Re), the sole subsidiary of Northwind Holdings, 

as a capital contribution. Northwind Re deposited the funds in a funding sub account (the Northwind Re funding sub account). No further 

deposits will be made into the Northwind Re funding sub account.
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	 Northwind Re reinsured the risks attributable to specified individual disability insurance policies issued by or reinsured by Provident 

Life and Accident Insurance Company, Unum Life Insurance Company of America (Unum America), and The Paul Revere Life Insurance 

Company (collectively, the ceding insurers) pursuant to separate reinsurance agreements between Northwind Re and each of the ceding 

insurers. Assets held in the Northwind funding sub account will not be available to fund payments of principal or interest on the 

Northwind notes.

	 Northwind Holdings’ ability to meet its obligations to pay principal, interest, and other amounts due on the Northwind notes will  

be dependent principally on its receipt of dividends from Northwind Re. The ability of Northwind Re to pay such dividends will depend  

on its satisfaction of applicable regulatory requirements and the performance of the reinsured policies. 

	 Recourse for the payment of principal, interest, and other amounts due on the Northwind notes is limited to the collateral for the 

Northwind notes and the other assets, if any, of Northwind Holdings. The collateral consists of a first priority, perfected security interest in 

(a) the debt service coverage account (Northwind DSCA) that is required to be maintained in accordance with the indenture pursuant to 

which the Northwind notes were issued (the Northwind indenture), (b) the capital stock of Northwind Re and the dividends and distributions 

on such capital stock, and (c) Northwind Holdings’ rights under the transaction documents related to the Northwind notes to which 

Northwind Holdings is a party. At December 31, 2007 the amounts in the Northwind DSCA was $43.7 million. None of Unum Group, the 

ceding insurers, Northwind Re, or any other affiliate of Northwind Holdings is an obligor or guarantor with respect to the Northwind notes. 

	 Northwind Holdings is required to repay a portion of the outstanding principal under the Northwind notes at par on the quarterly 

scheduled payment dates under the Northwind notes in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) a targeted amortization amount as defined  

in the Northwind indenture and (ii) the amount of the remaining available funds in the Northwind DSCA minus an amount equal to the 

minimum balance that is required to be maintained in the Northwind DSCA under the Northwind indenture, provided that Northwind 

Holdings has sufficient funds available to pay its other expenses, including interest payments on the Northwind notes, and to maintain 

the minimum balance in the Northwind DSCA as required under the Northwind indenture. 

	 In November 2006, Tailwind Holdings, LLC (Tailwind Holdings), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Unum Group, issued $130.0 million of 

insured, senior, secured notes due 2036 (the Tailwind notes) in a private offering. The Tailwind notes bear interest at a floating rate equal 

to the three-month LIBOR plus 0.35%. Tailwind Holdings contributed the $130.0 million proceeds from the issuance of the Tailwind notes 

to Tailwind Reinsurance Company (Tailwind Re), the sole subsidiary of Tailwind Holdings, as a capital contribution. Tailwind Re deposited 

the funds in a funding sub account (the Tailwind Re funding sub account). No further deposits will be made into the Tailwind Re funding 

sub account. 

	 Tailwind Re reinsured Unum America’s liability with respect to certain specified long-term disability claims incurred between January 1, 

1999 and December 31, 2001 that were in payment status on January 1, 2006 pursuant to a reinsurance agreement between Tailwind Re 

and Unum America. Assets held in the Tailwind Re funding sub account will not be available to fund payments of principal or interest on 

the Tailwind notes, but will be held solely to satisfy any obligations of Tailwind Re to Unum America under the reinsurance agreement.

	 Tailwind Holdings’ ability to meet its obligations to pay principal, interest, and other amounts due on the Tailwind notes will be 

dependent principally on its receipt of dividends from Tailwind Re. The ability of Tailwind Re to pay such dividends will depend on its 

satisfaction of applicable regulatory requirements and the performance of the reinsured claims. 

	 Recourse for the payment of principal, interest, and other amounts due on the Tailwind notes is limited to the collateral for the Tailwind 

notes and the other assets, if any, of Tailwind Holdings. The collateral consists of a first priority, perfected security interest in (a) the debt 

service coverage account (Tailwind DSCA) that is required to be maintained in accordance with the indenture pursuant to which the 

Tailwind notes were issued (the Tailwind indenture), (b) the capital stock of Tailwind Re and the dividends and distributions on such capital 

stock, and (c) Tailwind Holdings’ rights under the transaction documents related to the Tailwind notes to which Tailwind Holdings is a 

party. At December 31, 2007 the amounts in the Tailwind DSCA was $12.5 million. None of Unum Group, Unum America, Tailwind Re, 

or any other affiliate of Tailwind Holdings is an obligor or guarantor with respect to the Tailwind notes. 
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	 Tailwind Holdings is required to repay a portion of the outstanding principal under the Tailwind notes at par on the quarterly scheduled 

payment dates under the Tailwind notes in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) a targeted amortization amount as defined in the Tailwind 

indenture and (ii) the amount of the remaining available funds in the Tailwind DSCA minus an amount equal to the minimum balance that 

is required to be maintained in the Tailwind DSCA under the Tailwind indenture, provided that Tailwind Holdings has sufficient funds available 

to pay its other expenses, including interest payments on the Tailwind notes, and to maintain the minimum balance in the Tailwind DSCA as 

required under the Tailwind indenture. During 2007, Tailwind Holdings made principal payments of $17.5 million on the Tailwind notes. 

	 In November 2007, we purchased and retired $17.5 million of our outstanding 6.75% notes scheduled to mature in 2028. During 

December 2007, pursuant to a tender offer, we purchased and retired $23.5 million aggregate liquidation amount of the 7.405% junior 

subordinated debt securities due 2038; $99.9 million aggregate principal amount of the 7.625% notes due 2011; $210.5 million aggregate 

principal amount of the 7.375% notes due 2032; and $66.1 million aggregate principal amount of the 6.75% notes due 2028. We also 

called and retired all $150.0 million principal amount of our outstanding 7.25% notes scheduled to mature in 2032.

	 In June 2006, pursuant to a tender offer, we purchased and retired $50.0 million aggregate liquidation amount of our outstanding 7.405% 

junior subordinated debt securities due 2038 and $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of our outstanding 7.625% notes due 2011.

	 In November 2005, UnumProvident Finance Company plc, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Unum Group, issued $400.0 million of  

6.85% senior debentures due 2015 in a private offering and received net proceeds of $399.6 million. These debentures are fully and 

unconditionally guaranteed by Unum Group. In June 2007 and December 2006, $34.5 million and $32.0 million of these debentures  

were redeemed, respectively.

	 In May 2004, Unum Group issued 12.0 million 8.25% adjustable conversion-rate equity security units (units) in a private offering  

for $300.0 million. We subsequently registered the privately placed securities for resale by the private investors. Each unit had a stated 

amount of $25 and consisted of (a) a contract pursuant to which the holder agrees to purchase, for $25, shares of Unum Group’s common 

stock on May 15, 2007 and which entitled the holder to contract adjustment payments at the annual rate of 3.165 percent, payable quarterly, 

and (b) a 1/40 or 2.5 percent ownership interest in a senior note issued by Unum Group due May 15, 2009 with a principal amount of 

$1,000, on which we paid interest at the initial annual rate of 5.085 percent, payable quarterly. The scheduled remarketing of the senior 

note element of these units occurred in February 2007, as stipulated by the terms of the original offering, and we reset the interest rate 

on $300.0 million of senior notes due May 15, 2009 to 5.859%. We purchased $150.0 million of the senior notes in the remarketing which 

were subsequently retired. In May 2007, we settled the purchase contract element of the units by issuing 17.7 million shares of common 

stock. We received proceeds of approximately $300.0 million from the transaction. 

	 In May 2003, Unum Group issued 23.0 million 8.25% adjustable conversion-rate equity security units (units) in a public offering  

for $575.0 million. Each unit had a stated amount of $25 and initially consisted of (a) a contract pursuant to which the holder agreed to 

purchase, for $25, shares of Unum Group’s common stock on May 15, 2006 and which entitled the holder to contract adjustment payments  

at the annual rate of 2.25 percent, payable quarterly, and (b) a 1/40, or 2.5 percent, ownership interest in a senior note issued by Unum 

Group due May 15, 2008 with a principal amount of $1,000, on which we paid interest at the initial annual rate of 6.00 percent, payable 

quarterly. The scheduled remarketing of the senior note element of these units occurred in February 2006, as stipulated by the terms  

of the original offering, and we reset the interest rate on $575.0 million of senior notes due May 15, 2008 to 5.997%. We purchased 

$400.0 million of the senior notes in the remarketing which were subsequently retired. Upon settlement of the common stock purchase 

contract in May 2006, we received proceeds of approximately $575.0 million and issued 43.3 million shares of common stock. 
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	 In 1998, Provident Financing Trust I (the trust) issued $300.0 million of 7.405% capital securities in a public offering. These capital 

securities, which mature on March 15, 2038, are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Unum Group, have a liquidation value of $1,000 

per capital security, and have a mandatory redemption feature under certain circumstances. Unum Group issued 7.405% junior subordinated 

deferrable interest debentures which mature on March 15, 2038, to the trust in connection with the capital securities offering. The sole 

assets of the trust are the junior subordinated debt securities. 

	 In December 2007, we entered into $400.0 million 364 day unsecured revolving credit facility. Borrowings under the facility are for 

general corporate uses and are subject to financial covenants, negative covenants, and events of default that are customary. The facility 

provides for interest rates based on either the prime rate or LIBOR, as adjusted. At December 31, 2007, there were no amounts outstanding 

on the facility. 

	 Unum Group has a shelf registration, which became effective in 2005, with the Securities and Exchange Commission to issue various 

types of securities, including common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, depository shares, stock purchase contracts, units and warrants, 

or preferred securities of wholly-owned finance trusts up to an aggregate of $1.0 billion. If utilized, the shelf registration will enable us  

to raise funds from the offering of any individual security covered by the shelf registration as well as any combination thereof, subject  

to market conditions and our capital needs. At December 31, 2007, we had $1.0 billion remaining on our shelf registration.

	 Interest paid on short-term and long-term debt and related securities during 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $184.1 million, $200.7 million, 

and $210.7 million, respectively.

	 The cost related to early retirement of debt during 2007 and 2006 decreased income approximately $58.8 million and $25.8 million, 

respectively, before tax, or $38.3 million and $16.9 million, respectively, after tax.

Note 10.  Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits
	 We sponsor several defined benefit pension and postretirement plans for our employees, including non-qualified pension plans. The 

U.S. plans comprise the majority of our total benefit obligation and benefit cost. We maintain a separate defined benefit plan for eligible 

employees in our U.K. operation. 

	 Information presented as follows for our non U.S. plans previously included plans for the employees of our Canadian branch operation 

which was sold in 2004. In the third quarter of 2007, we terminated the Canadian defined pension plans which were frozen in 2004. The 

termination of these plans resulted in a reduction in our pension assets and pension liabilities of $15.1 million and a settlement cost of 

$0.3 million recognized in our net periodic benefit cost for 2007. 

	 As a result of the sale of GENEX, we froze the pension plan benefits for the employees of GENEX during the first quarter of 2007, 

which resulted in a $7.2 million reduction in our pension liability and a curtailment loss of $0.2 million recognized in our net periodic 

benefit cost for 2007. The curtailment loss was comprised of a $0.6 million increase in our pension liability related to a termination benefit 

and a $0.4 million recognition of unamortized prior service credits. As of the date of the curtailment, we remeasured our U.S. pension plan 

obligation. The weighted average discount rate assumption used in the measurement of our U.S. pension plan benefit obligation changed 

from 6.10 percent as of our December 31, 2006 measurement date to 5.90 percent as of the measurement date of March 1, 2007. No 

other assumptions were materially changed. As a result of the remeasurement, our pension plan liability increased $35.6 million. The net 

effect of the curtailment and remeasurement was an increase in our pension plan liability of $29.0 million, a decrease in deferred income 

tax of $10.1 million, a decrease in income from discontinued operations of $0.2 million, and a decrease in accumulated other comprehensive 

income of $18.7 million. 
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	 The following tables provide the changes in the benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets and statements of the funded status 

of the plans. 

		  Pension Benefits				  

	 U.S. Plans		  Non U.S. Plans	 Postretirement Benefits	

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006

Change in Benefit Obligation												          

Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year	 $	886.8	 $	841.9	 $	194.0	 $	152.9	 $	192.5		 189.8 

		  Service Cost		  31.9		  35.8		  9.2		  8.4	 	 3.6		  4.1 

		  Interest Cost		  54.2		  48.4		  9.7		  8.0		  11.0		  10.0 

		  Plan Participant Contributions		  —		  —		  —		  —		  3.2		  2.9 

		  Actuarial (Gain) Loss	 	(44.1)		 (26.2)	 	 (7.8)		  9.9		  (7.0)		  1.3 

		  Benefits and Expenses Paid	 	(18.6)		 (13.1)	 	 (3.7)		  (4.3)		 (13.9)		 (15.6)

		  Plan Amendments	 	 1.2		  —		  —		  —		  —		  —  

		  Curtailment	 	 (7.2)		  —		  —		  —		  —		  —  

		  Divestiture		  —		  —	 	 (2.1)		  —		  —		  —  

		  Settlement		  —		  —	 	(15.1)		  (0.9)		  —		  —  

		  Special Termination Benefit Cost	 	 0.6		  —		  —		  —		  —		  —  

		  Change in Foreign Exchange Rates		  —		  —		  3.7		  20.0		  —		  —  

Benefit Obligation at End of Year	 $	904.8	 $	886.8	 $	187.9	 $	194.0	 $	189.4	 $	192.5 

Accumulated Benefit Obligation  

	 at December 31	 $	856.9	 $	824.4	 $	162.4	 $	171.4	 	 N/A		  N/A 

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets											         

Fair Value of Plan Assets  

	 at Beginning of Year	 $	658.5	 $	515.4	 $	184.3	 $	107.5	 $	 12.0	 $	 11.9 

		  Actual Return on Plan Assets		  31.0		  61.0	 	 7.7		  10.2	 	 0.4		  0.5 

		  Employer Contributions		 113.4		  95.2	 	 11.4		  53.5		  10.3		  12.3 

		  Plan Participant Contributions		  —		  —	 	 —		  —		  3.2		  2.9 

		  Benefits and Expenses Paid		 (18.6)		 (13.1)	 	 (3.7)		  (4.3)	 	(13.9)		 (15.6)

		  Divestiture		  —		  —	 	 (1.9)		  —		  —		  —  

		  Settlement		  —		  —		 (15.1)		  (0.9)		  —		  —  

		  Change in Foreign Exchange Rates		  —		  —		  3.5		  18.3		  —		  —  

Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Year	 $	784.3	 $	658.5	 $	186.2	 $	184.3	 $	 12.0	 $	 12.0 

Unfunded Liability	 $	120.5	 $	228.3	 $	 1.7	 $	 9.7	 $	177.4	 $	180.5 
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	 The amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets for our pension and postretirement benefit plans at December 31, 2007 

and 2006 are as follows:

		  Pension Benefits				  

	 U.S. Plans		  Non U.S. Plans	 Postretirement Benefits	

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006

Current Pension Liability	 $	 3.3	 $	 3.0	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 13.5	 $	 13.5 

Noncurrent Pension Liability		 117.2		 225.3		  1.7		  9.7	 	163.9		 167.0 

Unfunded Liability	 $	120.5	 $	228.3	 $	 1.7	 $	 9.7	 $	177.4	 $	180.5 

Unrecognized Pension  

	 and Postretirement Benefit Costs												          

		  Net Actuarial Loss	 $	(255.2)	 $	(298.3)	 $	(55.4)	 $	(64.5)	 $	 (6.7)	 $	(13.4)

		  Prior Service Credit	 	 3.6		  8.3		  —		  —	 	 11.9		  15.6 

		  Transition Asset		  —		  —	 	 0.2		  0.3		  —		  —  

				    	(251.6)		 (290.0)		 (55.2)		 (64.2)	 	 5.2		  2.2 

		  Deferred Income Tax Asset (Liability)	 	 89.7		 101.6	 	15.2		 18.9		  (1.8)		  (0.7)

Total Included in Accumulated Other												          

		  Comprehensive Income (Loss)	 $	(161.9)	 $	(188.4)	 $	(40.0)	 $	(45.3)	 $	 3.4	 $	 1.5

	 The following table provides the changes recognized in other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2007.

		  Pension Benefits	 Postretirement

(in millions of dollars)	 U.S. Plans	 Non U.S. Plans	 Benefits	

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) At Beginning of Year	 $	(188.4)	 $	(45.3)	 $	 1.5	

	 Net Actuarial Loss						    

		  Amortization		  19.2		  3.0		  —	

		  Curtailment		  7.2		  —		  —	

		  All Other Changes		  16.7		  6.1		  6.7	

	 Prior Service Credit						    

		  Amortization		  (3.1)		  —		 (3.8)	

		  All Other Changes		  (1.6)		  —		  0.1	

	 Transition Asset						    

		  Amortization		  —		  (0.2)		  —	

		  All Other Changes		  —		  0.1		  —  

	 Change in Deferred Income Tax Asset (Liability)		  (11.9)		  (3.7)		 (1.1)

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) At End of Year	 $	(161.9)	 $	(40.0)	 $	 3.4 
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	 The weighted average asset allocations, by asset category, for our funded pension plans are as follows:

	 U.S. Plans		  Non U.S. Plans	

			   2007	 2006	 2007	 2006

			   Target	 Actual	 Target	 Actual	 Target	 Actual	 Target	 Actual

Equity Securities	 55–65%	 58%	 55–65%	 61%	 60%	 56%	 60%	 50% 

Fixed Income Securities	 27–33	 31	 27–33	 29	 40	 38	 40	 39	

Other			   8–12	 11	 8–12	 10	 —	 6	 —	 11	

Total				    100%	 	 100%		  100%	 	 100% 

	 The investment portfolio for our U.S. pension plans during 2007 contained a diversified blend of large cap, mid cap, and small cap 

domestic equity securities, international equity securities, convertible securities, and investment-grade and below-investment-grade fixed 

income securities. Assets for our U.K. pension plan are invested in pooled funds, with approximately 56 percent in diversified growth 

assets including global equities, hedge funds, commodities, below-investment-grade fixed income securities, and currencies. The remainder 

of the assets for our U.K. plan is predominantly invested in fixed interest bonds and index linked bonds. Assets for life insurance benefits 

payable to certain former retirees covered under the postretirement benefits plan are invested primarily within life insurance contracts 

issued by one of our insurance subsidiaries. The terms of these contracts are consistent in all material respects with those the subsidiary 

offers to unaffiliated parties that are similarly situated. 

Measurement Assumptions
	 We use a December 31 measurement date for each of our plans. The weighted average assumptions used in the measurement of 

our benefit obligations as of December 31 and our net periodic benefit costs for the years ended December 31 are as follows: 

												          
		  Pension Benefits				  

	 U.S. Plans		  Non U.S. Plans	 Postretirement Benefits	

			   2007	 2006	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006

Benefit Obligations												          

	 Discount Rate		  6.50%	 	 6.10%	 	 5.80%		  5.10%		  6.30%		  5.90%

	 Rate of Compensation Increase	 	 4.70%	 	 4.70%	 	 5.30%		  5.00%	 	 —		  — 

Net Periodic Benefit Cost												          

	 Discount Rate	 	 5.90–6.10%		  5.80%	 	 5.10%		  4.82%		  5.90%		  5.50%

	 Expected Return on Plan Assets		  8.00%		  8.00%	 	 6.80%		  6.58%		  5.75%		  5.75%

	 Rate of Compensation Increase		  4.70%		  4.70%	 	 5.00%		  4.70%		  —		  —  

	 We set the discount rate assumption annually for each of our pension-related benefit plans at the measurement date to reflect the 

yield of a portfolio of high quality long-term fixed income securities matched against the projected cash flows for future benefits. 

	 Our long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption is an estimate, based on statistical analysis, of the average annual assumed 

return that will be produced from the plan assets until current benefits are paid. Our expectations for the future investment returns of the 

asset categories were based on a combination of historical market performance and evaluations of investment forecasts obtained from 

external consultants and economists. The methodology underlying the return assumption included the various elements of the expected 

return for each asset class such as long-term rates of return, volatility of returns, and the correlation of returns between various asset classes. 

The expected return for the total portfolio was calculated based on the plan’s strategic asset allocation. Investment risk is measured and 

monitored on an ongoing basis through annual liability measurements, periodic asset/liability studies, and quarterly investment portfolio 

reviews. Risk tolerance is established through consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status, and corporate financial condition. Our 

plans prohibit the use of derivative instruments. 
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	 The expected return assumption for the life insurance reserve for the postretirement benefits plan was 5.75 percent, which was based 

on full investment in fixed income securities with an average book yield of 6.30 percent and 6.39 percent for 2007 and 2006, respectively.

	 Our rate of compensation increase assumption is generally based on periodic studies of compensation trends.

	 For measurement purposes at December 31, 2007 and 2006, the annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered postretirement 

health care benefits assumed for the next calendar year was 9.00 percent for benefits payable to retirees prior to Medicare eligibility and 

9.80 percent for benefits payable to Medicare eligible retirees. The rate was assumed to change gradually to 5.00 percent by the end of 

the fifth year and remain at that level thereafter. During 2005, we confirmed that all of our retiree medical plans qualify for a government 

subsidy under the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 and chose to defer coordination with the new 

prescription drug benefit until 2007. This change is reflected in our net periodic benefit cost. 

	 The medical and dental premium used to determine the per retiree employer subsidy are capped. If the cap is not reached by the year 

2015, the caps are then set equal to the year 2015 premium. Certain of the current retirees and all future retirees are subject to the cap. 

Net Periodic Benefit Cost
	 The following table provides the components of the net periodic benefit cost for the plans described above for the years ended December 31. 

	 Pension Benefits						    

	 U.S. Plans	 Non U.S. Plans	 Postretirement Benefits	

(in millions of dollars)	 2007	 2006	 2005	 2007	 2006	 2005	 2007	 2006	 2005

Service Cost	 $ 31.9	 $ 35.9	 $ 35.2	 $   9.2	 $   8.4	 $ 8.3	 $  3.6	 $  4.1	 $  4.2 

Interest Cost	 54.2	 48.4	 43.7	 9.7	 8.0	 7.5	 11.0	 10.1	 10.4 

Expected Return on Plan Assets	 (58.5)	 (44.0)	 (40.5)	 (12.2)	 (10.6)	 (6.6)	 (0.7)	 (0.7)	 (0.7)

Amortization of:

	 Net Actuarial Loss	 19.2	 22.4	 19.2	 3.0	 2.3	 2.6	 —	 —	 —  

	 Prior Service Credit	 (3.1)	 (3.1)	 (2.8)	 —	 —	 —	 (3.8)	 (3.8)	 (3.8)

	 Transition Asset	 —	 —	 —	 (0.2)	 (0.1)	 (0.1)	 —	 —	 —  

Settlement Cost	 —	 —	 —	 0.3	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —  

Curtailment	 0.2	 —	 —	 —	 0.2	 —	 —	 —	 —  

Total		 $ 43.9	 $ 59.6	 $ 54.8	 $   9.8	 $   8.2	 $11.7	 $10.1	 $  9.7	 $ 10.1 

	 A one percent increase or decrease in the assumed health care cost trend rate at December 31, 2007 would have increased (decreased) 

the service cost and interest cost by $0.6 million and $(0.5) million, respectively, and the postretirement benefit obligation by $6.9 million 

and $(6.1) million, respectively.

	 The unrecognized net actuarial loss, prior service credit, and transition asset included in accumulated other comprehensive income 

and expected to be amortized and included in net periodic pension cost during 2008 is $14.5 million before tax and $9.6 million after tax. 

The prior service credit expected to be amortized and included as a reduction to net periodic cost for postretirement plans during 2008 is 

$3.4 million before tax and $2.2 million after tax. 

65977_FIN_Blueline.indd   105 3/27/08   2:24:38 PM



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

122       Unum 2007 Annual Report

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Benefit Payments
	 The following table provides expected benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate.

		  Pension Benefits	 Postretirement

(in millions of dollars)	 U.S. Plans	 Non U.S. Plans	 Benefits	

2008			   $	 17.0	 $	 4.2	 $	14.4	

2009				    18.6		  4.6		 15.4	

2010				    20.9		  5.2		 16.1	

2011				    23.2		  5.8		 16.6	

2012				    26.8		  6.4		 16.7	

2013–2017		 207.7		 36.6		 82.3	

Funding Policy
	 The funding policy for our U.S. qualified defined benefit plan is to contribute annually an amount at least equal to the minimum annual 

contribution required under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act and other applicable laws, but generally not greater than the 

maximum amount that can be deducted for federal income tax purposes. We had no regulatory contribution requirements for 2007 and 

2006; however, we elected to make voluntary contributions of $110.0 million and $92.0 million, respectively. We expect to make a voluntary 

contribution of approximately $55.0 million to our U.S. qualified defined benefit pension plan in 2008, based on current pension funding 

law. The funding policy for the U.S. non-qualified defined benefit pension plan and postretirement plan is to contribute the amount of 

the benefit payments made during the year. We are required to contribute to our U.K. plan at the rate of at least 18.20 percent of eligible 

salaries sufficient to meet the minimum funding requirement under U.K. legislation. We made contributions of $10.5 million and $53.3 million 

in 2007 and 2006, respectively. We expect to make contributions of £5.4 million during 2008.

	 Our postretirement benefits plan represents a non-vested, non-guaranteed obligation, and current regulations do not require specific 

funding levels for these benefits, which are comprised of retiree life, medical, and dental benefits. It is our practice to use general assets 

to pay medical and dental claims as they come due in lieu of utilizing plan assets for the medical and dental benefit portions of our 

postretirement benefits plan. 

Note 11. Stockholders’ Equity and Earnings Per Common Share

Common Stock
	 In October 2007, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $700.0 million of Unum Group’s common stock. At 

December 31, 2007, no common stock has been repurchased under this program. See Note 17 for further discussion.

	 We settled the purchase contract element of the 2004 and 2003 units in May 2007 and 2006 by issuing 17.7 million and 43.3 million 

shares of common stock, respectively. See Note 9 for further discussion.

Preferred Stock
	 Unum Group has 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized with a par value of $0.10 per share. No preferred stock has been 

issued to date.
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Earnings Per Common Share
	 Net income per common share is determined as follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars, except share data)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Numerator						    

	 Net Income	 $	 679.3	 $	 411.0	 $	 513.6 

Denominator (000s)						    

	 Weighted Average Common Shares — Basic	 	352,969.1		 324,654.9		 295,776.4 

	 Dilution for the Purchase Contract Element of the Adjustable  

		  Conversion-Rate Equity Security Units	 	 1,673.0	 	 8,153.0		  14,297.8 

	 Dilution for Assumed Exercises of Stock Options and Nonvested Stock Awards	 	 1,134.4		  1,553.8		  2,438.4 

	 Weighted Average Common Shares — Assuming Dilution	 	355,776.5		 334,361.7		 312,512.6 

Net Income Per Common Share						    

	 Basic		  $	 1.92	 $	 1.27	 $	 1.74 

	 Assuming Dilution	 $	 1.91	 $	 1.23	 $	 1.64 

	 We use the treasury stock method to account for the effect of the purchase contract element of the units, outstanding stock options, 

and nonvested stock awards on the computation of dilutive earnings per share. Under this method, these potential common shares will 

each have a dilutive effect, as individually measured, when the average market price of Unum Group’s common stock during the period 

exceeds the threshold appreciation price of the purchase contract element of the units, as described in Note 9, the exercise price of the 

stock options, as described in Note 12, or the grant price of the nonvested stock awards. 

	 The purchase contract element of the units issued in 2004 and 2003 had a threshold appreciation price of $16.95 per share and 

$13.27 per share, respectively. The outstanding stock options have exercise prices ranging from $12.23 to $58.56, and the nonvested 

stock awards have grant prices ranging from $19.18 to $27.18. 

	 In computing earnings per share assuming dilution, only potential common shares that are dilutive (those that reduce earnings per 

share) are included. Potential common shares not included in the computation of dilutive earnings per share because their impact would 

be antidilutive, based on current market prices, approximated 6.2 million, 8.2 million, and 12.1 million shares of common stock for the 

years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Note 12. Stock-Based Compensation

Description of Stock Plans
	 Under the stock incentive plan of 2007, up to 35,000,000 shares of common stock are available for awards to our employees, officers, 

consultants, and directors. Awards may be in the form of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, 

performance units, and other stock-based awards. Each full value award, defined as any award other than a stock option or stock 

appreciation right, shall be counted as 2.7 shares. The exercise price for stock options issued cannot be less than the fair market value  

of the underlying common stock as of the grant date. Stock options have a maximum term of ten years after the date of grant and 

generally vest after three years. At December 31, 2007, 31,486,483 shares were available for future grants.
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	 Under the broad-based stock plan of 2002, up to 2,390,000 shares of common stock were available for stock option awards to our 

employees, officers, consultants, and brokers, excluding certain senior officers and directors. The plan was terminated in February 2004 

for purposes of any further grants. The stock options have a maximum term of ten years after the date of grant and generally vest after 

three years.

	 Under the broad-based stock plan of 2001, up to 2,000,000 shares of common stock were available for stock option awards to our 

employees, officers, consultants, and brokers, excluding certain senior officers and directors. The plan was terminated in December 2007 

for purposes of any further grants, other than reload grants, for which 20,000 shares were available at December 31, 2007. The stock 

options have a maximum term of ten years after the date of grant and generally vest after three years. 

	 Under the stock plan of 1999, comprised of the Provident Companies, Inc. stock plan of 1999 and the UnumProvident Corporation stock 

plan of 1999, an aggregate of up to 17,500,000 shares of common stock were available for awards to our employees, officers, brokers, and 

directors. Awards could be in the form of stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards, dividend equivalent awards, or any other 

right or interest relating to stock. The plan was terminated in May 2007 for purposes of any further grants, other than reload grants, for 

which 250,000 shares were available at December 31, 2007. Stock options have a maximum term of ten years after the date of grant and 

generally vest after three years.

	 Substantially all of our employees are eligible to participate in an employee stock purchase plan (ESPP). Under the plan, up to 

3,460,000 shares of common stock are authorized for issuance, of which 1,611,500 remain available for issuance at December 31, 2007. 

Stock may be purchased at the end of each financial quarter at a purchase price of 85 percent of the lower of its beginning or end of 

quarter market prices. 

	 We issue new shares of common stock for nonvested stock grants, exercise of stock options, and purchase of ESPP shares. 

Nonvested Stock Awards
	 Nonvested share activity is summarized as follows:
					   

			   Weighted Average	  
		  Shares	 Grant Date	  
		  (000s)	 Fair Value	

Nonvested at December 31, 2006		  1,833		  $18.68	

	 Granted		  800		  21.99	

	 Vested		  (1,141)		  18.03	

	 Forfeited		  (314)		  18.36	

Nonvested at December 31, 2007		  1,178		  21.65	

	 Stock awards vest over a one to five year service period, beginning at the date of grant, and the compensation cost is recognized 

ratably during the vesting period. Compensation cost for stock awards subject to accelerated vesting upon retirement is recognized over 

the implicit service period for awards issued subsequent to 2005 and over the explicit service period (subject to acceleration upon actual 

retirement) for awards issued prior to 2006. We pay cash dividend equivalents on outstanding nonvested stock awards. The weighted 

average grant date fair values per share for nonvested stock awards granted during 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $21.99, $20.95, and 

$17.43, respectively. 
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	 The total fair value of shares vested during 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $20.6 million, $12.6 million, and $2.4 million, respectively.

	 At December 31, 2007, we had $14.6 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock awards that will be 

recognized over a weighted average period of 1.0 year. Prior to adoption of SFAS 123(R), this amount was reported as additional paid-in 

capital and deferred compensation, a contra equity account. The value of this contra equity account at the adoption of SFAS 123(R) was 

$13.8 million. 

Performance Restricted Stock Units (PRSUs)
	 In September 2007, we issued 1,247,500 PRSUs with a grant date fair value of $15.99. Vesting for this grant is contingent upon 

meeting various company threshold performance and stock price conditions. Dividend equivalents on PRSUs are accrued in the form of 

additional restricted stock units. We had 1,251,385 PRSUs outstanding at December 31, 2007, all of which are nonvested. 

	 At December 31, 2007, we had $15.8 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to PRSUs that will be recognized over a 

weighted average period of 2.5 years. The PRSU expense and unrecognized compensation cost assume the performance goals are attained 

at 100 percent. Actual performance may result in zero to 100 percent of the units ultimately being earned. We used the accelerated method 

of amortization for recognizing compensation expense, which treats each of the three vesting tranches as a separate award over the 

expected life of the unit.

	 We estimated the fair value on the date of grant using the Monte-Carlo model. The following assumptions were used to value the 

2007 grants: 

	 • �Expected volatility of 29 percent, based on our historical daily stock prices. 

	 • �Expected life of 4.4 years, which equals the maximum term. 

	 • �Expected dividend yield of 1.24 percent, based on the dividend rate at the date of grant. 

	 • �Risk-free interest rate of 3.97 percent, based on the yield of treasury bonds at the date of grant.

Stock Options
	 Stock option activity is summarized as follows:

	 Shares	 Weighted Average	 Remaining	 Intristic 

	 (000S)	 Exercise Price	 Contractual Term	 Value (000s)

Outstanding at December 31, 2006		  9,705	 $	32.68 

	 Granted		  166		 21.68

	 Exercised		  (378)		 13.82

	 Expired		  (1,790)		 35.10

Outstanding at December 31, 2007		  7,703		 32.81		 2.3 Years	 $	13,171 

Exercisable at December 31, 2007		  7,537	 $	33.06		 2.2 Years	 $	12,821

	 All outstanding stock options at December 31, 2007 are expected to vest. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2007, 

2006, and 2005 was $3.9 million, $0.9 million, and $1.9 million, respectively. The total fair value of options that vested during 2006 and 

2005 was $0.5 million and $5.5 million, respectively. No stock options vested in 2007. At December 31, 2007, we had $0.9 million of 

unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options that will be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.1 years.
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	 The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during 2007 was $8.61. No stock options were granted during 2006 

and 2005. We estimated the fair value on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The following assumptions were 

used to value the 2007 grants: 

	 • �Expected volatility of 44 percent, based on our historical daily stock prices. 

	 • �Expected life of 5.0 years, based on the simplified method allowed under supplemental application guidance issued by the SEC  

in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based Payment.

	 • �Expected dividend yield of 1.57 percent, based on the dividend rate at the date of grant. 

	 • �Risk-free interest rate of 4.67 percent, based on the yield of treasury bonds at the date of grant. 

ESPP
	 ESPP activity is summarized as follows: 

	 Year Ended December 31		

					     2007	 2006	 2005

Number of Shares Sold	 	114,420		 148,833		 154,395 

Weighted Average Exercise Price	 $	 24.32	 $	 18.99	 $	 15.38 

Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value	 $	 5.18	 $	 3.90	 $	 3.29 

Expense
Compensation expense for the stock plans, as reported in the consolidated statements of income, is as follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Nonvested Stock Awards	 $	10.7	 $	15.3	 $	12.7 

Performance Restricted Stock Units	 	 2.0		  —		  —  

Stock Options	 	 0.5		  0.5		  0.6 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan	 	 0.5		  0.6		  0.5 

Total Compensation Expense, Before Income Tax	 $	13.7	 $	16.4	 $	13.8 

Total Compensation Expense, Net of Income Tax	 $	 8.9	 $	10.7	 $	 9.0

	 Cash received under all share-based payment arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $7.8 million, 

$5.0 million, and $18.1 million, respectively. 
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Note 13. Reinsurance
	 In the normal course of business, we assume reinsurance from and cede reinsurance to other insurance companies. The primary 

purpose of ceded reinsurance is to limit losses from large exposures. However, if the assuming reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations, 

we remain contingently liable. We evaluate the financial condition of reinsurers and monitor concentration of credit risk to minimize this 

exposure. We may also require assets in trust, letters of credit, or other acceptable collateral to support reinsurance recoverable balances.

	 The reinsurance recoverable at December 31, 2007 relates to 89 companies. Thirteen major companies account for approximately  

90 percent of the reinsurance recoverable at December 31, 2007, and are all companies rated A or better by A.M. Best Company or are 

fully securitized by letters of credit or investment-grade fixed maturity securities held in trust. Virtually all of the remaining ten percent  

of the reinsurance recoverable relates to business reinsured either with companies rated A- or better by A.M. Best Company, with overseas 

entities with equivalent ratings or backed by letters of credit or trust agreements, or through reinsurance arrangements wherein we 

retain the assets in our general account. Less than one percent of the reinsurance recoverable is held by companies either rated below  

A- by A.M. Best Company or not rated.

	 Reinsurance activity is accounted for on a basis consistent with the terms of the reinsurance contracts and the accounting used for 

the original policies issued. Premium income and benefits and change in reserves for future benefits are presented in the consolidated 

statements of income net of reinsurance ceded. 

	 Reinsurance data is as follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Direct Premium Income	 $	7,997.5	 $	8,082.6	 $	8,077.0 

Reinsurance Assumed		  289.6	 	 324.3		  395.8 

Reinsurance Ceded	 	 (386.0)		  (458.7)		  (657.2)

Net Premium Income	 $	7,901.1	 $	7,948.2	 $	7,815.6 

Ceded Benefits and Change in Reserves for Future Benefits	 $	 947.8	 $	 891.5	 $	1,110.6

	 During the third quarter of 2007, we recaptured a closed block of individual disability business, with approximately $204.3 million  

in reserves and $7.0 million of annual premium. During the third quarter of 2005, we recaptured a closed block of individual disability 

business, with approximately $1.6 billion in invested assets and $185.0 million of annual premium. The underlying operating results of  

the reinsurance contract recaptured during 2005 were reflected in other income prior to the recapture. These recaptures did not have a 

material effect on operating results for the Individual Disability — Closed Block segment.

	 During 2000, we reinsured substantially all of our individual life and corporate-owned life insurance blocks of business, with a resulting 

gain which was deferred and is being amortized into income. A portion of the ceded corporate-owned life insurance block of business 

surrendered during 2007. The termination of this fully ceded business, which is reported in our Other segment, had no impact on our 

operating results and will not materially affect the amortization of the deferred gain. The termination resulted in a balance sheet only 

decrease in reserves for future policy and contract benefits of $1,094.0 million and policy loans of $1,013.7 million, with corresponding 

offsets to each in the reinsurance recoverable. The termination of this fully ceded business had no impact on our cash flows. 
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Note 14. Segment Information
	 Our reporting segments are comprised of the following: Unum US, Unum UK, Colonial Life, Individual Disability — Closed Block, Other,  

and Corporate. 

	 The Unum US segment includes group long-term and short-term disability insurance, group life and accidental death and 

dismemberment products, and supplemental and voluntary lines of business, comprised of individual disability — recently issued, group  

and individual long-term care, and brokerage voluntary benefits products. These products are marketed through our field sales personnel 

who work in conjunction with independent brokers and consultants. For the sale of individual disability and individual long-term care 

products, we use a distribution model which provides independent brokers and consultants with the option of direct access to a sales 

support center centrally located in our corporate offices. 

	 The Unum UK segment includes group long-term disability insurance, group life products, and individual disability products sold 

primarily in the United Kingdom through field sales personnel and independent brokers and consultants. 

	 The Colonial Life segment includes insurance for accident, sickness, and disability products, life products, and cancer and critical 

illness products issued and marketed primarily to employees at the workplace through an agency sales force and brokers. 

	 The Individual Disability — Closed Block segment generally consists of those individual disability policies that were designed to  

be distributed to individuals in a non-workplace setting and which were primarily in force prior to the substantial changes in product 

offerings, pricing, distribution, and underwriting which generally occurred during the period 1994 through 1998. A minimal amount of 

new business continued to be sold subsequent to these changes, but we stopped selling new policies in this segment at the beginning  

of 2004 other than update features contractually allowable on existing policies. 

	 The Other operating segment includes results from Unum US insured products not actively marketed (with the exception of the 

individual disability products in the Individual Disability — Closed Block segment), including individual life and corporate-owned life 

insurance, reinsurance pools and management operations, group pension, health insurance, and individual annuities. 

	 The Corporate segment consists of revenue earned on corporate assets not specifically allocated to a line of business, interest expense 

on corporate debt, and certain corporate income and expense not allocated to a line of business.

	 In the following segment financial data, “operating revenue” excludes net realized investment gains and losses. “Operating income” or 

“operating loss” excludes net realized investment gains and losses, income tax, and results of discontinued operations. These are considered 

non-GAAP financial measures. These non-GAAP financial measures of “operating revenue” and “operating income” or “operating loss” differ 

from revenue and income from continuing operations before income tax as presented in our consolidated statements of income prepared  

in accordance with GAAP due to the exclusion of before tax realized investment gains and losses. We measure segment performance for 

purposes of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, 

excluding realized investment gains and losses because we believe that this performance measure is a better indicator of the ongoing 

businesses and the underlying trends in the businesses. Our investment focus is on investment income to support our insurance liabilities  

as opposed to the generation of realized investment gains and losses, and a long-term focus is necessary to maintain profitability over the 

life of the business. Realized investment gains and losses depend on market conditions and do not necessarily relate to decisions regarding 

the underlying business of our segments. However, income or loss excluding realized investment gains and losses does not replace net 

income or net loss as a measure of overall profitability. We may experience realized investment losses, which will affect future earnings 

levels since our underlying business is long-term in nature and we need to earn the assumed interest rates in our liabilities. 
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	 Premium income by major line of business within each of our segments is presented as follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Premium Income					   

	 Unum US					   

		  Group Disability					   

          	 Group Long-term Disability	 $	1,895.7	 $	1,953.3	 $	1,961.6 

          	 Group Short-term Disability		  485.6		  530.1		  566.3 

     	 Group Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment					   

			   Group Life		 1,107.4		 1,248.1		 1,306.8 

			   Accidental Death & Dismemberment	 	 131.0		  151.6		  156.4 

		  Supplemental and Voluntary					   

			   Individual Disability — Recently Issued	 	 456.7	 	 438.5		  425.1 

			   Long-term Care		  532.9	 	 492.4		  473.2 

			   Voluntary Benefits	 	 404.7		  382.0		  339.6 

				    	5,014.0		 5,196.0		 5,229.0 

Unum UK					  

     Group Long-term Disability	 	 752.6		  638.9		  582.9 

     Group Life	 	 177.4		  171.0		  164.1 

     Individual Disability	 	 38.3		  32.9		  38.3 

				    	 968.3		  842.8		  785.3 

Colonial Life					   

     Accident, Sickness, and Disability	 	 566.6		  533.3		  508.9 

     Life			   143.5		  130.5		  114.0 

     Cancer and Critical Illness	 	 197.1		  178.3		  164.1 

				    	 907.2		  842.1		  787.0 

Individual Disability — Closed Block	 	1,009.9		 1,062.8		 1,011.7 

Other			   	 1.7		  4.5		  2.6 

Total			   $	7,901.1	 $	7,948.2	 $	7,815.6
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	 Selected operating statement data by segment is presented as follows:

						      Individual 

						      Disability — 				     

(in millions of dollars)	 Unum US	 Unum UK	 Colonial Life	 Closed Block	 Other	 Corporate	 Total	

Year Ended December 31, 2007					   

Total Premium Income	 $	5,014.0	 $	 968.3	 $	 907.2	 $	1,009.9	 $	 1.7	 $	 —	 $	 7,901.1 

Net Investment Income		 1,129.9		  200.4		  99.9		  827.2		 108.4		  44.1		  2,409.9 

Other Income	 	 135.7		  3.1		  0.9		  103.7		  28.5		  2.2		  274.1 

Operating Revenue	 $	6,279.6	 $	1,171.8	 $	1,008.0	 $	1,940.8	 $	138.6	 $	 46.3	 $	10,585.1 

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 565.6	 $	 338.8	 $	 245.8	 $	 117.9	 $	 17.5	 $	(223.2)	 $	 1,062.4 

Depreciation and Amortization	 $	 326.9	 $	 61.6	 $	 162.9	 $	 3.2	 $	 0.1	 $	 5.1	 $	 559.8 

Year Ended December 31, 2006												          

Total Premium Income	 $	5,196.0	 $	 842.8	 $	 842.1	 $	1,062.8	 $	 4.5	 $	 —	 $	 7,948.2 

Net Investment Income		 1,063.1		  174.6		  93.6		  828.7		 113.2		  47.4		  2,320.6 

Other Income		  108.5		  0.1		  1.1		  105.1		  33.8		  15.7		  264.3 

Operating Revenue	 $	6,367.6	 $	1,017.5	 $	 936.8	 $	1,996.6	 $	151.5	 $	 63.1	 $	10,533.1 

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 95.7	 $	 257.8	 $	 198.7	 $	 71.3	 $	 24.4	 $	(184.7)	 $	 463.2 

Depreciation and Amortization	 $	 351.9	 $	 45.8	 $	 154.4	 $	 4.4	 $	 0.1	 $	 6.1	 $	 562.7 

Year Ended December 31, 2005											         

Total Premium Income	 $	5,229.0	 $	 785.3	 $	 787.0	 $	1,011.7	 $	 2.6	 $	 —	 $	 7,815.6 

Net Investment Income		  998.2		  154.2		  96.0		  770.0		 120.5		  49.4		  2,188.3 

Other Income		  108.6		  6.1		  4.4		  95.2		  36.0		  11.8		  262.1 

Operating Revenue	 $	6,335.8	 $	 945.6	 $	 887.4	 $	1,876.9	 $	159.1	 $	 61.2	 $	10,266.0 

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 387.7	 $	 187.7	 $	 168.1	 $	 79.9	 $	 30.0	 $	(152.8)	 $	 700.6 

Depreciation and Amortization	 $	 347.0	 $	 42.3	 $	 147.4	 $	 4.1	 $	 0.6	 $	 8.6	 $	 550.0 
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	 The following table provides the changes in deferred acquisition costs by segment:

(in millions of dollars)	 Unum US	 Unum UK	 Colonial Life	 Other	 Total

Year Ended December 31, 2007									       

	 Beginning of Year	 $	2,205.2	 $	165.1	 $	 612.8	 $	 —	 $	2,983.1 

	 Cumulative Effect of Accounting Principle Change — Note 1	 	 (589.8)		 (88.3)		  —		  —		  (678.1)

	 Capitalized	 	 304.2		  41.2		  210.9		  —		  556.3 

	 Amortization	 	 (277.1)		 (49.4)		 (153.9)		  —		  (480.4)

	 Foreign Currency	 	 —		  1.0		  —		  —		  1.0 

	 End of Year	 $	1,642.5	 $	 69.6	 $	 669.8	 $	 —	 $	2,381.9 

									       

Year Ended December 31, 2006									       

	 Beginning of Year	 $	2,201.2	 $	142.5	 $	 569.6	 $	 —	 $	2,913.3 

	 Capitalized		  306.2		  34.4		  187.6		  —		  528.2 

	 Amortization		  (302.2)		 (32.0)		 (144.4)		  —		  (478.6)

	 Foreign Currency		  —		  20.2		  —		  —		  20.2 

	 End of Year	 $	2,205.2	 $	165.1	 $	 612.8	 $	 —	 $	2,983.1 

									       

Year Ended December 31, 2005									       

	 Beginning of Year	 $	2,196.2	 $	154.9	 $	 530.9	 $	 0.5	 $	2,882.5 

	 Capitalized		  311.9		  34.1		  173.4		  —		  519.4 

	 Amortization		  (306.9)		 (21.6)		 (134.7)		 (0.5)		  (463.7)

	 Foreign Currency		  —		 (24.9)		  —		  —		  (24.9)

	 End of Year	 $	2,201.2	 $	142.5	 $	 569.6	 $	 —	 $	2,913.3 

	 A reconciliation of total operating revenue and operating income by segment to revenue and net income as reported in the 

consolidated statements of income follows:

	 Year Ended December 31		

(in millions of dollars)			   2007	 2006	 2005

Operating Revenue by Segment					     $	10,585.1	 $	10,533.1	 $	10,266.0 

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)					     	 (65.2)		  2.2		  (6.7)

Revenue					     	 $	10,519.9	 $	10,535.3	 $	10,259.3 

Operating Income by Segment				    	 $	 1,062.4	 $	 463.2	 $	 700.6 

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)					     	 (65.2)	 	 2.2		  (6.7)

Income Tax					     	 324.8	 	 61.8		  189.9 

Income from Discontinued Operations					     	 6.9	 	 7.4		  9.6 

Net Income					     $	 679.3	 $	 411.0	 $	 513.6 
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	 Assets by segment are as follows:

	 December 31		

(in millions of dollars)				    2007	 2006

Unum US							      	 $	21,012.8	 $	20,900.8 

Unum UK							      		  4,016.5	 	 3,904.2 

Colonial Life							       	 2,518.5		  2,355.0 

Individual Disability — Closed Block							       	15,175.6		 15,609.5 

Other									         	 7,870.3		  8,998.8 

Corporate									       1,839.0		  942.0 

Discontinued Operations								        —		  113.0 

Total								        	 $	52,432.7	 $	52,823.3 

	 We report goodwill in our Unum US segment and in our Unum UK segment, which are the segments expected to benefit from the 

originating business combinations. Stockholders’ equity is allocated to the operating segments on the basis of an internal allocation 

formula that reflects the volume and risk components of each operating segment’s business and aligns allocated equity with our target 

capital levels for regulatory and rating agency purposes. We modify this formula periodically to recognize changes in the views of  

capital requirements. 

Note 15. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Commitments
	 We have noncancelable lease obligations on certain office space and equipment. As of December 31, 2007, the aggregate net 

minimum lease payments were $108.8 million payable as follows: $26.7 million in 2008, $25.1 million in 2009, $18.4 million in 2010, 

$11.7 million in 2011, $8.8 million in 2012, and $18.1 million thereafter. Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, 

and 2005 was $35.7 million, $35.8 million, and $33.9 million, respectively.

Contingent Liabilities 
	 We are a defendant in a number of litigation matters. In some of these matters, no specified amount is sought. In others, very large 

or indeterminate amounts, including punitive and treble damages, are asserted. There is a wide variation of pleading practice permitted 

in the United States courts with respect to requests for monetary damages, including some courts in which no specified amount is 

required and others which allow the plaintiff to state only that the amount sought is sufficient to invoke the jurisdiction of that court. 

Further, some jurisdictions permit plaintiffs to allege damages well in excess of reasonably possible verdicts. Based on our extensive 

experience and that of others in the industry with respect to litigating or resolving claims through settlement over an extended period of 

time, we believe that the monetary damages asserted in a lawsuit or claim bear little relation to the merits of the case, or the likely 

disposition value. Therefore, the specific monetary relief sought is not stated.

	 The lawsuits described below are for the most part in very preliminary stages, and the outcome of the matters is uncertain. An 

estimated loss is accrued when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 

Unless indicated otherwise, reserves have not been established for these matters. 
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Claims Handling Matters

Multidistrict Litigation

	 On September 2, 2003, the Judicial Panel on the Multidistrict Litigation entered an order transferring more than twenty putative 

class actions and derivative suits, described below, filed in various courts against the Company, several of its subsidiaries, and some of 

our officers, to the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Tennessee for coordinated or consolidated pretrial proceedings. The 

defendants strongly deny the allegations in each of these actions and will vigorously defend the substantive and procedural aspects of 

the litigations, except as noted below with respect to settlement discussions. 

Shareholder Derivative Actions

	 On November 22, 2002, the first of five purported shareholder derivative actions was filed in the Tennessee Chancery Court. Between 

December 27, 2002 and March 11, 2003, four additional purported derivative actions were filed in state and federal courts in Tennessee. 

The defendants removed each of the actions that were filed in Tennessee state court to the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District  

of Tennessee. 

	 Each of these actions purports to be brought on behalf of the Company against certain current and past members of our Board of 

Directors and certain executive officers alleging breaches of fiduciary duties and other violations of claims paying law by defendants. 

Plaintiffs allege, among other things, that the individual defendants breached their duties of good faith and loyalty by establishing or 

permitting to be established an unlawful policy of denying legitimate disability claims and improper financial reporting, and that certain 

defendants engaged in insider trading. 

	 The district court consolidated these actions under the caption In re UnumProvident Corporation Derivative Actions. The plaintiffs 

then filed a single consolidated amended complaint. We deny the allegations of the complaint and will vigorously contest them.

Federal Securities Law Class Actions

	 On February 12, 2003, the first of six virtually identical putative securities class actions was filed in the U.S. District Court for the 

Eastern District of Tennessee, later consolidated under the caption In re UnumProvident Corp. Securities Litigation. 

	 The Lead Plaintiff filed a consolidated amended complaint alleging claims under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange 

Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 on behalf of a putative class of purchasers of Unum Group stock between March 30, 2000 and April 24, 2003. 

The amended complaint alleges, among other things, that we issued misleading financial statements, improperly accounted for certain 

impaired investments, failed to properly estimate our disability claim reserves, and pursued certain improper claims handling practices. 

	 On July 30, 2007, we entered into a Stipulation of Settlement with the plaintiffs to resolve the litigation. Under the terms of the 

settlement, which is subject to, among other things, approval by the court, we have agreed to pay $40.0 million to settle all claims that 

were or could have been asserted by the class in the action. After the receipt of insurance proceeds, the net cost to us was $11.6 million 

before tax and was included in our second quarter of 2007 operating results. 
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Policyholder Class Actions

	 On July 15, 2002, Rombeiro v. Unum Life Insurance Company of America, et al., was filed in the Superior Court of California and 

subsequently was removed to federal court, alleging that the plaintiff was wrongfully denied disability benefits under a group long-term 

disability plan. On January 21, 2003, an Amended Complaint was filed on behalf of a putative class of individuals that were denied or 

terminated from benefits under group long-term disability plans, seeking injunctive and declaratory relief and payment of benefits. On 

April 30, 2003, the court granted in part and denied in part the defendants’ motion to dismiss the complaint. On May 14, 2003, the 

plaintiff filed a Second Amended Complaint seeking similar relief. 

	 Between November 2002 and November 2003, six additional similar putative class actions were filed in (or later removed to) federal 

district courts in Illinois, Massachusetts, New York, Pennsylvania, and Tennessee. The complaints alleged that the putative class members’ 

claims were evaluated improperly and allege that the Company and its insurance subsidiaries breached certain fiduciary duties owed to 

the class members under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA), Racketeer Influenced Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO), 

and/or various state laws. The complaints sought various forms of equitable relief and money damages, including punitive damages.

	 These actions all were transferred to the Eastern District of Tennessee multidistrict litigation. On December 22, 2003, the Tennessee 

Federal District Court entered an order consolidating all of the above actions for all pretrial purposes under the caption In re UnumProvident 

Corp. ERISA Benefit Denial Actions and appointed a lead plaintiff. A consolidated amended complaint was filed on February 20, 2004.

	 Court ordered mediation has concluded with the settlement of all individual claims brought by seven of the fifteen named plaintiffs. 

An eighth plaintiff has subsequently resolved her claims through the process established under the regulatory settlement agreements.

	 On September 4, 2007, the District Court certified a (b)(2) class consisting of all plan participants and beneficiaries insured under ERISA 

governed long-term disability insurance policies/plans issued by Unum Group and the insuring subsidiaries of Unum Group throughout the 

United States who have had a long-term disability claim denied, terminated, or suspended on or after June 30, 1999 by Unum Group or 

one or more of its insuring subsidiaries after being subjected to any of the practices alleged in the complaint. The class as certified seeks, 

among other forms of relief, an opportunity to have denied or terminated claims re-assessed by so-called independent reviewers. The 

District Court has yet to rule on pending motions by the Company for judgment on the pleading, or for summary judgment. The Sixth Circuit 

Court of Appeals has since granted the Company’s petition for leave to appeal the class certification order on an interlocutory basis. 

	 On April 30, 2003, a separate putative class action, Taylor v. UnumProvident Corporation, et al., was filed in the Tennessee Circuit 

Court and subsequently removed to federal court. The complaint alleges claims against Unum Group and certain subsidiaries on behalf of 

a putative class of long-term disability insurance policyholders who did not obtain their coverage through employer sponsored plans and 

who had a claim denied, terminated, or suspended by a Unum Group subsidiary after January 1, 1995, seeking equitable and monetary 

relief. Plaintiff alleges that the defendants violated various state laws by engaging in unfair claim practices and improperly denying claims. 

	 The court subsequently granted in part our motion for summary judgment in Taylor, dismissing plaintiff’s request for equitable relief 

on her breach of contract claim and dismissing any claim plaintiff may make for punitive damages under the Tennessee Consumer Protection 

Act. The former claim is the principal claim upon which class certification is sought. The court reserved ruling on the remainder of the 

pending motion for summary judgment. The court also has under advisement the plaintiff’s motion for class certification.

Plan Beneficiary Class Actions

	 During the first quarter of 2007, we executed a settlement agreement resolving the plan beneficiary class action, or 401(k) 

Retirement Plan case, entitled Gee v. UnumProvident Corporation, et al. The settlement agreement, the net cost of which is immaterial, 

was approved by the court in December 2007.
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Examinations and Investigations

	 During 2004 and 2005, certain of our insurance subsidiaries entered into settlement agreements with various regulators related to disability 

claims handling practices. The agreements provide for changes in certain of our claims handling procedures and a claim reassessment 

process available to certain claimants whose claims were denied or closed during specified periods. The agreements will remain in place 

until the later of January 1, 2007, or the completion of an examination of claims handling practices and an examination of the reassessment 

process, both of which will be conducted by the lead state regulators. The settlement agreements also provide for a contingent fine of  

up to $145.0 million on our U.S. insurance subsidiaries in the event that we fail to satisfactorily meet the performance standards in the 

settlement agreements relating to the examinations referred to above. The parties to the agreements subsequently agreed to extend the 

reassessment process until December 31, 2007. We have now completed the claims reassessment process, as required by the regulatory 

settlement agreements. The lead regulators began the examinations described above in June 2007 and on February 20, 2008, met with 

members of our board of directors and management to report the results and to advise that no fines will be assessed. The final report  

for the examinations under the regulatory settlement agreements is expected to be completed by mid-2008.

Other Claim Litigation

	 We and our insurance company subsidiaries, as part of our normal operations in managing disability claims, are engaged in claim litigation 

where disputes arise as a result of a denial or termination of benefits. Most typically these lawsuits are filed on behalf of a single claimant 

or policyholder, and in some of these individual actions punitive damages are sought, such as claims alleging bad faith in the handling of 

insurance claims. For our general claim litigation, we maintain reserves based on experience to satisfy judgments and settlements in the 

normal course. We expect that the ultimate liability, if any, with respect to general claim litigation, after consideration of the reserves 

maintained, will not be material to our consolidated financial condition. Nevertheless, given the inherent unpredictability of litigation, it is 

possible that an adverse outcome in certain claim litigation involving punitive damages could, from time to time, have a material adverse 

effect on our consolidated results of operations in a period, depending on the results of operations for the particular period. We are unable 

to estimate a range of reasonably possible punitive losses. 

	 From time to time class action allegations are pursued where the claimant or policyholder purports to represent a larger number  

of individuals who are similarly situated. Since each insurance claim is evaluated based on its own merits, there is rarely a single act or 

series of actions, which can properly be addressed by a class action. Nevertheless, we monitor these cases closely and defend ourselves 

appropriately where these allegations are made.

Broker Compensation, Quoting Process, and Related Matters

Examinations and Investigations

	 Since October 2004, we and/or our insurance subsidiaries have received subpoenas or information requests from a Federal Grand Jury 

in San Diego, the District Attorney for the County of San Diego, and the U.S. Department of Labor, as well as insurance departments and/

or other state regulatory or investigatory agencies of at least seven additional states including Connecticut, Florida, Maine, Massachusetts, 

North Carolina, South Carolina, and Tennessee. The subpoenas and/or information requests relate to, among other things, compliance 

with ERISA relating to our interactions with insurance brokers and to regulations concerning insurance information provided by us to plan 

administrators of ERISA plans, as well as compliance with state and federal laws with respect to quoting processes, producer compensation, 

solicitation activities, policies sold to state or municipal entities, and information regarding compensation arrangements with brokers.  

We will continue to cooperate fully with all investigations. 
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Broker-Related Litigation

	 We and certain of our subsidiaries, along with many other insurance brokers and insurers, have been named as defendants in a series  

of putative class actions that have been transferred to the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey for coordinated or consolidated 

pretrial proceedings as part of multidistrict litigation (MDL) No. 1663, In re Insurance Brokerage Antitrust Litigation. The plaintiffs in MDL 

No. 1663 filed a consolidated amended complaint in August 2005, which alleges, among other things, that the defendants violated federal 

and state antitrust laws, RICO, ERISA, and various state common law requirements by engaging in alleged bid rigging and customer 

allocation and by paying undisclosed compensation to insurance brokers to steer business to defendant insurers. Defendants filed a motion  

to dismiss the complaint on November 29, 2005. On April 5, 2007, defendants’ motion to dismiss was granted without prejudice as to all 

counts except the ERISA counts. Plaintiffs were granted a last opportunity to file an amended complaint, and they did so on May 22, 2007. 

On June 21, 2007, defendants filed a motion to dismiss and for summary judgment on all counts. On August 31, 2007 and September 28, 

2007, plaintiffs’ federal antitrust and RICO claims were dismissed with prejudice. Defendants’ motion for summary judgment on the ERISA 

counts was granted on January 14, 2008. 

	 We are a defendant in an action styled, Palm Tree Computers Systems, Inc. v. ACE USA, et al., which was filed in the Florida state Circuit 

Court on February 16, 2005. The complaint contains allegations similar to those made in the multidistrict litigation referred to above. The case 

was removed to federal court and, on October 20, 2005, the case was transferred to the District of New Jersey multidistrict litigation. A 

motion to remand the case to the state court in Florida remains pending, but no further action has been taken in the case subsequent to 

the transfer. 

Miscellaneous Matters
	 In September 2003, United States of America ex. rel. Patrick J. Loughren v. UnumProvident Corporation and GENEX Services, Inc. was filed 

in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts. This is a qui tam action to recover damages and civil penalties on behalf  

of the United States of America alleging violations of the False Claims Act by us and our former GENEX subsidiary. In accordance with the 

False Claims Act, the action was originally filed under seal to provide the government the opportunity to investigate the allegations and 

prosecute the action if they believed that the case had merit and warranted their attention. The government declined to prosecute the 

case and the case became a matter of public record on December 23, 2004. The complaint alleges that we defrauded the government  

by inducing and or assisting disability claimants to apply for disability benefits from the Social Security Administration (SSA) when we 

allegedly knew that the claimants were not disabled under SSA criteria. A motion to dismiss the complaint was unsuccessful. We intend  

to vigorously defend the action.

	 In May 2007, Roy Mogel, Todd D. Lindsay and Joseph R. Thorley individually and on behalf of those similarly situated v. Unum Life 

Insurance Company, was filed in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts. This is a putative class action alleging 

that we breached fiduciary duties owed to certain beneficiaries under group life insurance policies when we paid certain life insurance 

proceeds by establishing interest-bearing Retained Asset Accounts rather than checks. On February 4, 2008, the court granted the 

Company’s motion to dismiss all claims.

Summary
	 Various lawsuits against us, in addition to those discussed above, have arisen in the normal course of business. Further, state insurance 

regulatory authorities and other federal and state authorities regularly make inquiries and conduct investigations concerning our 

compliance with applicable insurance and other laws and regulations. 

	 Given the complexity and scope of our litigation and regulatory matters, it is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of all 

pending investigations or legal proceedings or provide reasonable estimates of potential losses, except where noted in connection with 

specific matters. It is possible that our results of operations or cash flows in a particular period could be materially affected by an ultimate 

unfavorable outcome of pending litigation or regulatory matters depending, in part, on our results of operations or cash flows for the 

particular period. We believe, however, that the ultimate outcome of all pending litigation and regulatory matters, after consideration  

of applicable reserves and rights to indemnification, should not have a material adverse effect on our financial position.
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Note 16. Statutory Financial Information

Statutory Net Income, Capital and Surplus, and Dividends
	 Statutory net income for U.S. life insurance companies is reported in conformity with statutory accounting principles prescribed by the 

National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) and adopted by applicable domiciliary state laws. For the years ended December 31, 

2007, 2006, and 2005, our U.S. insurance subsidiaries’ statutory combined net income, excluding Tailwind Re and Northwind Re, was 

$530.8 million, $307.4 million, and $641.8 million, respectively, and statutory combined net gain from operations was $589.1 million, 

$371.5 million, and $650.0 million, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus, excluding Tailwind Re and Northwind Re, was $2,975.3 million 

and $4,232.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Tailwind Re and Northwind Re, our special purpose financial captive  

U.S. insurance subsidiaries, had a statutory combined net loss of $111.5 million and a statutory combined net loss from operations of 

$111.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. Statutory capital and surplus for Tailwind Re and Northwind Re at December 31, 

2007 was $1,378.7 million. Tailwind Re had statutory net income and statutory net gain from operations of $14.1 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2006 and statutory capital and surplus of $136.2 million at December 31, 2006.

		  Restrictions under applicable state insurance laws limit the amount of ordinary dividends that can be paid to a parent company  

from its insurance subsidiaries without prior approval by regulatory authorities. For life insurance companies domiciled in the United States, 

that limitation typically equals, depending on the state of domicile, either ten percent of an insurer’s statutory surplus with respect to 

policyholders as of the preceding year end or the statutory net gain from operations, excluding realized investment gains and losses,  

of the preceding year. The payment of ordinary dividends to a parent company from its insurance subsidiaries is further limited to the 

amount of statutory surplus as it relates to policyholders. Based on the restrictions under current law, $626.5 million is available for the 

payment of ordinary dividends from our U.S. insurance subsidiaries, excluding Tailwind Re and Northwind Re, during 2008. The ability  

of Tailwind Re and Northwind Re to pay dividends to their parent companies, Tailwind Holdings and Northwind Holdings, wholly-owned 

subsidiaries of Unum Group, will depend on their satisfaction of applicable regulatory requirements and on the performance of the 

business reinsured by Tailwind Re and Northwind Re. 

	 We also have the ability to draw a dividend from our United Kingdom insurance subsidiary, Unum Limited. Such dividends are limited 

based on insurance company legislation in the United Kingdom, which requires a minimum solvency margin. The amount available under 

current law for payment of dividends from Unum Limited during 2008 is approximately £202.1 million, subject to regulatory approval. 

Regulatory restrictions do not limit the amount of dividends available for distribution from our non-insurance subsidiaries. 

Deposits
	 At December 31, 2007, our U.S. insurance subsidiaries had on deposit with U.S. regulatory authorities securities with a book value  

of $268.3 million held for the protection of policyholders. 

65977_FIN_Blueline.indd   121 3/27/08   2:24:41 PM



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

138       Unum 2007 Annual Report

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 17. Subsequent Event
	 Pursuant to the common stock repurchase program previously discussed in Note 11, on January 31, 2008, we repurchased approximately 

14.0 million shares for $350.0 million through an accelerated stock repurchase program with a financial counterparty. The repurchased 

shares will be held in treasury, until such time as they may be reissued or retired. 

	 As part of this transaction, we simultaneously entered into a forward contract indexed to the price of our common stock, which subjects 

the transaction to a future price adjustment. Upon settlement of the contract in May 2008, the price adjustment will be calculated based 

on the volume weighted average price of our common stock during the term of the agreement, less a discount. If we are required to pay 

a price adjustment to the counterparty, we have the option of settling the adjustment in shares of our common stock or cash. Any price 

adjustment payable to us will be settled in shares of our common stock.

Note 18. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)
	 The following is a summary of our unaudited quarterly results of operations for 2007 and 2006:

	 2007				  

(in millions of dollars, except share data)	 4th	 3rd	 2nd	 1st

Premium Income	 $	1,983.9	 $	1,986.5	 $	 1,986.7	 $	1,944.0 

Net Investment Income		  619.4		  603.2		  597.8		  589.5 

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)		  (25.8)		  (46.1)		  10.4		  (3.7)

Total Revenue	 	2,643.5		 2,610.2		 2,665.6		 2,600.6 

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Tax		  225.4		  279.0		  232.9		  259.9 

Income from Continuing Operations		  160.5		  187.0		  153.5		  171.4 

Income from Discontinued Operations		  —		  —		  —		  6.9 

Net Income	 	 160.5		  187.0		  153.5		  178.3 

Net Income Per Common Share									       

	 Basic								      

		  Income from Continuing Operations	 	 0.45		  0.52		  0.44		  0.50 

		  Net Income		  0.45		  0.52		  0.44		  0.52 

	 Assuming Dilution								      

		  Income from Continuing Operations		  0.44		  0.52		  0.43		  0.49 

		  Net Income		  0.44		  0.52		  0.43		  0.51 

									       

65977_FIN_Blueline.indd   122 3/27/08   2:24:41 PM



Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Unum 2007 Annual Report       139

	 2006			 

(in millions of dollars, except share data)	 4th	 3rd	 2nd	 1st

Premium Income	 $	2,022.0	 $	1,969.0	 $	1,987.2	 $	1,970.0 

Net Investment Income		  601.4		  578.8		  576.6		  563.8 

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)		  0.7		  4.8		  (5.8)		  2.5 

Total Revenue		 2,696.1		 2,617.4		 2,621.7		 2,600.1 

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Before Income Tax		  265.6		  (97.4)		  189.6		  107.6 

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations		  274.2		  (65.3)		  123.3		  71.4 

Income from Discontinued Operations		  1.9		  1.6		  1.9		  2.0 

Net Income (Loss)		  276.1		  (63.7)		  125.2		  73.4 

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share									       

	 Basic								      

		  Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations		  0.80		  (0.19)		  0.38		  0.24 

		  Net Income (Loss)		  0.81		  (0.19)		  0.39		  0.25 

	 Assuming Dilution								      

		  Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations		  0.79		  (0.19)		  0.37		  0.22 

		  Net Income (Loss)		  0.80		  (0.19)		  0.38		  0.23 

	 Items affecting the comparability of our financial results by quarter are as follows:

	 • �The fourth quarter of 2007 includes costs related to early retirement of debt of $55.6 million before tax and $36.1 million after tax.

	 • �The second quarter of 2007 includes claim reassessment charges of $53.0 million before tax and $34.5 million after tax.

	 • �The first quarter of 2007 income from discontinued operations includes an after-tax gain of $6.2 million on the sale of GENEX.

	 • �The fourth quarter of 2006 includes an income tax benefit of $91.9 million primarily as the result of group relief benefits obtained 

from the use of net operating losses in a foreign jurisdiction in which our businesses operate.

	 • �The third and first quarters of 2006 include claim reassessment charges of $325.4 million and $86.0 million before tax, respectively, 

and $211.5 million and $55.9 million after tax, respectively.

	 • �The third quarter of 2006 includes broker compensation settlement expenses of $18.5 million before tax and $12.7 million after tax.

	 See Notes 8, 9, and 15 for further discussion of the above items.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Unum Group and Subsidiaries
	 We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Unum Group and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, 

and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, cash flows and comprehensive income (loss) for each of the 

three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

	 We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free  

of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

	 In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position  

of Unum Group and subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for 

each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

	 As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, Unum Group changed its method of accounting for deferred acquisition 

costs and income taxes as of January 1, 2007 in accordance with adoption of Statement of Position 05-1, Accounting by Insurance Enterprises 

for Deferred Acquisition Costs in Connection With Modifications or Exchanges of Insurance Contracts, and Financial Accounting Standards 

Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 

No. 109; and its method of accounting for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans as of December 31, 2006 in accordance 

with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 (SFAS 158), Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other 

Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).

	 We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Unum Group 

and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated 

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated February 21, 2008 

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Chattanooga, Tennessee

February 21, 2008
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	 The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined  

in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting 

encompasses the processes and procedures management has established to (i) maintain records that, in reasonable detail, accurately  

and fairly reflect the Company’s transactions and dispositions of assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; (iii) provide 

reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures are appropriately authorized; and (iv) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect 

on the financial statements.

	 Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. In addition,  

any projection of the evaluation of effectiveness to future periods is subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because  

of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

	 We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, based on criteria established in Internal Control—

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and concluded that, as of 

December 31, 2007, we maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

	 Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited our consolidated financial statements included 

herein, audited the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as of December 31, 2007, and issued the attestation 

report included as follows.
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Unum Group and Subsidiaries 
	 We have audited Unum Group and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria 

established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 

(the COSO criteria). Unum Group and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial 

reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying “Management’s 

Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.” Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control 

over financial reporting based on our audit. 

	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over 

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial 

reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 

control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe 

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

	 A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 

of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

	 Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections  

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

	 In our opinion, Unum Group and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting  

as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

	 We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 

consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, 

cash flows, and comprehensive income (loss) for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 of Unum Group and 

subsidiaries, and our report dated February 21, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Chattanooga, Tennessee

February 21, 2008
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Cautionary Statement Regarding  
Forward-Looking Statements

	 The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” to encourage companies to provide prospective information, as 

long as those statements are identified as forward-looking and are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements identifying important 

factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those included in the forward-looking statements. Certain information 

contained in this Annual Report, or in any other written or oral statements made by us in communications with the financial community 

or contained in documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), may be considered forward-looking. Forward-looking 

statements are those not based on historical information, but rather relate to future operations, strategies, financial results, or other 

developments and speak only as of the date made. These statements may be made directly in this document or may be made part of this 

document by reference to other documents filed by us with the SEC, which is known as “incorporation by reference.” You can find many of 

these statements by looking for words such as “will,” “may,” “should,” “could,” “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “intends,” 

“projects,” “goals,” “objectives,” or similar expressions in this document or in documents incorporated herein. 

	 These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks, and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our 

control. We caution readers that the following factors, in addition to other factors mentioned from time to time, may cause actual results 

to differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements: 

	 • �General economic or business conditions, both domestic and foreign, may be less favorable than expected, which may affect 

premium levels, claims experience, the level of pension benefit costs and funding, the availability of capital, and investment 

results, including credit deterioration of investments.

	 • �Competitive pressures in the insurance industry may increase significantly through industry consolidation or otherwise. 

	 • �Events or consequences relating to terrorism and acts of war, both domestic and foreign, may adversely affect our business and  

the Company’s results of operations in a period and may also affect the availability and cost of reinsurance.

	 • �Legislative, regulatory, or tax changes, both domestic and foreign, may adversely affect the businesses in which we are engaged.

	 • �Rating agency actions, state insurance department market conduct examinations and other inquiries, other governmental investigations 

and actions, and negative media attention may adversely affect our business and the Company’s results of operations in a period. 

	 • �The level and results of litigation and rulings in the multidistrict litigation or other purported class actions may not be favorable to 

the Company and may adversely affect our business and the Company’s results of operations in a period.

	 • �Investment results, including, but not limited to, realized investment losses resulting from impairments, may differ from our 

assumptions and prior experience and may adversely affect our business and the Company’s results of operations in a period.

	 • �Changes in the interest rate environment may adversely affect our reserve and policy assumptions and ultimately profit margins 

and reserve levels. 

	 • �Sales growth may be less than planned, which could affect adversely revenue and profitability.

	 • �Effectiveness in supporting new product offerings and providing customer service may not meet expectations.

	 • �Actual experience in pricing, underwriting, and reserving may deviate from our assumptions.

	 • �Actual persistency may be lower than projected persistency, resulting in lower than expected revenue and higher than expected 

amortization of deferred acquisition costs.

	 • �Claim incidence and recovery rates may be influenced by, among other factors, the rate of unemployment and consumer confidence, 

the emergence of new diseases, epidemics, or pandemics, new trends and developments in medical treatments, the effectiveness 

of risk management programs, and the effects of the changes required by the regulatory settlement agreements.

	 • �Insurance reserve liabilities may fluctuate as a result of changes in numerous factors, and such fluctuations can have material 

positive or negative effects on net income. 

	 • �Retained risks in our reinsurance operations are influenced primarily by the credit risk of the reinsurers and potential contract 

disputes. Any material changes in the reinsurers’ credit risk or willingness to pay according to the terms of the contract may 

adversely affect our business and the results of operations in a period.

	 All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are expressly 

qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. We do not undertake any obligation to 

release publicly any revisions to such forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document  

or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. 
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	 Common stock of Unum Group is traded on the New York Stock Exchange. The stock symbol is “UNM.” Quarterly closing prices and 

dividends paid per share of common stock are as follows:

	 Market Price	

				    High	 Low	 Dividend

2007			 

1st Quarter	 $23.40	 $19.79	 $0.075

2nd Quarter	 28.20	 22.83	 0.075

3rd Quarter	 26.75	 22.02	 0.075

4th Quarter	 26.67	 22.36	 0.075

2006			 

1st Quarter	 $24.44	 $19.93	 $0.075

2nd Quarter	 20.88	 17.08	 0.075

3rd Quarter	 19.78	 16.15	 0.075

4th Quarter	 22.58	 19.20	 0.075

	 The following graph shows a five year comparison of cumulative total returns for our common stock’s historical performance, the 

S&P Composite Index, and the Insurance Index (non-weighted average of “total returns” from the S&P Life & Health Index and the S&P 

Multi-line Index). Past performance is not an indication of future results.

	

			 

	 As of February 21, 2008, there were 16,301 registered holders of common stock. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

	 2007	 2006	 2005

	 (in millions)	 per share*	 (in millions)	 per share*	 (in millions)	 per share*

Income from Continuing Operations, As Adjusted**	  $   786.2	 $  2.21	 $   603.3	 $  1.80	 $   513.1	 $  1.64

Net Realized Investment Gain (Loss)	 (43.2)	 (0.12)	 1.5	 0.01	 (4.3)	 (0.02)

Regulatory Reassessment Charges	 (34.5)	 (0.10)	  (267.4)	 (0.79)	 (51.6)	 (0.16)

Special Tax Items and Debt Extinguishment Costs	 (36.1)	 (0.10)	 78.9	 0.23	 42.8	 0.14

Broker Compensation Settlements	 —	 —	 (12.7)	 (0.04)	 —	 —

Gain on Disposition	 —	 —	 —	 —	 4.0	  0.01

Income from Continuing Operations	 672.4	 1.89	 403.6	 1.21	 504.0	 1.61

Income from Discontinued Operations	 6.9	 0.02	 7.4	 0.02	 9.6	 0.03

Net Income	 $   679.3	 $  1.91	 $   411.0	 $  1.23	 $   513.6 	 $  1.64

Total Stockholders’ Equity (Book Value)	 $8,039.9	 $22.28	 $7,718.8	 $22.53	 $7,363.9	 $24.66

Net Unrealized Gain on Securities	 356.1	 0.99	 534.8	 1.56	 1,040.7	 3.49

Net Gain on Cash Flow Hedges	 182.5	 0.50	 194.2	 0.57	 273.3	 0.91

Total Stockholders’ Equity, As Adjusted**	 $7,501.3	 $20.79	 $6,989.8	 $20.40	 $6,049.9	 $20.26

 * Per Share Amounts for Operating Statement Data Assume Dilution.

** �We analyze our performance using non-GAAP financial measures which exclude certain items and the related tax thereon from net income. We believe “Income from Continuing 
Operations, As Adjusted,” which is a non-GAAP financial measure and excludes realized investment gains and losses, which are recurring, and certain other items as specified, 
is a better performance measure and a better indicator of the profitability and underlying trends in our business. Realized investment gains 	and losses are primarily dependent 
on market conditions and general economic events and are not necessarily related to decisions regarding our underlying business. 	The exclusion of certain other items specified 
above also enhances the understanding and comparability of our performance and the underlying fundamentals in our operations, but this exclusion is not an indication that 
similar items may not recur. We also believe that book value per common share excluding unrealized gains and losses on securities and the net gain or loss on cash flow hedges, 
which also tend to fluctuate depending on market conditions and general economic trends, is an important measure.
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1 Fountain Square
Chattanooga, TN 37402
800 718 8824

Transfer Agent
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43069
Providence, RI 02940-3069
800 446 2617

Common Stock Information

Common stock of Unum Group is traded  
on the New York Stock Exchange.
The stock symbol is UNM.

NYSE CEO Certification

Unum Group has filed the certification of its 
chief executive officer and chief financial officer 
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 as exhibits to its Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2007. In June 2007, Unum Group’s chief executive 
officer, as required by Section 303A.12(a) of 
the NYSE Listed Company Manual, certified to the 
NYSE that he was not aware of any violation by 
the Company of the NYSE’s corporate governance 
listing standards.
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